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Letter to Shareholders

Dear Shareholders,

The global economic growth slowed down in 2019 amid U.S.-China trade war and rising geopolitical risk. The memory
industry suffered as a result of slow inventory digestion and weaker than expected market demands. However, Winbond
turned in a stable performance on the strength of diversified market deployment, good partnerships with customers, high
value-added products and a flexible yet prudent capacity policy.

Financial Performance

In 2019, our consolidated revenue amounted to NT$48.8 billion, down 5% in comparison with 2018. Memory and logic
products made up respectively 79% and 21 % of total revenue. The consolidated gross margin was 27% and the operating
margin was 3%. The Company recorded NTS$1.48 billion of consolidated net income after tax, down 81% from 2018.
Earnings per share was NTS0.32.

Market and Product Applications

In 2019, the revenue of our Code Storage Flash hit a record high, accounting for 51% of memory revenue and surpassing
the DRAM revenue for the first time in the company's history. We have been diligently cultivating the Code Storage Flash
market, provided high-quality and high-efficiency products to international clients with close partnership. We are the
world’s number 1 NOR Flash supplier, which contributes a major revenue stream and steady growth momentum for the
Company. DRAM made up 49% of memory revenue. We are currently the world’s top 5 own-brand DRAM supplier,
focusing on R&D, production and sales of specialty DRAM. We have successfully positioned ourselves in a differentiated
market with stable supply.

In terms of application, our products are evenly distributed among four major electronics product lines and we continue
to optimize product mix. The weight of communication products as a percentage of memory revenue increased slightly to
30% in 2019, due to the booming mobile and networking market, while consumer products stayed at 28% of total revenue.
The revenue of computer and peripheral products on the other hand dropped to 22% from 26% in the previous year,
mainly due to decline in global PC shipment. Our high-quality products for automotive and industrial applications
accounted for 20% of memory revenue.

Capacity planning

The production capacity of our fab at Central Taiwan Science Park (CTSP) has increased to 54,000 wafers per month in
2019. We will continue to increase the capacity at CTSP by using industry 4.0, smart manufacturing and flexible production
in the hope to maximize output. We believe it will bring promising growth momentum to further lift Winbond's share and
position in the memory market.

Technology Development and Manufacturing

We possess own memory process technology and embark on the development of innovative products to address future
demands at Internet of Everything (loE) and edge computing. For Code Storage Flash memory products, after having
launched Low Power Flash, we furthermore released high-speed and high-quality SLC NAND Flash to broaden the scope of
product application. For DRAM, we have developed a new generation of LPDDR4 with unique features of lower power,
high bandwidth and better data transmission rate. We also make headway into low-pin-count and easy-to-design
HyperRam, which markedly improves the efficiency of loT terminal devices and human-machine interface devices,
showing our commitment to green technology.

Our 25nm process has begun volume production in 2019. As we continue to invest in the development of advanced
technology, we expect the 20nm DRAM process to enter scale production when it achieves satisfactory yield. It will set a
solid foundation for Winbond's long-term growth and development. For Code Storage Flash products, we will continue to
develop 45nm NOR Flash to accommodate demand of high density. We have always been relentlessly building up our R&D
capability. We continue to enhance the technological competitiveness through strong core technology and value-added
products.



Honors and Awards

We received several awards in quality certification and sustainable development in 2019. Winbond is the first automotive
memory manufacturer in Taiwan to obtain ISO 26262 — Road vehicles functional safety certified, thus enhancing reliability
and safety of our automotive electronics products. We are a trustworthy partner of international automakers for our
memory products.

In terms of sustainable development, Winbond won the Corporate Sustainability Report Gold Award in the 12th Taiwan
Corporate Sustainability Awards (TCSA), which recognized Winbond's leadership and positive influence in corporate social
responsibility and sustainable development.

Future Outlook

Under the robust development of new applications such as 10T, Al and 5G, technology innovation leads to applications in
information security, smart cloud, terminal sensing and edge computing. Holding onto the beliefs in business continuity
and environmental sustainability, Winbond develops low power consumption, securing and highly efficient products
which offer clients the best solutions. Winbond also strives to create maximum value for shareholders, customers and
employees alike and aspires to become a hidden champion in providing sustainable semiconductors to enrich human life
and meets the expectations of society.

On behalf of the management team at Winbond, | would like to thank you for your continued support.

Chairman




Company Profile

1. Company History

Winbond was established in September 1987 and listed on Taiwan Stock Exchange in 1995, with headquarters in
Central Taiwan Science Park, Taichung, Taiwan.

Winbond is a specialty memory IC company engaged in design, manufacturing and sales services. From product
design, research and development, and wafer fabrication to the marketing of brand name products, Winbond
endeavors to provide its global clientele top quality memory solutions.

Winbond's major product lines include Code Storage Flash Memory, Specialty DRAM and Mobile DRAM. Our
advantage of technological autonomy and prudent capacity strategy enables us to build a highly flexible production
system and create synergy among product lines, which allows us to meet the diverse demands of customers while
building the brand image.

In the area of Code Storage Flash Memory products, we focus on the “low to medium density” market by offering a
full spectrum of Serial Flash products. Our Flash memory packages offer features such as low pin count, small size
and low cost. We also develop SPI NAND and SLC NAND flash products to meet client demands for code storage.
With considerable market share in computer peripheral markets, we also actively develop a diversity of flash memory
products for applications in mobile devices, consumer electronics, automotive electronics, loT and wearable devices.
Winbond specializes in the design of high-performance, low-power memory. With a 12-inch fab, we offer a whole
series of Specialty DRAM and Mobile DRAM products that target a top-tier clientele and quality-oriented applications.
Winbond’s products are used extensively in handheld devices, consumer electronics and computer peripherals. We
also focus on high-barrier, high-quality applications, such as KGD, automotive and industrial electronics.

To provide timely and respective services to clients around the world, Winbond has set up operations and distributor
networks in the USA, Japan, China, Hong Kong and Israel to serve clients better and expand the depth and breadth of
product sales. With regard to quality, Winbond implements rigorous process control and quality control,
strengthening yield analysis and supply chain management to satisfy customer needs. The long-standing efforts in
quality assurance have earned the Company a good reputation and resulted in the accreditation of ISO 9001,
1S026262, IATF 16949, QC 080000, ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001.

In the future, Winbond will continue to provide customer-oriented services and concentrate our resources on the
markets in which we have a competitive advantage. At the same time, riding on the strength of our advanced
semiconductor design and manufacturing know-how, coupled with the innovation and wisdom of our employees,
observing the core values of "accountability, innovation and synergy" and incorporating the corporate spirits of
"execution, innovation and passion" in all operational activities, Winbond will strive towards the goal of becoming a
world-class solution provider.

2. Major business development in the past year and up to the date of report

(1) With in-house developed 25nm DRAM process, we launched a series of products in 2019. The ongoing success of
these products continue to contribute to our business performance.

(2) With improved efficiency, the 12-inch FAB at Central Taiwan Science Park (CTSP) increased its output from 52,000
wafers per month to 54,000 wafers per month by the end of 2019.

3. Investment in affiliates in the past year and up to the date of report

For investments in affiliated enterprises, please see page 222~228 of this report
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2. Major business units and their key businesses

Unit Function

Auditing Department Planning and execution of internal audit operations.
Planning and execution of internal control self-assessment operations.

Review of company codes and rules.

Ll Eol A o

Administration Center Providing a safe and comfortable working environment in a most cost effective manner, and assisting
other business units to achieve the overall business goals of the company.

Providing software/hardware and IT systems, and assisting related business units to improve
productivity and business performance.

Providing legal and intellectual property consulting support and management, and assisting related
business units to operate and improve business performance.

Responsible for supply chain management and assisting other business units to achieve the company's
overall business goals.

N

w

»

Finance Center Planning and execution of accounting system and tax matters.
Planning and evaluation of budget and costs.
Planning and maneuvering of company funds and investment management.

Planning and execution of investors relations and shareholder services.

Sales Center In charge of worldwide sales (except for foundry).
New client development and new product promotion.
Responsible for the attainment of annual sales targets.
Management of dealers and distributors.

Collection of accounts receivable.

Quality & ESH Center Planning and execution of company quality policy.

Drafting and implementing quality indicators and maintaining quality system.

Elevating the quality and professional knowhow of employees and continuously improving the

quality of products through continuous improvement of quality management system and

employee training.

4. In charge of internal quality management and external quality assurance, reliability assurance
and handling of quality complaints.

5. Management of outsourcing quality.

6. Supervising the implementation of effective ESH plans and risk management measures,
establishing a work environment in compliance with environmental regulations and international
standards, and reducing the company's operational risks.

WINPT R WD PRI WD e

Production Control and Subcontractor
Management Center

. Production planning and execution and production-sales coordination.
. Planning and execution of logistics supply.

. Planning and execution of outsourcing capacity and production plan.

. Vendor management and quality control.

. Outsourcing process and production procedure streamlining.

. Import and verification of new IC assembly technology.

DRAM Business DRAM Product . Planning and execution of medium- and long-term DRAM strategies
Group Marketing Planning . Customer engagement, product advertising and marketing
Center . New DRAM product planning and product management

. Product mix optimization and capacity planning

. Strategic customer and third party partner relationship management
. Trend analysis of DRAM market.

. Troubleshooting of customer application problems and error analysis.

DRAM Product
Development Center

. Research and development of DRAM products.
. Improving the DRAM product design platform.

. Confirmation of product specifications and mapping market blueprint.

. Analysis of customer-reported failure.

. Resources planning and use for IC design and layout.

. Central planning of R&D manpower allocation and OEM project support.
. Planning and management of outside premises R&D personnel.

DRAM Product
Engineering and
Testing Engineering

. Verification of product performance
. Improvement of product yield
. Improvement of product quality

1
2
3
4
5
6
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
1
2
3. Improving the quality of DRAM products and enhancing competitiveness.
4
5
6
7
8
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
1
2
3

Center . Product failure analysis
. Efficient product testing
. Development of advanced product testing technology
. Process development validation
Memory IC Taichung Fab Memory |1. Planning of fab establishment, capacity and display.
Manufacturing Product . Analysis of fab budget/cost structure.
Business Group Manufacturing Center [3. General administration for fab preparation and equipment installation and planning of production

systems
4. Introduction of new products and new technologies and volume production.
5. Operation and maintenance of factory systems and fab equipment
6. Establishment of fab quality system.
7. Planning and risk management for factory systems and fab environmental health and safety systems
8. Energy conservation and waste reduction for factory and fab systems and compliance
9. Efficiency enhancement and automation for Fab Industry 4.0 precision manufacturing




Unit

Function

Memory Product
Process Integration
and Testing Center

Transfer and implementation of new processes/products

Planning and certification of yield and quality improvement processes
Planning and implementation of process monitoring system

Analysis and improvement of process optimization

Development and management of generative process

Planning and execution of trial production

Planning and management of trial production at China Walton plant
Installation and enhancement of automation for trial production

Intelligent
Manufacturing Center

Establishment and maintenance of fab automation related systems.
Establishment and maintenance of plant management information systems.
Establishment and maintenance of yield improvement systems.
Establishment and maintenance of automated handling and storage systems.
Establishment and maintenance of plant quality related systems.

. Establishment and maintenance of testing systems.

. Establishment and maintenance of packaging/testing outsourcing information system.
. Customer production and engineering report support.

. Development and applications of big data and artificial intelligence technology.

Kaohsiung Fab
Construction Planning
Taskforce

. Planning and execution of Kaohsiung fab construction.

Simulation and planning of capacity optimization.

. Implementation of new process and new products.

Flash Memory IC
Business Group

Flash Memory Product
Marketing Center

Planning of new flash products.
Development management of flash products.

. Promotion of flash products.
. Optimization of flash product mix.
. Trend analysis of flash market.

Flash Memory Product
Engineering and
Testing Engineering
Center

Design, testing and validation of flash memory products.

. Implementing volume production of new products and improving product yield, quality, costs and

process to meet customer demands.

Flash Memory
Development Center

[y

Providing high speed, high quality, low power and low voltage code storage memory with innovative

design and technology.
Developing competitive and value-added product design.
Creating user-friendly EDA/CAD solutions and environment to product design.
Producing key documents needed for product design.
Managing the designed IP and providing design service support.

Security Technology &
Solution Center

Development of InfoSec technology and strategic planning
Assistance in developing InfoSec technology
Development and promotion of security memory and security components

Technology R&D
Group

Code Storage Memory
Process Technology
Development Center

Developing new technologies to lift Winbond's standing in code storage memory market.

New technologies including but not limited to NAND, NOR and RRAM.

Design and development of memory cell and peripheral components.

Ensuring attainment of product yield and reliability targets and transferring to volume production.
Supporting customer product testing service and failure analysis.

Supporting company-wide SPICE model parameter extraction and TCAD component simulation.
Supporting company-wide ESD/LU design and product analysis

Advanced Process
Technology
Development Center

NOURWNRINOURWNREIWN R ULWN

Developing new technologies to lift Company's standing in low-density memory market.
Developing new technologies to lift Company's standing in working memory market.

New technologies include but are not limited to DRAM and 3D printing.

Design and development of memory cell and peripheral components.

Ensuring attainment of product yield and reliability targets and transferring to volume production.
Developing and supporting company-wide OPC technology.

Developing and supporting company-wide modular technology.
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Profile of Directors (2)

March 31, 2020

Has at least 5 years of work experience and meet

Meet the independence criteria

one of the following professional qualifications (Note 1)
An Instructor or |A Judge, Public |Have Work
Higher Position |Prosecutor, Experience in
in a Department|Attorney, the Area of
of Commerce, |Certified Public [Commerce,
Law, Finance, Accountant, or |Law, Finance, or Number of
Accounting, or |Other Accounting, or Other
Other Academic |Professional or |Otherwise Taiwanese
Criteria |Department Technical Necessary for Public
Name Related to the |Specialists Who |the Business of Companies
Business Needs |Has Passed a the Company 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 | Concurrently
of the Company [National Serving as an
in a Public or Examination Independent
Private Junior  |and Been director
College, College |Awarded a
or University Certificate in a
Profession
Necessary for
the Business of
the Company
Arthur Yu-Cheng
\ \ \% \% \ 2
Chiao
Yuan-Mow Su \Y \Y \ \ \Y \ \ \ \% \ \ -
Yung Chin \ \Y \Y \ Vv \ -
Francis Tsai Vv " Vv \Y \ \ Vv \ \ \ Vv Vv Vv R
Allen Hsu Vv Vv Vv \Y \ \ Vv \ \ \" Vv Vv Vv 1
Jerry Hsu v v|ivi|ivi|ivi]ivi]iv|v|v]|]v]v]vVv]|yv ]
Stephen T. Tso v v|iv]|vi|iv]vi]iv|v|v]|]v]v]vVv]yv 1
Wei-Hsin Ma v v v v v v v -
Chih-Chen Lin v viv|v]|vI]v]|v]|v]v]v]v]v]yv _
Walsin Lihwa v Vi vV ]V v A A
Corporation
(representative: i
Sophi Pan)

Note 1: If the director or supervisor meets any of the following criteria in the two years before being elected or during the term of office, please check "V" in the corresponding

boxes.

(1)Not an employee of the Company or any of its affiliates.
(2)Not a director or supervisor of the Company or any of its affiliates (except where the person is simultaneously an independent director of the Company and its parent

company, a subsidiary or another subsidiary of the same parent company appointed pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act or local regulations).
(3)Not a natural-person shareholder who holds shares, together with those held by the person's spouse, minor children, or held by the person under others' names, in an
aggregate number of 1% or more of the shares of the Company or ranks as one of its top ten shareholders.
(4)Not a manager listed in (1) or a spouse, relative within the second degree of kinship, or lineal relative within the third degree of kinship or closer to anyone listed in (2) or

(3).

(5)Not a director, supervisor or employee of an institutional shareholder holding directly 5% or more of the company's shares, being one of the top five shareholders, or
being appointed a director or supervisor of the company pursuant to Article 27, Paragraph 1 or 2 of the Company Act (except where the person is simultaneously an
independent director of the Company and its parent company, a subsidiary or another subsidiary of the same parent company appointed pursuant to the Securities and
Exchange Act or local regulations).

(6)Not a director, supervisor or employee of another company that has the same directors as the Company or is controlled by the same person that has more than half of
the voting power in the Company (except where the person is simultaneously an independent director of the Company or its parent company, a subsidiary or another

subsidiary of the same parent company appointed pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act or local regulations)

(7)Not a director, supervisor or employee of another company or institution that has the same chairman, president, or the equivalent or a spouse in one of the roles as the
Company (except where the person is simultaneously an independent director of the Company and its parent company, a subsidiary or another subsidiary of the same
parent company appointed pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act or local regulations)

-10-




(8)Not a director, supervisor, manager or shareholder holding 5% or more of the Company's shares of certain company or institution that has a financial or business
relationship with the Company (except where the certain company or institution holds 20% or more but no more than 50% of the Company's shares and is simultaneously
an independent director of the Company and its parent company, a subsidiary or another subsidiary of the same parent company appointed pursuant to the Securities
and Exchange Act or local regulations).

(9)Not a professional who provides audit or receives no more than NT$500,000 in cumulative compensation in the last two years for commercial, legal, financial, or
accounting services to the Company or its affiliates, nor is an owner, partner, director, supervisor, or manager, or the spouse of any of the above, of a sole proprietorship,
partnership, company, or organization that provides such services to the Company or its affiliates. However, exception applies to members of a remuneration committee,
a take-over bid review committee, or a special committee for merger and acquisition exercising their authority pursuant to provisions of the Securities and Exchange Act
or the Business Mergers and Acquisitions Act.

(10)Not a spouse or relative within the second degree of kinship to any other directors.

(11)Not been a person in any of the circumstances listed in Article 30 of the Company Act.

(12)Not a governmental, juridical person or its representative as defined under Article 27 of the Company Act.

Note 2: Mr. San-Cheng Chang resigned as an independent director from Winbond's Board of Directors on November 16, 2019.

Profile of Directors (3)

The board member diversity policy stated in Article 20 of the Company's corporate governance principles is as follows:

The Company's Board of Directors reports to the Shareholders' Meeting. Operations and arrangements under the Company's
corporate governance policy shall ensure that directors will exercise their authority and duty in accordance with laws and
regulations, the Company's Articles of Incorporation or resolutions adopted in shareholders' meetings.

The structure of the Board of Directors should take into account the company operations, development and business scale,
shareholding of major shareholders and diversity of board members, for example, different professional backgrounds, gender or
field of work. The Company should select an appropriate number of board members, which should not be less than five, given
consideration to actual operational needs,

The members of the Board of Directors should be selected with an emphasis on gender equality, and general knowledge, skills and
the competencies required performing their duties. To achieve an ideal level of corporate governance, the Board of Directors as a
whole should be equipped with the following abilities:

I. Ability to make sound business judgments.

Il. Ability to conduct accounting and financial analysis.
Il. Ability to manage the business.

IV. Ability to manage a crisis.

V. Industry knowledge.

VI. An understanding of international markets.

VII. Leadership ability.

VIII. Decision-making ability.

The Board of Directors is Winbond's highest governing body. The 11th-term Board of Directors consists of 10 directors (see Profile
of Directors (1)). The ages of board members cover different generations and their professional background covers different
industries. All board members possess the ability to perform their duties and to give constructive feedback and make
recommendations for corporate strategies. The Board has 4 independent directors and 3 female directors. Directors who do not
hold managerial positions in the Company make up more than two thirds of board members. All board members are highly
experienced in business operations. The only institutional director on the board - Walsin Lihwa Corporation is a founder of the
Company, also the largest shareholder and a director since Company's inception.

Management goals for the board diversity policy: According to Article 20 of the Winbond Corporate Governance Best Practice
Principles, in addition to the existing mechanisms to maintain participation of female directors and recruit top talent from different
generations and professional fields, Winbond will hold an election to replace all existing directors in 2020. The number of
institutional shareholder representatives will be raised so to enable a rotation of institutional shareholder representatives that will
facilitate succession planning for the management and achieve sustainable development.

-11 -



Implementation of board member diversity policy

Percentage All directors
Background Percentage of T
by gender Percentage of | . Age distribution
i . directors who
Title Name Gender - independent
. Finance/ . are also Aged 50 | Aged
Business . Industry . directors
Leadership Accoun- | Information Male | Female employees and 50 and
management knowledge .
ting over below
Chairman | ArthurYu-Cheng |, v v v v v
Chiao
Vice Yuan-Mow Su M v v v v v
Chairman
Director Yung Chin F \ \ \ Vv Vv
Ierependent Francis Tsai M v v v v v
director (Term: 6 years)
Independent | Allen Hsu
director (Term: 6 years) M v v v v
Independent | Jerry Hsu 70% 30% 40% 20% 70% 30%
. M \ \% \% \%
director (Term: 6 years)
Ierependent Stephen T. Tso M v v v v
director (Term: 1 year)
Director Wei-Hsin Ma F V V Vv V V
Director Chih-Chen Lin M \ \ \ \ Vv
Walsin Lihwa
Director Corporation F v v v v
(Representative:
Sophi Pan)

Note: Mr. San-Cheng Chang resigned as an independent director from Winbond's Board of Directors on November 16, 2019.
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2. Profile of President, Vice Presidents, Assistant Vice Presidents, and Department and Branch Managers

March 31, 2020

IShares held by spouse|

Shares held in the

Other manager who is

Date Shares held and minor children | name of others the spouse or a relative
Title Nationality | Name | Gender X Main work (education) experiences Other positions within second degree | Note
% % % elation
Shares (Note 2) Shares (Note 2) Shares (Note 2) Title | Name ship
Arthur eMaster in Electrical Engineering and Researcher of Note
CEo ROC Yu-Cheng M |2005.08.01]63,472,995 1.59% |11,778,797| 0.30% - - | Management College of Washington University  [Note 3 None | None | None | =
Chiao eChairman of Walsin Lihwa Corp.
eChairman of Winbond Electronics
Yuan-Mow #MSEE, University of Southern California Corporation America
Deputy CEO ROC Su M .06.. » .02% - - - - |eVice Chairman and Deputy CEO of Winbond eDirector of Winbond Electronics (Suzhou, None | None | None | None
2017.06.13 801,279 0.02% hi f by f bond El (Suzhou)
(Note 4) Electronics Corp. Ltd.
eDirector of Winbond Electronics (HK) Ltd.
«Ph.D. in Electrical Engineering, U.C. Berkeley and
Tung-Yi Master in Management Science, Stanford
Deputy CEO ROC Chan M 2009.02.09 901,000 0.02% - - - - | University Note 5 None | None | None | None
(Note 5) ePresident of Winbond Electronics Corp.(incumbent)
*BCD CEO
Pei-M *M.S.E.E., University of Detroit, USA
ei-Ming X
Chairman of Nuvoton Technology Co.
President ROC Chen M |2005.10.01| 362,767 - - - - | &Y Note 6 None |None | None | None
(Note 6) eVice President of DRAM Product Business Group of
ote
Winbond Electronics Corp.
ePresident of Winbond Electronics (Suzhou)
Ltd.
«MS in Engineering Technology of National Taiwan i i o
Chenak University of ci ool «Chairman of Callisto Holding Limited
eng-Kun niversity of Science and Technoloj
Vice President ROC nene kgl |2006.11.01| 1,684,607  0.04% | 175978| 0.00% - | University N 008y eDirector of Callisto Technology Limited | None |None | None | None
Lin eDivision Director and Assistant Vice President of N i
N . X eDirector of Pine Capital Investment Ltd.
Winbond Electronics Corporation " .
eDirector of Hwa Bao Botanic
Conservation Corp.
«PhD. in Material Science and Engineering of
University of Utah
Chin-F eVice President of Winbond Electronics Sales &
. . in-Fen X
Vice President ROC reai M 2011.11.01| 335,000 0.01% - - - - | Marketing None None | None | None | None
sai
«CTO of General Energy Solutions Inc.
eVice President of Eversol Corp.
«Deputy Divisional Director, UMC
«Ph.D. in Electrical Engineering, U.C. Berkeley § o
X N . eDirector of HiTi Digital Inc.
eVice President of Embedded Memory Business
s £ Winbond Electronics C director of Green River
. . roup of Winbond Electronics Corp.
Vice President ROC IPei-Lin Pai M [2014.10.01| 191,608 0.00% 9,000 0.00% - | Broueo P Holding Co., Ltd. None | None | None | None
eVice President of FocalTech Systems Co., Ltd.
X R eSupervisor of Excelsior Bio-System
eVice President of Nanya Technology Co., Ltd. X
X X X Incorporation
ePresident of Ascent Semiconductor Corporation
Vice President,
Chief Financial .
Jessica
Officer, and «MBA, Indiana University
ROC Huang F [2015.04.01| 555290 0.01% - - - - N N . Note 7 None | None | None | None
Corporate (Note 7) sChief Auditor of Winbond Electronics Corp.
ote
Governance eVice President, Citibank
Officer

-13-




"19013J0

8u13UN0228 431D puE D10 [BDUBULY JAIYD QuapIsald IDIA Juelsisse ‘Quapisatd ddIA Quapisald Suipnioul ‘TOETO00Z60 -1Z-ues-8uayz-1eD-1e] 19333] ddueuld Jo AISIUIAl 3Y} Ul papiAoid uoie}a.dialul Y3 Se SWes sy} paulyap si Juswaseue|y T 310N

JERT!
*dJ0) $21U0J123|3 PUOGUIAN JO J01I3IQ (TT @10N) mc;::ow“m
suoy | SUON [ auon [ auoN auoN |euoIssajo0ud pue ‘JaSeue| Joluas ‘JaSeuepe| - - - - - 200'vS T0'€0°020C 4 Buep 204 W.;u pue
Ayisianiun 1ya8uay) [euonen ‘SuilunNodde Ul YN e Suag-ulyd
Joyau1g Ayndag
uoneiodio)y
910
$21U0J323|3 PUOQUIAN JO BAIINIEXT ABojouyda ] (ot 210N) JuapIsald
auoy | SUON [ auon [ suoN QUON - - - - %000 TEV'ELT TO'70°STOT W suayd 204
Aindaq pue ‘gA JuelsISsy “10303.1g UOISIAIge 5 90IA JUELSISSY
uos-0
Aysisaniun Sueywe] “Suz'3ge S70A
uonesodio)
J0}ONPUODIWIS 3dUel||lig JO 1019311 UOISIAIQ JOIUISe
*au| sa1ojouyda] I1sid] Jo J03024IQ UOISIAI] 103(0ude
oerl JuapIsald
QuoN | SUON [ duoN | BuoN SUON uonesodio) | - - - - %100 €12'60€ TO0T'¥10C 4l T 204 317 eSISSY
$21U0JII3|F PUOQUIAN JO 103231 UOISIAIge : : )
Aysianiun
Sunjoeiy) [euolien ‘s21U0J323|3 JO 9INISU| “S N e
Ansianiun ['ENN JuapIsald
QuoN | SUON | BUON | BuoN SUoN - - %000 |€68°0T %100 LT0TEE T0°L0°CT0C W 204
Buny Suay) [euonen ‘SunaauiSu3l 211993 Ul SINe 8ueisH-oe DI/ JUBISISSY
Hqwo Auewuan
$21U0J123[3 PUOQUIAA 4O J0YRJIge
ueder uonesodio)
Aysianiun eny Suny) ‘quswaseue|n JuapIsald
BUON | SUON [ 3UON | 3UON $21U0J33|3 PUOqUIA JO J03I3.Ige - - %000 |0009 %000 066'89 9T'T0'CT0C W 8unH App3 plo}]
wajsAs pue Suiaauidul [eliasnpul Ul 'S Ale 301\ JUBISISSY
‘P31 (MH) $21U043I3|3 PUOUIM JO J0303IQe
2
(noyzns) $21U0J123|3 PUOQUIAN JO J0IDAUITe
31N111sU| Yoieasay
pue A3ojouyda] |euisnpu] 4aauidu3 Jojunfe ; , Suem juapisald
auoN | SUON [ 3UON | BuON SUON - - %100 |689°C0C %200 00Z'LT8 T0°80°500¢ 4 plo}]
Ausianun UenA-1ys 301\ JUBISISSY
eny Suis] [euoneN ‘Bul@aulSul 011293 Ul ‘S Ne
*dJ0) $21U0J1I3[30DIIAl BI[ZY JO JUBPISAIJ DDA
“au|
e21IBWY UoNEeJodio) SIIU0IIB|F| S3IS0[0UYID] YSBIIXDN JO JUBPISId JIA dAIINIAXTe sjaed 192110
BUON | SUON [ 3UON | SUON - - - - %100 000°052 0°80°800C 4 v'sn
PUOQUIAN JO JUBPISId pue 101031 eolawy "dio) uoof8ung ssauisng Jalydy
$31U0J1I3|3 PUOGUIAN JO JUSPISI DI\ dAIINIAXTe
Asjaydag "N ‘Busauidu] |e21129]3 Ul JSISe| e
1YL| ‘sali01el0qeT YoIedsay
|e21WaY) pUe [eLIdl.IAl JO Jaydieasay JuelSISSye
*dJ0) $21u04193|3 ( )
6 910N
auoy | dUON [ auon [ auoN 3uoN puUOqUIM JO 3AIINDAXT [ed1UYda | Andag | - - - - - 114 TO'TT'610C ] 7 en-uam 204 JuBpISaLd DIA
pue ‘qUapIsald 3IA JUEISISSY ‘1010310 UOISIAIge
Ayisianiun uemie]
Jeuonien ‘SuliaauiBul pue 93UBIS [BLIDIBIA Ul SIN®
*du0) ASojouyda (8 @210N)
QuoN | SUON [ duoN [ SuoN 8 JON | UOJOANN JO 133USD UOIEASIUIPY JO JUSPISDId DDIA® | - - - - %100 708°0¢T T0'80°610¢ 4 uey plo] JUSpISald DIA
Ausianiun 8uay) Suny) [euonen ‘vgine unj-8ueisy
diys
“ |weN | 3L (z310N) saJeys (z:@10N) saJeys (z210n) saleys
uone|s; x x x QQ
21ulodde
910N | 23489p puodas uiym suonisod Jayi0 s9JualIadxa (UOIBINP3) YoM UIR|A| P g 1spusn aweN Ayjeuonen EIR
(1 & 10 3snods SJ9YJ0 JO dWEeU | uaJp|iyd Joulw pue play saueys

sI oym Jadeuew JayiQ

ay3 ut pjay saeys

asnods Aq p|ay saJeys

-14 -



*(T) 40392417 4O 9|1j01d J9pUN GT 0N 01 JaJaY :ZT 910N
'0Z0T ‘T Y24eA Suiiess 19210 Suinunoade Jaiyd pajulodde si Suep Suad-ulr *SA :TT 910N
$950|2sIp 3|qe) aA0ge 3y "6TOT ‘€T 4990300 01 GTOZ ‘T |14dy WOy PUOGUIAA 3B dA JUEISISSE UB SEM SUdyD SUOS-OA "IN :0T 930N
'6T0C ‘T Joaquianop Suipiels Juapisald adia se pajuiodde sem N enH-USAN “JIAl 16 910N
‘uoljesod.io) Juawisanu| Suoj Suos Jo uewliey) pue {(*y'H) SJIU0J1I|3 PUOqUIA PUE ‘edBWY uolielodio) SJ1U0I1I3|] PUOGUIAA ‘UOIIEI0dI0)) [BUOITRUISIU| pUOqUIA ‘Ueder uoljelodio) $o1u04129|3
puoquip ““p17 s8ulpjoH dnouo yiewpue] ‘paywi] SUIP|oH 03s!||e) ‘HGWD AUBWISD $DIUOJ1I3|T PUOGUIAN JO J01D3JIQ SB A]JUDLINDUOD SAAIDS U4 UnA-SuelsH "IN "6TOZ ‘T 3sn8ny Suiniels juapisald 201A se pajuiodde sem ueq unjp-8ueisH “J|Al :g 910N
D77 puogp|o9 jo Ja8eue|y pue “dio)
JUWIISIAU| UIX UIYD pue ‘0D SunleyJeln Yaeas Jo Josiaiadng °p1] JuswisaAu| [eude) auld JO JUapIsald 'pi7 SUIp|OH JUBWISAAU| UOIOANN PUE ““P3T (NOYZNS) $21U0JIID|F PUOCUIA ‘BIIIBWY uollelodio) $21U0J129|3 puoquipn ‘ueder uoljesodio)
$21U0J323[3 PUOqUIA\ P37 ASojouydal puoquIA) “("°'H) SIIUOIIID|F PUOGUIA JO J03IBIIQ SB A[JUSLINDUOD SAAJDS SuenH BIISSf 'S|N "0Z0Z ‘T Y2JBA UO 1921)j0 Suizunodde Jaiyd se uolisod JUalinduod a3yl JO panaljal sem Sueny eIISSIf “S|A i/ 910N
*p17 [2e4s| ASojouyda) uojoAnN pue ‘eduswy uoljesodio) ASojouyda] uojoanN “pa (uayzuays) ASojouyda) uoloanp “p17 (8uoy SuoH) ASojouyda |
uojoANN “p17 (1ey8ueys) ASojouyosa uojoANN ‘ealsaWY uolelodio) $I1U0JII9|T PUOGUIA “PIT (NOYZNS) SIIUOIIIB|T PUOGUIAN JO J03DRIIQ PUE “pi] ASojouyda] puoquIpA JO UBWIIRYD SB A]JUS1INIU0D SaAIaS Uy SullN-19d JIN “Auedwo) a3 jo
J98euBW B Se 92IAIS SIY SulINp UOIIEWIOJUI SIY SSO|ISIP 3|qE) dA0GE By "0Z0T ‘T Y24elAl Suiliels Juapisaud 03 1030aJ1p [e21UyIS] Wody pajowodd si aH “6T0Z ‘TE AINT 01 S00Z ‘T 4990120 WO pUOGUIA 1B JuapIisald 3DIA B sem uay) SulN-19d "IN 19 910N
‘panwin
JuswaSeue|y ade|diayiey pue “p)] JUBWISAAU| [eyde) auld “dio) JaAlY |njaead “p1] sSulp|oH dnoJo suewpue] ‘Ueder uoielodio) SI1U0JIID|F PUOGUIA ‘BIIIBWY UOolIel0di0) SIIUO0JII3|T PUOqUIA) ‘Uolieiodio) [euoieulalu| puoquip “dio)
emy7 uis|epn “ouj ‘Suliaaulsul padoueApY UO}EAA O 1030241Q PUE ‘4INJIID PalelSalu| (NoYzns) pUOGUIAN JO UewWIRYD Se A[IUS1INdU0d SaAIRs uey) IA-SU0] "IN "0Z0T ‘T Ydten Sunels 03) Aindap o3 Juapisald wouy pajowoud st ueyd IA-8uny "I :G 910N
'spua Auedwo) ay} Jo 122140 |elaSeuRW B SE 9DIAJSS SIY 3P 3Y1 03 dn UOIBWIOLUI SIY S3SO[ISIP 3|qe} dA0qe 3yl "0Z0T ‘67 Aenigad 01 ZT0g ‘€T dunf woij puoquipy 18 03D Aindap e sem NS MOA-UBNA “JIA| i 910N
*(T) $40302.1Q 4O 3|1401d J9pUN € ON 01 J3J3Y ‘€ 910N
'020T ‘1€ YoeN ‘Aepsan] jo se saleys €6T°000°086°€ 4O SaJeys uowwod Sulpuelsino pue panss| uayl uo paseq sem ,a8ejuadiad Suipjoyaleys, iz 910N

‘spua Auedwio) ay) o Ja8euew e se 3dIAISS SIY d1ep dy} 0} dn UOEW.IOM

-15-



*(4e2 pue ‘Asoniwiiop ‘spuadins ‘@ouemo|e [e1dads ‘@auemojje uoneliodsuely Suipnioul) JeaA 1sed sy ul $10123J1p JO dsuadxa ssauisng S SIYy] i 910N
'S9]1BWIISS 2Je 9A0JE 3|qe] 8y} Ul saJnSiy 3y L "pap1dap uaag jou sey aaAojdwa ue
SE P3)JOM 0S| OYM $1032341p [BNPIAIPUI 03 Uoljesuadwod ‘4odal ay) JO 31ep 3y3 JO SY "PuUBSNOYI 6TO'PTSLN 39 ||!M ‘Wjoid paiipne ay3 uo paseq ‘YaIym ‘uoiielaunuwial 1030341p 10y UolINGUISIp %T e panoidde sey s10303.1p JO pJeoq 3yl ‘6T0OT 104 i€ 210N
*anoqe paqiasap se uonelidosdde ainbas 1ey) suoisuad ayy 01 uonippe ul me| 01 Suipiodde pied aq p|noys 1ey) suoisuad jo sadAy Jay10 2
10y SPJEPUE]S J0gET 3y} Japun Wa)sAs uoisuad pjo 8y} 03 Juensind 99111WWOD UoIsIAISdNS UOISUd S,Aueduwio) a3 JO SWeu aYy) Japun UBMIe] JO jueg 18 Junodde ue ojul payisodap Alejes Ajyruow ay) Jo %z 01 |enba junowy ‘q
"19Y UOISUa4 J0geT 2y} Japun waisAs uoisuad mau ay) 01 Juensind sduelnsu| JogeT Jo Nealng ay) 1e Junodde ue ojul pied Alejes Ajyiuow ayi Jo %9 01 |enbs junowy ‘e
1S9PN[2Ul UOISUSJ :Z 910N

‘(spsemau pue sasnuoq ‘Aed aaueianas ‘Aed [euonippe ‘Asejes Suipnjoul) JeaA 1sed ayi ul J012941p Y1 0] UOIIBIBUNWSY T 910N

0 : (1ueynsuod aaAo|dwa-uou ue se Sunoe ‘39) SIWI|21LIS PAIEPI|OSUOI JedA 1531 9] Ul SaIUBdWOD ||B 0] PAJapUaJ SIIIAISS J0) $10103.1p AQ PaAIDIRJ UOIBIBUNWSL ‘DA0QEe PasO|dsIp se1dadxg '
‘SPaaU |eN1Ie JO S I1suodsaJ ul sadueyd 129|jaJ 03 paisnipe aq Aew saueles “a|didulid Ajijenba ay3 mojjoy pue ‘ainjeu
s,pJeoq ay1 yHm jualsisuod yoeoidde |e189]|0d e Aq papIoap aq p|noys salle|es [eNpIAIpU| "UOIIEN|BAS 9dUBWIO0ad pJeoq Jo s}nsaJ ay) pue spiepuels Alisnpul ay3 uo paseq aq pue ‘suejd ssauisng w.al-1oys pue -Suo| s, Auedwod ayy
uo puadap p|noys uonesuadwod pue sallejes ‘s101934ip Juapuadapul pue $10123JIp 10} Uoijeiaunwal 10) 1ey) Ajdldxa 91e)s $1019941Q JO pJeog ay) JO UOIIEN|BAT 9JUBWIOLDG PUB $10123JIQ JO UOIBISUNWY JO) S3INY puoquim 3yl T
3ueyd
8Buayp-ues| 4032841 JUSpUdapU|
onz|
- S6°0 LL°0 - - - - - - - - S6°0 LL°0 €8T 65T 169 8TY's - - €ET'E €59 uenyd-eq 10323.1Q Juapuadapul
nsH Auar[  10329941q Juspuadapul
nsH ua||y| 10312241Q uspuadapul
1es| sipueld|  1o3dauiq Juspuadapul
ued lydos| annejussaiday
uonesodio)
uonelodio)
eMyr uis|epy 10309410
un
uayd-yiyd 1012310
BIAl UISH-I3MW 10302410
0869C 08y SE'Y - 0LT - 0LT €ce S6 7ST8Y T09‘ev | €60 980 75€T 091°C 8YE6 1658 - - - -
uly) Sunp Joyauig
ns|
MO|N-UBNA| uewuiey) 0|,
oely)
Suayd-np
anyuy uewtey?)
el © el el el © el el
Q jo Q i I3 o i3 o
-1 £ £ 2 1 £ 1 2
© © © © © © © ©
) % = | 5| = 23 ) 23 23 23 iy -y
22 S 8 2 & s g2 [ 22 2 g 22 2 g
(] 2] [2) o o o o o o o
(gsroN)Aue | S Z 2 gz 2 gz o gz 2 8z 2 gz 2 g z| 2 gz | 2
£ 2 £z 2 £ 2 5 £z 8 £ 2 £ 2 8 £ z| 2 sz | 8
J1 ‘salelpisqns| w © < o € < o € o o € < o c o € c o € < o € <
2L 9 W 2 m W 2 m £ 2 m W 2 m W 2 m W 2 m W 2 m W
ueyiapo | 5 £ (9 910N) § 5 § 5 = § 5 5§ § 5 § 5 § 5
S933S9AUl £ & SUCIEMNY & & g% 25 25 ] S5
wonul | £ B ] £ £ E g £ £ £ g £ S £ g
10 Auedwos | 8 pajepl|osuod puoquim 8 3 S 8 3 8 S awen E
juazed < uy sajuedwod ||y < < < < =4 =z <
Wwo.j paAIadal ( (g @10N)
£ 310N) (%) 210 910 210
uonesaUNWaY > (€ @10N) (z @10N) (3) 2uemoyje (£ @10N) (%) (7 10N ( 210N (z @10N) (T 210N)
- Il
awlooul xej-Jaye (@) asuadxa (0) uonesaunwal (v)
(9) uonesuadwod saAo|dw3 (4) uoisuaqd |enads pue 1j04d Jou xej-uaye (g) uoisuad
01(9) pue (4) , 3 d ssaulsng s,40302.10 uolnesaunway
3)10) ) &) snuoq hieres 1o omewe
e se g+)+g+
‘(v) |e101 Jo oney 29Ao|dwa ue se paniadal Aed Qo+a+y uoljeJaunwal $,10123.41Q

000TSLN :HUN ‘6TOT ‘T€ 42qWadag
$10103.1p JUapuUadapuUl pUE S103I3JIP 0} UOKBIBUNWRY T

sieaA Jua23aJ Ul sjuapisald 1A pue ‘QuapIsald ‘SI0SIAIRANS ‘S103034Ip 01 suollesaunway (||1)

-16 -



*6T0T ‘9T J2qWIBAON UO S40123J1Q JO PJeOg S,PUOCUIA\ WOJ) 1019341p Juapuadapul ue se paudisas Suey) Susyd-ues “J|A :6 210N

‘salieIpIsqns ueyl Jaylo Auedwo)
3Y1 JO 93152AUI UE JO JaSeuew J0o JosiAIadns ‘103daJIp e se SulIAIaS J0193J1p 31 Aq panladal sasuadxe ssaulsng pue (s1osiaiadns pue sio3da4ip ‘saahojdwa jo uonesuadwod Suipnjoul) uonesuadwod ‘Aed sueaw uonesaunwal ayl ‘q

‘Auedwio) 3y} Jo SaLIeIPISGNS UBY) JY10 S9ISAAUI W) SAAI2IAL Auedwo) dy3 JO J01I3IP B UOIIRISUNWAL JO JUNOWE BY) SMOYS P[alj Sy " :8 0N
‘puesnoyl /8€‘9GZ TSLN JO SIUBWILIS [BIDUBULS SUO[E-PUEIS GTOT 9Y) WIOJ) SWO0dUI Xe)-191Je S, Auedwo) aY] Uo paseq pale|najed i/ 910N
*(Auedwo) ayy Suipnour) S)UBWSILIS PAIEPI|OSUOI A} Ul SAlURdWOD || WOy J01D34Ip 3y} 0} Aed |10} BY] 19 210N

‘uoleJauNWaJ 3yl ul papn|oul 8¢ OS|e p|noys aseaJldul
|eaided ysed y3nouyl paguIasqns $)201S pue pJeme y201s paidliisal ‘suondo 3o03s aaAojdwa Suipnjoul JuawAed paseq-aieys, Japun paziudodas sasuadxa Asejes ‘zSy4| 01 Sulpiodde ‘uonippe uj “Jed pue ‘Alojiwiop ‘spuadis ‘@auemojje |eldads
‘@auemo|je u

1neyiodsues) ‘spaemal ‘sasnuoq ‘Aed saueianas ‘Aed |eu

1ippe ‘Asejes Suipnjoul ‘(Jje1s pue 1ad1))o [euadeuew Jaylo ‘quapisaid 321A ‘quapisaid jo u

1sod ay1 Suipnjour) Auedwo) ayi jo aaAojdwa os|e si oym J0323.1p 2yl 01 sAed ||y :§ 10N

-17 -



:s9pn|o!

uolsusd :Z 910N

-1eaA 3sed ayj ul Juapisaud 221 4o Juapisaid ayy Aq paniadal Aed aduesanas pue ‘Aed jeuonippe ‘Alejes :T 210N

1321430
92UBUIDINOY d3es0di0)
Bueny edissar| pue ‘422140 SuiUN0Y
$914D 4310 [e1oURULY
914D Judpisald I
(01 210N)
JuapIsald @
N7 enH-uap
led un-1ad 1uspisald 9y,
90v'€ 9T'6 €88 0 17474 0 vy S8T'v9 S8T'V9 98 S€9 €18°0S 819'SY 1Bs] ua4-uiysy 1uapIsald IA
u1] 8uny-8usyd juaplisald IA
(6 210N)
JUapISald IA
ue4 unj-Sueisy
(8 @10N)
JuapIsald ol
uay) BullN-1ad
ueyd 1A-Sung JuapIsald
NS MOIA-UBNA 03D Andag
oely) uayd-nA Inyuy [oE )]
(s @10N) H03s used P0Is | ysed (5 @10N) (5 @0N) (5 @10N)
310 Sjuawalels sjusawalels SUENEE sjusawWa)els
(£ ®10N) 3l 1€} puoquiny | (S S1ON) Susweiels 3l 1€} S 3 1€} pUOGUIM ! it pUoqUIM
Aue y1 ‘saiielpisgns pajepijosuod pa1epI|0SU0D puoquUIM pajepijosuod paiepijosuod pajepijosuod
Uey JBY1o SI31SDAUI JO [ Ul saluedwod ||y ur sa1uedwon ||y ul sajuedwod ||y | saluedwod ||y ul sajuedwod ||y aweN 3L
Auedwod juased wouy (9910N) (%)
paAl@dal uojeIaUNWSY 101d 19U Xe3-13e 4O (v ®10N) (€ @10N) (z @10N) (T 210N)
X (@) uonesuadwod asAojdwz (D) @2uemojje [e1dads pue snuog (g) uoisuad (v) Asejes
98ejuadsad e se Q+J+9+V

000'T$IN HUN '6T0T 'T€ 499w
juapIsald 9IA pue Juapisald 0} suoleIBUNWRY T

‘papN|aul OS|e SEM S3LIBIPISGNS UBYY JOYI0 SI9ISIAUI WOUY J03I3JIP Yoea Ag PaAIadas UuoIleIaunwal ‘uoijesaunwal jo agues ay3 Suiie|najed uaypn :931oN
papnjul os| Y113y lwoy Py panl ! ! ¥ Y3 sulienajes usy,

a|doad zT ajdoad zT a|doad zT s|doad 7T G
000°000°00T $LN Uey) Ja1ea10

(8n1sNn12x3) 000°000°00T $LN ~ (2AISN|2UI) 000°000°0S $LN
(2AI1sN9X3) 000°000°0S $LN ~ (3AISN|aUI) 000°000°0E SLN

uonesodio) emyr
uIs|lep\ ‘NS MOIN-UBNA ‘Oely) Suayd-np Jnyuy
uiyd sunp uiyd sunp (2AIsN|2X3) 000°000°ST $LN ~ (2AISN|2UI) 000°000°0T $LN

NS MON-UBNA ‘OBIYD SUBYD-NA INYLY (2AIsnjoxa ) 000°000°0€ $LN~ (2AISN|aUI) 000°000°ST $LN

(9AIsNjoX3) 000°000°0T $LN ~ (2AISN|aUI) 000°000°S $LN

(9AI1SN|9X3) 000°000°S $LN ~ (9AISN|oUI) 000005 E $LN

A , , , A ’ ’ nsH A4ar ‘nsH ua||y nsH A3r ‘nsH
nsH AJar ‘NSH U3||y ‘1eS] SIDUBIY ‘BN UISH-I9, nsH AdJar ‘nsH ud||y ‘1es] sioues 005" ~ ‘000"
H [ ‘NSH U3||V ‘1esL s 4 "IN UISH-I9M H ['NSH U3||y “1esL sl 4 “esy sipuels Uiy BUNA “OBIYD SUBYI-NA INYLY uB||Y “1esL siaueid ‘oe1y) BuayD-NA INYPY (9AI1SN|9X3) 00000 € $LN ~ (dAISN|2UI) 000000T $LN
Suewy Susyd-ues 3ueyd Bueyd Buey) Buayd-ues ‘os] °| uaydaas
‘os| 1 uaydals ‘(ued 1ydos :aAnejuasaidal) 8usyd-ues ‘os) *| uaydais ‘uonelodiod 3uayD-ues ‘os| °| uaydals ‘uonesodiod emyn ‘uonelodio emyr uisje/ ‘Ui usYd-YIyd n|9X?) 000000°Z $LN~ (3AISN[aUI) 000°000'T $LN
uonesodio) emyrm uislepd ‘Ul uayd-yiyd|  BMUIT UISIEAN “UIT USYD-YIYD ‘BN UISH-IDM | UISIEAN “UIT UBYD-YIYD ‘BN UISH-I9M ‘NS MOIN-UBNA ‘BN UISH-1I9M “UIYD BUNA ‘NS MOIN-UBNA
ued 1ydos :aAiejuasasdas ued 1ydos :aAiejuasatdas ued 1ydos :anizeuasaldal L,
{ueq 1ydos ) {ueq 1ydos ) (ued ydos ) 000'000'T$LN Mo[og
uoljesodio) emyi uis|epn uoljesodio) emyi] uis|epn uollelodio) emyr uisjepy
(210N) S921S9AUI ||B PUB PUOGUIA\ puoquIp SJUBWIAILYS PAIEPI|OSUOD Ul S9lURdWOD ||y puoquip
J03123uUl
(9+4+3+0+D+9+Y) O |BI0L (a+d>+g+V) o |e101 P

yoea 0} pied uoljesaunwal jo aguey

403123lIp JO saweN

-18-



‘papN|oul OS|e SeM SILIBIPISANS UBYY JAYI0 SI9ISIAUI WOJ) SUdpIsald ad1A pue Juapisald Ag paAiadal uolesaunwal ‘uolelaunwal Jo agued ay} Suije|ndjed Uy ;930N

9|doad oT 9|doad oT |exol
000°000°00T $LN Uy} J31ealn
(@Aisnjoxa ) 000°000°00T SLN~ (@AIsnjoul) 000°000°0S SIN
(@AIsnjoxa ) 000°000°0S SLN~ (@AIsnpUT) 000°000°0€ SIN
uey) IA-8Un1 ‘NS MOA--UBNA “OB1YD BUSYD-NA INYUY uey) IA-8Un] ‘NS MON-UBNA “OB1YD BUSYD-NA INYUY (@AIsnjoxa ) 000°000°0€ SLN~ (@AIsnPUT) 000°000°ST SIN
‘led UIN-194 ‘Uay) BUIN-1ad ‘Ul Suny-8uayd ‘led Ul-13d ‘uay) SUIN-1ad (3N1sn|axa ) 000°000°ST SLN~ (@AIsnjaul) 000°000°0T SIN
Bueny eaissar ‘les| ua4-ulyd Sueny eaissar ‘les| ua4-uly) ‘ur] Suny-Susy) ('@AIsNPX3 ) 000‘000°0T SLN~ (@AIsn|dul) 000°000°S SLN
(@N1sn|axa ) 000°000°S $IN~ (3AIsnjdul) 000°00S°E SIN
ey unp-Sueisy ueg unp-ueisy (@AISNPX3 ) 000°00SE SN~ (dAISNPUL) 000°000°C $LN
(®Nisnjoxa) 000°000°C $LN~ (@AIsnjaul) 000°000°T $IN
N7 enH-Uam N7 enH-usm 000°000°T$LN Moj2g
(910N) S@9159AUI ||B pUB PUOQUIA puoquip sjuapisasd
s1uapisald 321A pue syuapisald Jo ssweN 92IA pue sjuspisasd o) pied uonessunwal Jo aguey

‘Auedw o) ay1 jo Ja8euew e se IJINIBS

$350|9sIp 9|qe} dA0GE 3y ‘6TOT ‘T 42qWIA0N Suipiels Juapisald 3diA se pajuiodde sem N eNH-USAN “JIAl (0T 310N

‘Auedwo) ay3 jo ua8euew e se 31AJ3S SIY SulINP UOIIBWIOJUI SIY S3S0|ISIP 3|qe) 3A0de 3y "6T0Z ‘T 3sN3ny Suiliels juapisaid 201A se pajulodde sem ueq uni-SuelsH "I 6 210N
'spua Auedwo) ay) Jo 4210 |elisSeURW B SE 9DIAJSS SIY 918P 3Y) 01 dN UOIBWIOHUI SIY S3SO[ISIP 3|qel dA0Ge 3y ‘6TOZ ‘TE AINf 01 00T ‘T 4990120 WO} puoquin 1 Juapisald 32IA e sem uay) Suln-1ad “JIA :8 910N
‘salieIpisqns ueyl Jaylo Auedwo) ayj Jo 931s8Aul Ue Jo Ja3euew Jo Josiaiadns
‘10323J1p e se SuiAJas Juapisaud 221A 10 Juapisald syl Aq panladas asuadxa ssauisng pue (siosiaiadns pue s1030a.ip ‘seakojdwa jo uonesuadwod Suipnjoul) uonesuadwod ‘Aed sueaw uolesaunwal ay] ‘q
‘Auedwo) ayy Jo saLiel

SqNS UBYY JYI0 SIISIAUI W04 SIAI2IS Auedwo) ayy 40 Juapisald DI 40 JUIPISAIM BY) UOIFRIDUNWAI JO JUNOWE DY) SMOYS P|3ly SIYL ‘B i/ ION

‘pUBSNOY] /8E‘9GZ TSLN JO SIUBLIDIELS [BIDUBULY SUOJE-PUBIS GTOT BY) WO BUI0dUI Xel-1alje s,Auedwio) ayl uo paseq paje|nd|e) :9 aloN

‘(Auedwo) ay1 Suipnjoul) sjuswWa]e}S Pa1ePIOSU0d Byl Ul saluedwod ||e wouy Juapisasd adIA Jo Juapisasd ay) 01 Aed |e1031 ay] :§ 910N

*S9)BWIISS 948 SA0QE 3|qe) 3Y3 Ul syuapisald ad1A pue juapisasd 03 uonesuadwod aaAojdwa Jo saindi4 "saahkojdwsa Joy uejd uonesuadwod gTOZ Yl passed sey s10123.1Q Jo pJeog s,Auedwo) ay] 7 910N

"UolleJaUNWAI BY) Ul PApN|dUl 3G OS|E P|NOYs aseaudul [e)ded ysed ySnouyl paguasgns s3o01s pUe pIemEe 3201 palolilsal ‘suoindo 3201s aaAojdwa Suipnjoul ,JuswAed paseq-aleys,

Japun paziugodau sasuadxa Alejes ‘zsy4| 01 Suipiodde ‘uonippe uj “Jeah 3sed ay3 ui uapisald 321A Jo Juapisald syl Ag paniedas sAed Jaylo pue ued ‘Alojiwaop ‘spuadiys ‘9ouemoy|e [e1dads ‘@ouemoj|e uonepodsuel) ‘piemal ‘snuog g 30N

‘anoqe paquiasap se uonerdosdde asinbas 1eyy suoisuad syl 01 uonippe ul me| 01 SuipJodde pied aq pjnoys 1eys suoisuad jo sadAy JayiQ 2
19y SpJepuels
J0qeT ay1 Japun walsAs uoisuad plo ayy 0} Juensind 991WIWOD UOISIAISANS UOISUd S, AuedWO) By} JO SWBU dY) JSPUN UBMIE] JO YUBg 1B JUNOJJE UE 0jul pajisodap Adejes Ajyluow ay3 Jo %z 03 [enba Junowy 'q

")y UOISUd4 J0GeT 3y} Japun walsAs uoisuad mau ayj 03 Juensind adueinsu| JOgeT J0 nealng ay3 Je 3unodde ue ojul pred Asejes Ajyauow ay3 o %9 03 [enba Junowy ‘e

-19-



3. Manager's name and the distribution of employee bonus

December 31, 2019; Unit: NT$1,000

Total as a percentage

Vice President

Pei-MingChen(Note4)

Vice President

Hsiang-Yun Fan (Note 5)

Vice President

Cheng-Kung Lin

Vice President

Chin-Fen Tsai

Vice President

Pei-Lin Pai

Vice President

Wen-Hua Lu (Note 6)

Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer, Chief
Accounting Officer and
Corporate Governance
Officer

Manager

Jessica Huang

Chief Business Officer

Eungjoon Park

Assistant Vice President

Shi-Yuan Wang

Assistant Vice President

Eddy Hung

Assistant Vice President

Mao-Hsiang Yen

Assistant Vice President

Hsiu-Han Liao

964

Title Name Stock Cash Total of earnings (%)
(Note 2)
CEO Arthur Yu-Cheng Chiao
Deputy CEO Yuan-Mow Su
President Tung-Yi Chan

964 0.08%

Assistant Vice President

Yo-Song Cheng (Note 3)

Note 1: The Company's Board of Directors has passed the 2018 compensation plan for employees. Figures in the table above are estimates.

Note 2: Calculated based on the Company's after-tax income from the 2019 stand-alone financial statements of NTS 1,256,387.

Note 3: Mr. Yo-Song Cheng was an assistant VP at Winbond from April 1, 2015 to October 13, 2019. The above table discloses his information up to the
date his service as a manager of the Company ends.

Note 4: Mr. Pei-Ming Chen was a vice president at Winbond from October 1, 2005 to July 31, 2019. The above table discloses his information up to the
date his service as a managerial officer of the Company ends.

Note 5: Mr. Hsiang-Yun Fan was appointed vice president starting August 1, 2019. The above table discloses his information during his service as a
manager of the Company.

Note 6: Mr. Wen-Hua Lu was appointed vice president starting November 1, 2019. The above table discloses his information during his service as a
manager of the Company.

4. Analysis of remunerations to directors, supervisors, president and vice presidents etc. as a percentage of the after-tax
income of the Company and all the companies' consolidated statements in the stand-alone financial statements from the last
two years and description of the policy, standards and packages of remunerations, procedure for making such decision and
correlation with business performance and future risks

(1) Analysis of remunerations to directors, supervisors, president and vice presidents as a percentage of the Company's
after-tax income in the stand-alone financial statements from the last two years

Total remuneration as a percentage of earnings (%)

2019 2018
Title . .
. All companies in . All companies in
Winbond X Winbond .
consolidated statements consolidated statements
Director 5.12% 5.75% 1.79% 1.86%
President and Vice Presidents 8.83% 9.26% 2.10% 2.17%

(2) Description of remuneration policy, standards and packages of remunerations, procedure for making such decision and
correlation with business performance and future risks.

A. Remuneration policy, standards and packages of remunerations, procedure for making such decision

(A) Director
Article 22 of the Company's Articles of Incorporation: Not more than 1% of the Company's pre-tax earnings before
deducting remunerations to employees and directors shall be appropriated as remuneration to directors.
The Remuneration Committee will recommend remuneration to directors and supervisors in accordance with the
Company's articles of incorporation, the internal Rules for Remuneration and Performance Evaluation of Directors,
board members' self-assessment results, and Company earnings for the year after deducting accumulated deficit, and
report the recommendation to Shareholders' Meeting after it has been approved by the Board of Directors.
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(B) President and Vice Presidents
The remuneration of managers will be decided in accordance with the Company's articles of incorporation and the
internal Rules for Remuneration and Performance Evaluation of Managers, including salary, bonus and employee
compensation systems and standards. The remuneration will be distributed after it is passed by the Remuneration

Committee and approved by the Board of Directors.

B. Correlation with business performance and future risks

In a move to reduce operating risks, the Company established a Remuneration Committee in 2011. The committee
reviews regularly the annual performance targets of directors, supervisors and managers as well as salary and
remuneration policy, systems, standards and structure in view of actual operational status and related regulations to
seek a balance between sustainable operations and risk management. As described above, there is a positive correlation
between the remuneration of directors, supervisors and managers and the Company's business performance.

(IV) Implementation of corporate governance

1. Operation of Board of Directors

(1) Atotal of 8 (A) meetings of the Board of Directors were held in the most recent year. The attendance was as follows:

Attendance
§ R Attendance rate (%)
Title Name in person By proxy (B/A) Notes
(B)
Chairman Arthur Yu-Cheng Chiao 8 0 100%
Vice
K Yuan-Mow Su 8 0 100%

Chairman
Director Yung Chin 8 0 100%
Independent

. P Francis Tsai 8 0 100%
director
Independent

aep Allen Hsu 6 2 75%
director
Independent

1aep Jerry Hsu 2 6 25%
director
Independent Stephen T. Tso 4 1 80% Newly elected on June 14, 2019
director P ) ? Scheduled attendances: 5
Independent san-Chene Chan 6 1 86% Resigned on November 16, 2019
director & & ) Scheduled attendances: 7
Director Wei-Hsin Ma 88%
Director Chih-Chen Lin 88%

i Walsin Lihwa Corporation
Director i i 6 0 75%

(Representative: Sophi Pan)

(2) Resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors pursuant to Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act: The Company
has set up an Audit Committee. Hence the provisions of Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act do not apply. For
relevant information, please see p.23~p25 of this report.

(3) Other resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors, to which an independent Director has a dissenting or qualified
opinion that is on record or stated in a written statement: None.

(4) Directors recused themselves from discussion or voting on an agenda item in which they have an interest:

Name of director

Agenda item

Reason for recusal

Voting on the
agenda item

Notes

Yuan-Mow Su

Arthur Yu-Cheng Chiao

Performance bonus for Q3 and Q4 2018 and
retention of performance bonus for 201

The director has an interest

in the matter

Did not )
13th meeting of

articipate in
P P 11th-term Board

voting
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) ) Voting on the
Name of director Agenda item Reason for recusal . Notes
agenda item
. . ) Did not .
Arthur Yu-Cheng Chiao Proposal of the 2018 employee compensation The director has an interest ficivate 13th meeting of
articipate in
Yuan-Mow Su distribution plan. in the matter P " P 11th-term Board
voting
Arthur Yu-Cheng Chiao Proposal of the 2019 remuneration plan for The director has an interest Eﬁt?c?;ate in 13th meeting of
Yuan-Mow Su individual managers. in the matter voting 11th-term Board
Acquisition of Waffer Technology Corporation's
. . wholly owned subsidiary, Great Target The director has an interest Did m?t ) 14th meeting of
Francis Tsai . participate in
Development Ltd. (Seychelles), for an in the matter voting 11th-term Board
investment project in India.
Yung Chin
Jerry Hsu Proposal to remove non-compete clause for The director has an interest E;(:t?c?;ate in 14th meeting of
Chih-Chen Lin directors (independent directors included). in the matter voting 11th-term Board
Sophi Pan
Appointment of Independent Director Stephen i
PP P P The director has an interest Did h(?t ) 15th meeting of
Stephen T. Tso T. Tso to serve as a member of the 3rd-term . participate in
) ) in the matter voting 11th-term Board
Remuneration Committee.
Arthur Yu-Cheng Chiao
Yunng Chin Participation in cash issuance of capital increase The director has an interest E;O:t?c(i);ate in 17th meeting of
Allen Hsu by Nuvoton Technology Corporation for 2019 in the matter voting 11th-term Board
Jerry Hsu

(5) Evaluation of Board of Directors:

The Company established a Board of Directors performance assessment system in 2011 to measure the works of directors
guiding the Company's strategic directions and overseeing the Company's operations and management so as to help
increase the long-term shareholder value. The staff in charge of board meeting affairs will compile the results and submit
the results to the Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors, and based on which, draw up the Board of
Directors performance enhancement plan.

Frequency Period Scope Method Description Result
Once a year From January | Board of Member (1)Board of Directors: 2019 evaluation results: All results
(in December) | 1,2019 to Directors, self-assess Degree of participation in company | of the self-assessments regarding
December 31, | Director and | Ment operations; quality of board the board of directors and the
2019 Functional decisions; board composition and functional committees showed a
committee structure; selection of suitable relatively lower degree of

controls.

board directors and continuing
professional education; and
internal control.

(2) Individual director:

Grasp of company targets and
missions, understanding of the
director's role and responsibilities,
level of participation in company
operations, internal relationship
management and communication,
director's specialty and continued
development, and internal

(3) Functional committee:

degree of participation in company
operations, awareness of
functional committee
responsibilities, improvement in
the quality of decision making by

participation in the company's
business activities. Efforts to
improve board performance will
proceed in the following directions:
1) Strengthen the board's ability in
managing the company's risks.

(2) Increase board members'
participation in the company's
decision making process. The 2019
evaluation results have been
submitted to the Remuneration
Committee and the Board of
Directors.
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Frequency Period Scope Method Description Result

the functional committee,
composition and structure of the
functional committee and member
selection, and internal control.

(6) An evaluation of the goals set for strengthening the functions of the Board and implementation status during the current
and immediately preceding fiscal years:

1. The Company has established the Rules of Procedures for Board of Directors Meetings in accordance with the
Regulations Governing Procedure for Board of Directors Meetings of Public Companies and would post information on
the attendance by directors and supervisors on the Market Observation Post System after each board meeting and
disclose important resolutions adopted by board meetings on the Company website.

2. The Company holds strategy review meeting every quarter before the scheduled board meeting, at which directors and
supervisors are present to understand Company's finance and business conditions as well as the execution of major
business plans. The Company endeavors to enhance the transparency of corporate information. Aside from holding
investors conference to discuss the Company's business and financial conditions after the semi-annual and annual
board meetings, the Company also posts related information on the Market Observation Post System and Company
website.

2. State of operations of the Audit Committee
The key tasks of the Audit Committee are as follows. The operations and proposals are listed in the table below.
I.Fair presentation of the company's financial reports.
II.The hiring (and dismissal) of certificated public accountants and evaluation of their independence and performance.
IIl.The effective implementation of the company's internal control system.
IV.Compliance with relevant laws and regulations.
V.Management of the existing or potential risks for the company.

Current term of office: Starting on June 13, 2017 and ending on June 12, 2020.

A total of 8 (A) meetings of the Audit Committee were held in 2019. The attendance was as follows:

Attendance Attendance
Title Name in person By proxy rate (%) Notes
(B) (B/A)
Convenor of Audit
) Allen Hsu 6 2 75 N/A
Committee
Audit committee
Francis Tsai 8 0 100 N/A
member
Audit committee
Jerry Hsu 2 6 25 N/A
member
Audit committee Newly elected on June 14, 2019;
Stephen T. Tso 4 1 80
member scheduled attendances: 5
Audit committee San-Cheng s 5 - Resigned on November 16, 2019;
member Chang scheduled attendances: 7

Other matters that require reporting:

I.  If the operation of Audit Committee has any of the following situations, describe the date of board meeting, term of
the board, agenda items, resolutions adopted by the board, and actions taken by the Company in response to the
opinion of the audit committee:
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(1) Matters provided under Article 14-5 of the Securities and Exchange Act.

Board of Directors

Resolution adopted

Company's action
with regard to the

11th-term Board

Agenda item by the audit o .
Date/Term . opinion of audit
committee .
committee
2019.01.31 Preparation of the 2018 standalone financial report and
. . X . Passed by all
12th meeting of consolidated financial report. .
X . i committee
11th-term Board Preparation of the 2019 consolidated business report, b None
members
consolidated financial statements and affiliation report covering
. . presented
affiliated enterprises.
Preparation of the 2018 Statement on Internal Control System. Same as above None
Proposal of the 2019 capital expenditure budget. Same as above None
Proposal for annual remuneration paid to Deloitte & Touche
Same as above None
accounting firm.
2019.03.25 Preparation of the 2018 business report. Same as above None
13th meeting of Preparation of the 2018 earnings distribution plan. Same as above None
11th-term Board Amendment of the Procedure for Acquisition and Disposal of
Asset Same as above None
ssets.
Amendment of the Procedure for Engaging in Financial Derivative
Same as above None
Transactions.
2019.04.26 Proposal to increase the 2019 capital expenditure budget. Same as above None
14th meeting of — -
Acquisition of Waffer Technology Corporation's wholly owned
11th-term Board o
subsidiary, Great Target Development Ltd. (Seychelles), for an Same as above None
investment project in India.
Establishment of a wholly owned subsidiary in Germany. Same as above None
Amendment of the Rules for Endorsements and Guarantees and
its renaming to the Procedures for Making Endorsements and Same as above None
Guarantees.
Amendment of the Operating Procedure for Fund Lending. Same as above None
Amendment of the Internal Control System for Shareholder Same as above None
Service Unit.
Proposal to remove non-compete clause for directors Same as above None
(independent directors included).
2019.07.26 Preparation of the 2019 Q2 consolidated financial report. Same as above None
15th meeting of
& Proposal to increase the 2019 capital expenditure budget. Same as above None
11th-term Board
Proposal not to distribute earnings for the first half of the 2019 Same as above None
fiscal year.
Proposal for the short-form merger with the wholly owned Same as above None
subsidiary Mobile Magic Design Corp.
2019.08.22 Same as above
16th meeting of Proposal to increase the 2019 capital expenditure budget. None
11th-term Board
2019.09.10 Participation in capital increase by Nuvoton Technology Same as above None
17th meeting of Corporation for 2019
11th-term Board Passed the proposal to grant the chairman the authority in the Same as above None
negotiation regarding Nankang real estate project in Taipei.
2019.10.25 Increased the budget for capital expenditure. same as above None
18th meeting of Same as above
11th-term Board Finalization of the 2020 audit plan. None
2019.12.23 Increased the budget for capital expenditure. same as above None
19th meeting of Same as above
Proposal to change signing CPA in 2019 Q4. None
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(2) Matters not passed by the audit committee but approved with the consent of more than two thirds of all directors:
None

Il.  With respect to independent directors recusing themselves from discussion or voting on an agenda item in which
they have an interest, describe the name of independent director, agenda item, reason for recusal and voting on the

agenda item:
Name of . Reason for Voting on the
. i Agenda item . Notes
independent director recusal agenda item
Acquisition of Waffer Technology Corporation's The director has | Did not 14th meeting

Francis Tsai wholly owned subsidiary, Great Target Development an interest in the | participate in of 11th-term
Ltd. (Seychelles), for an investment project in India. matter voting Board
The director has | Did not 14th meeting
Proposal to remove non-compete clause for . . » .
Jerry Hsu an interest in the | participate in of 11th-term

directors (independent directors included).

matter voting Board

Ill.  Communication between independent directors and the Company's internal audit chief and CPA (material items on
Company's finance and business communicated, methods and results of communication):

(1) Communication between independent directors and internal audit chief:

1. The audit unit conducted audits according to the annual audit plan. The audit chief submitted the completed
audit report (or follow-up report) to the independent directors for examination in the following month, and
periodically reported to audit committee the implementation of the audit operation, to which the audit
committee members did not raise any objection.

2. Internal audit chief's periodic reporting to the Board of Directors and Audit Committee. The communication
between independent directors and the internal audit chief are as follows:

Suggestions and actions taken by the
Company

- None of the independent directors expressed
dissent.

- The Committee gave consent to the 2018
Statement on Internal Control System, which
will be submitted to the Board of Director for
approval.

Date Gist of communication

- 2018 Q4 follow-up of improvement actions taken
for deficiencies found in the previous period and
2018 Q4 audit results

- 2018 self-evaluation of internal control system

-+ 2018 Statement on Internal Control System.

2019.01.31
(10th meeting of 1st-term
Audit Committee)

- 2019 Q1 follow-up of improvement actions taken
for deficiencies found in the previous period and
2019 Q1 audit results.

- 2019 Q2 follow-up of improvement actions taken

for deficiencies found in the previous period and
2019 Q2 audit results.

2019.04.26
(12th meeting of first-term
Audit Committee)
2019.07.26
(13th meeting of 1st-term
Audit Committee)

- None of the independent directors expressed
dissent.

- None of the independent directors expressed
dissent.

- None of the independent directors expressed
dissent.

- The Committee gave consent to the 2020
audit plan, which will be submitted to the
Board of Directors for approval.

-+ 2019 Q3 follow-up of improvement actions taken
for deficiencies found in the previous period and
2019 Q3 audit results.

+ 2020 audit plan.

2019.10.25
(16th meeting of 1st-term
Audit Committee)

(2) Communication between independent directors and CPA:
1. If deemed necessary, independent directors would communicate directly with CPA on the financial condition
of the Company. The communications taken place are as follows:

Suggestions and actions taken by the
Company
¢ None of the independent directors
expressed dissent.

Date Gist of communication

2019.01.31
(10th meeting of 1st-term
Audit Committee)

e CPA and independent directors discussed 2018 audit
findings on key audit matters (KAM).

e CPA and independent directors discussed the
reasonableness analysis report on inventory
devaluation of slow-moving inventory.

e CPA and independent directors discussed the final
opening ledgers under IFRS 16 for 2019.

2019.07.26
(13th meeting of 1st-term
Audit Committee)

e CPA and independent directors discussed the
reasonableness of allowance to inventory write-downs
and inventory turnover, and collection turnover.

¢ None of the independent directors
expressed dissent.
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3. State of operations of the Remuneration Committee:

The Remuneration Committee is in charge of the performance evaluation of directors, supervisors and managers, setting
and reviewing the remuneration policy, system standards and structure, and the remuneration of individual director,
supervisor and manager, and propose same to the Board of Directors for discussion.

Responsibilities of Remuneration Committee:
1. Periodically review Remuneration Committee rules and offer suggestions for amendment.

2. Set and review the annual performance targets for directors and managers as well as salary and remuneration policy,
system, standards and structure.

3. Periodically evaluate the attainment of performance targets by directors and managers, and set the components and
amount of salary and compensation for individual director and manager.

(1) The Remuneration Committee comprises 4 members, who are all independent directors of the Company with the
following qualifications:

Has at least 5 years of work experience and meet
one of the following professional qualifications Compliance of independence (Note) Notes
An instructor or |A Judge, Public Have work
Criteria | higher position |Prosecutor, experience in
in the Attorney, Certified [commerce,
department of |Public Accountant, |law,
commerce, law, |or Other accounting, Number of
accounting, Professional or finance, or a other public
finance or other |Technical profession companies in
department Specialists Who  |necessary for which the
Status related to the  [Has Passed a the business member also
business needs |National of the 3 4 S 6 . 8 10 serves asa
of the Company |Examination and  [Company member of
in a public or been Awarded a their
private junior Certificate in a Remuneration
college or Profession Committee
Name university Necessary for the
Business of the
Company
i | P v v v v v v v v v v e
Independent | Alten Hsu v v v ivi]iv|v]v]|v v 1
Independent
director | JEMYHsu \Y v \ \Y \Y% Vv \% \% \% 2
July 26,
In nden henT. 2019:
rector | 10 v VIivvvi]vv v L
elected
November
'nﬁf:;ﬂfnt Sag;ﬁ:eg”g v v v iv]iv|v]v]|v v ; 16, 2019:
Resigned

Note: If the committee member meets any of the following criteria in the two years before being appointed or during the term of office, please check "V" the corresponding

boxes.

(1)Not an employee of the Company or any of its affiliates;

(2)Not a director or supervisor of the Company or any of its affiliates; The same does not apply in cases where the committee member is an independent dire ctor of the

Company, its parent company, or any subsidiary established in accordance with the ROC law or law of the host country.

(3)Not a natural-person shareholder whose shareholding, together with those of his/her spouse, minor children, and shares held under others' names, exceed 1% of the
total number of outstanding shares of the Company, or ranks the person in the top ten shareholders of the Company.
(4)Not a manager listed in (1) or a spouse, relative within the second degree of kinship, or lineal relative within the third degree of kinship or closer
to anyone listed in (2) or (3).
(5)Not a director, supervisor or employee of an institutional shareholder holding directly 5% or more of the company's shares, being one of the top
five shareholders, or being appointed a director or supervisor of the company pursuant to Article 27, Paragraph 1 or 2 of the Company Act
(except where the person is simultaneously an independent director of the Company and its parent company, a subsidiary or another subsidiary
of the same parent company appointed pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act or local regulations).
(6)Not a director, supervisor or employee of another company that has the same directors as the Company or is controlled by the same person that
has more than half of the voting power in the Company (except where the person is simultaneously an independent director of the Company or
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its parent company, a subsidiary or another subsidiary of the same parent company appointed pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act or
local regulations)

(7)Not a director, supervisor or employee of another company or institution that has the same chairman, president, or the equivalent or a spouse
in one of the roles as the Company (except where the person is simultaneously an independent director of the Company and its parent company,
a subsidiary or another subsidiary of the same parent company appointed pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act or local regulations).

(8)Not a director, supervisor, manager or shareholder holding 5% or more of the Company's shares of certain company or institution that has a
financial or business relationship with the Company (except where the certain company or institution holds 20% or more but no more than 50%
of the Company's shares and is simultaneously an independent director of the Company and its parent company, a subsidiary or another
subsidiary of the same parent company appointed pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act or local regulations).

(9)Not a professional who provides audit or receives no more than NT$500,000 in cumulative compensation in the last two years for commercial,
legal, financial, or accounting services to the Company or its affiliates, nor is an owner, partner, director, supervisor, or manager, or the spouse
of any of the above, of a sole proprietorship, partnership, company, or organization that provides such services to the Company or its affiliates.
However, exception applies to members of a remuneration committee, a take-over bid review committee, or a special committee for merger and
acquisition exercising their authority pursuant to provisions of the Securities and Exchange Act or the Business Mergers and Acquisitions Act.

(10)Not been a person in any of the circumstances listed in Article 30 of the Company Act.

(2) Operation of Remuneration Committee:

The third term of office: Between June 13, 2017 to June 12, 2020, the Remuneration Committee held a total of 3 (A)
meetings in the most recent year. The members' attendances were as follows:

Title Name Attendance By Attendance Notes
in person (B) proxy rate (%) (B/A)
Convener Francis Tsai 4 0 100%
Member Allen Hsu 3 1 75%
Member Jerry Hsu 0 4 -
Member Stephen T. Tso 2 0 100% Newly elected on July 25, 2019; scheduled attendances: 2
Member San-Cheng Chang 2 1 67% Resigned on November 16, 2019; scheduled attendances: 3

Other matters that require reporting:
I. If the Board of Directors did not adopt or revised the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee, describe the date of board
meeting, term of the board, agenda item, resolutions adopted by the board, and actions taken by the company in gresponse to the

opinion of the Remuneration Committee: N/A.

. If with respect to any resolution of the Remuneration Committee, any member has a dissenting or qualified opinion that is on record
or stated in a written statement, describe the date of committee meeting, term of the committee, agenda item, opinions of all
members, and actions taken by the company in response to the opinion of members: N/A.

Ill. Proposals to and resolutions of the Remuneration Committee in the past year and the company's response to the members'

opinions:
Remuneration . The company's response
i Item Resolution o
Committee to the members' opinions
2019.03.25 Proposal of the 2018 remuneration for individual directors on Passed by all committee N
one
6th meeting of the 11th-term board. members present
3rd-term committee | Proposal of the 2019 remuneration for individual directors on
Same as above None
the 11th-term board.
Proposal of the 2018 Q3 and Q4 performance bonus for
i . . Same as above None
managerial officers and the 2018 retention bonus.
Proposal of the 2018 employee compensation distribution plan. Same as above None
Proposal of the 2019 remuneration plan for managerial officers. Same as above None
Appointment of Vice President of Finance Jessica Huang to
k . Same as above None
serve concurrently as the chief governance officer.
Review of the Organizational Rules for Remuneration
Committee for compliance. No correction was needed given no N/A. N/A.
change was required by any change of the law.
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Remuneration . The company's response
. Item Resolution o
Committee to the members' opinions
2019.07.25 Proposal of the 2019 remuneration plan for Independent Passed by all committee N
one
7th meeting of Director Stephen T. Tso. members present
3rd-term committee | Appointment of Mr. Hsiang-Yun Fan as vice president of the
Same as above None
company.
Discharge of Mr. Pei-Ming Chen as the VP of DRAM Product
. . ] Same as above None
Business Group and managerial officer.
Discharge of Mr. Yo-Song Cheng as a managerial officer. Same as above None
Amendment to the Rules for Manager Retirement. Same as above None
2019.10.25 Finalization of the 2019 director compensation distribution
. Same as above None
8th meeting of plan.
3rd-term committee | Finalization of the 2019 employee compensation distribution
Same as above None
plan.
Promotion of Mr. Wen-Hua Lu to vice president. Same as above None
2019.12.23 Amendment of the Rules for Remuneration and Performance
9th meeting of Evaluation of Directors and renaming to the Rules for
Same as above None
3rd-term committee | Remuneration of Directors and Performance Evaluation of the
Board of Directors.

The Company held a routine meeting of the Remuneration Committee for the first half of the year to review the policies,
systems, standards and structures regarding director and managerial performance evaluation and remuneration. In its 11th
meeting, the 3rd-term Remuneration Committee discussed the following: (1) Regarding board performance evaluation,
external evaluation should be conducted every 3 years to improve board efficiency, and the Rules for Remuneration of
Directors and Performance Evaluation of the Board of Directors were amended accordingly. No change to the policy,
structure, system and standards of director remuneration was required after they were reviewed and found consistent with
the requirements of annual reports and the actual demands of business management. (2) The Rules for Remuneration and
Performance Evaluation of Managerial Officers were reviewed. No change to the policies, structures, systems and standards
of performance evaluation and remuneration was required as they were found consistent with the requirements of annual
reports and the actual demands of business management.

The Remuneration Committee's recommendations above were approved in the 22th meeting of the 11th-term board of
directors.
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4. Corporate governance implementation status and deviations from Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies and reasons

Assessed items

Implementation status

Deviations from
Corporate Governance
Best-Practice Principles

year in accordance with the Certified Public Accountant Act, Professional Ethics Standards
for ROC Accountants, and CPA Assessment and Performance Evaluation Instructions to
examine whether the certifying CPA is a company director or shareholder or draws salary
from the Company and to confirm that the certifying CPA is not a stakeholder. In addition,

Yes | No Summary for TWSE/TPEXx Listed
Companies and reasons
I Does the company establish and disclose its corporate governance The Company has established corporate governance principles in accordance with the TWSE [None
principles in accordance with the Corporate Governance Best-Practice \% Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies and disclosed
Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies? it on Company website.
Il.  Shareholding structure & stockholders' equity
() Does the company establish internal operating procedures for handling \ (I) The Company's Shareholders' Affairs Department is in charge of shareholder services and |None
shareholder suggestions, questions, complaints or litigation and handled handling shareholder suggestions, questions and complaints in accordance with the
related matters accordingly? Regulations Governing the Administration of Shareholder Services of Public Companies
and the Standards for the Internal Control Systems of Shareholder Service Units.
(Il) Does the company have a list of major shareholders that have actual \ (Il) The Company discloses the list of major shareholders and the list of ultimate owners of [None
control over the Company and a list of ultimate owners of those major major shareholders in accordance with applicable regulations.
shareholders?
(1) Does the company establish and implement risk management and firewall | V (I11) Business and financial dealings between the Company and an affiliate are treated as |None
systems within its conglomerate structure? dealings with an independent third party, which are handled by the principles of fairness
and reasonableness with documented rules established, and pricing and payment terms
clearly defined to prevent non-arm's-length transactions.
(IV) Does the company establish internal rules against insiders trading with \ (IV) The Company has established the Insider Trading Prevention Procedure, publicizes the [None
undisclosed information? procedure among employees regularly every half a year, and discloses the procedure on
Company website.
lll.  Composition and responsibilities of the Board of Directors
() Does the Board of Directors develop and implement a diversified policy " () Article 20 of the Company's Corporate Governance Principles specify that the structure of |None
for the composition of its members? Board of Directors should take into account the company operations, development and
business scale, shareholding of major shareholders and diversity of Board Members, for
example, different professional backgrounds, gender or fields of work. The Company's
11th-term Board of Directors' members meet the aforementioned goals.
(I) Does the company voluntarily establish other functional committees in Vv () The Company has established an "Employees' Welfare Committee," "Supervisory |None
addition to remuneration committee and audit committee? Committees of Workers' Retirement Reserve Funds," and "ESH and Risk Management
Committee," and "patent committee."
(1) Does the company establishes standards and method for evaluating the Y (l1) The Company has established the Rules for Remuneration and Performance Evaluation of |None
performance of the Board of Directors, and implemented it annually? Directors, and performs self-assessment of the board operations and board members in
December every year. The evaluation results will be submitted to the Remuneration
Committee and the Board of Directors. Please refer to the section under "Operation of
the Board of Directors."
(IvV) Does the company regularly evaluate the independence of CPAs? Vv (IV) The Company's Board of Directors evaluates the independence of certifying CPAs every |None
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9. Implementation of internal control system
9.1 Statement on Internal Control

Winbond Electronics Corporation
Statement on Internal Control System

Date: Febuary 7, 2020

The Company states the following with regard to its internal control system during fiscal year 2019, based on the
findings of a self-evaluation:

I.The Company acknowledges and understands that the establishment, enforcement and maintenance of the
internal control system are the responsibility of the Board of Directors and manager, and that the company
has already established such a system. The purpose is to provide reasonable assurance to the effectiveness
and efficiency of business operations (including profitability, performance and security of assets), reliability
of financial reporting and compliance with relevant regulatory requirements.

II.There are inherent limitations to even the most well designed internal control system. As such, an effective
internal control system can only reasonably ensure the achievement of the aforementioned goals. Moreover,
the operating environment and situation may change, impacting the effectiveness of the internal control
system. However, self-supervision measures were implemented within the Company's internal control
policies to facilitate immediate rectification once procedural flaws have been identified.

1I.The Company determines the effectiveness of the design and implementation of its internal control system in
accordance with the items in "Governing Regulations for Public Company's Establishment of Internal Control
System" (hereinafter called "Governing Regulations") that are related to the effectiveness of internal control
systems. The criteria introduced by the "Governing Regulations" cover the process of management control
and consist of five major elements, each representing a different stage of internal control: (1) Control
Environment, (2) Risk Assessment, (3) Control Operation, (4) Information and Communication, and (5)
Monitoring. Each of the elements in turn contains certain audit items. Please refer to "Governing
Regulations" for details.

IV.The Company has adopted the aforementioned measures for an examination of the effectiveness of the design
and implementation of the internal control system.

V.Based on the findings of the evaluation mentioned in the preceding paragraph, the Company believes that as of
December 31, 2019, its internal control system (including its supervision and management of subsidiaries),
encompassing internal controls for knowledge of the degree of achievement of operational effectiveness and
efficiency objectives, reliability of reporting, and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, is
effectively designed and operating, and reasonably assures the achievement of the above-stated objectives.

VI.This statement shall be an integral part of the annual report and prospectus of the company and will be made
public. If any fraudulent information, concealment or unlawful practices are discovered in the content of the
aforementioned information, the Company shall be held liable under Article 20, Article 32, Article 171 and
Article 174 of the Securities and Exchange Act.

VII.This Statement has been passed by the Board of Directors Meeting of the Company held on February 7, 2020,

where none of the 10 attending directors expressed dissenting opinions, and the remainder all affirmed the
content of this Statement.

Winbond Electronics Corporation

Chairman: Arthur Yu-Cheng Chiao

President: Tung-Yi Chan
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9.2 If the company engages an accountant to examine its internal control system, disclose the CPA examination
report: None.

10. Penalty on the Company and its personnel or punishment imposed by the Company on personnel in violation of
internal control system regulations, major deficiencies and improvement in the past year and up to the date of
report: None

11. Important resolutions adopted in shareholders meeting and Board of Directors' meeting in the past year and up
to the date of report

11.1 Report on the execution of resolutions adopted at the 2018 General Shareholders' Meeting
1.Motion: Ratify 2018 business report and financial report.
Resolution: Passed as proposed. (For details of the resolution, please visit Market Observation Post System)
Implementation status: Per resolution adopted.
2.Motion: Acknowledge the Company's 2018 earnings distribution plan.
Resolution: Passed as proposed. (For details of the resolution, please visit Market Observation Post System)
Implementation status: The Board of Directors decided on June 26, 2019 that the ex-dividend date will be July 17,
2019 and will carry out the cash dividend distribution operation starting August 9, 2019.
3.Motion: Discuss the amended Articles of Incorporation.
Resolution: Passed as proposed. (For details of the resolution, please visit Market Observation Post System)
Implementation status: The Company has completed registration of change with the Central Taiwan Science Park
Administration, Ministry of Science and Technology per approval letter No.
Zhong-Shang-Zi-1080013711 dated July 2, 2019.
4.Discuss amendments of Articles of Incorporation.
(1) Procedure for Acquisition and Disposal of Assets
(2) Procedure for Engaging in Financial Derivative Transactions
(3) Renaming of the Rules for Endorsements and Guarantees to the Procedures for Making Endorsements and
Guarantees
(4) Operating Procedure for Fund Lending.
(5) Rules Governing the Conduct of Shareholders' Meeting
(6) Rules Governing the Election of Directors
Resolution: Passed as proposed. (For details of the resolution, please visit Market Observation Post System)
Implementation status: All related processes now follow the amended regulations.
5.Discuss the removal of non-compete clause for directors (independent directors included)
Resolution: Passed as proposed. (For details of the resolution, please visit Market Observation Post System)
Implementation status: Per resolution adopted.
6.Election: Elected one additional independent director
Person elected: Stephen T. Tso
Implementation status: The Company has completed registration of change with the Central Taiwan Science Park
Administration, Ministry of Science and Technology per approval letter No. Zhong-Shang-Zi-1080013711 dated
July 2, 2019.

11.2 Important resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors in 2019 and up to March 31, 2020:

Meeting date Summary of resolutions

January 31, 2019 1.Passed the 2018 standalone financial report and consolidated financial report.

2.Passed the 2018 consolidated business report, consolidated financial statements and affiliation report
covering affiliated enterprises.

3.Passed the 2018 Statement on Internal Control System.

4.Passed the 2019 business plan and budget.

5.Passed the 2019 capital expenditure budget.

6.Passed the annual remuneration paid to accounting firm Deloitte & Touche.

7.Passed the purchase of liability insurance for directors, supervisors and other key persons.

8.Passed the Company's financial derivative transactions.

9.Approved the syndicated loan/credit limit for financial derivatives transactions granted by banks.

March 25, 2019 1.Passed the 2018 business report.

2.Passed the 2018 earnings distribution plan.

3.Passed the proposal to add one seat for independent director to replace vacancy in the board seat to
be considered in the 2019 general shareholders' meeting.

4.Passed the amended Procedure for Acquisition and Disposal of Assets.

5.Passed the amended Procedure for Engaging in Financial Derivative Transactions.
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Meeting date

Summary of resolutions

6.Passed the proposed calling of 2019 general shareholders' meeting.

7.Passed the Company's financial derivative transactions.

8.Approved the syndicated loan/credit limit for financial derivatives transactions granted by banks.

9.Passed the 2018 compensation for individual directors on the 11th-term board.

10.Passed the 2019 remuneration for individual directors on the 11th-term board.

11.Passed the 2018 Q3 and Q4 performance bonus for managerial officers and the 2018 retention
bonus.

12.Passed the 2018 employee compensation distribution plan.

13.Passed the 2019 remuneration plan for managerial officers.

14.Passed the appointment of Vice President of Finance Jessica Huang to serve concurrently as the chief
governance officer.

April 26, 2019

1.Passed the 2019 capital expenditure budget.

2.Passed the Company's investment project in India.

3.Passed the establishment of a wholly owned subsidiary in Germany.

4.Passed the amendment of the Rules for Endorsements and Guarantees and its renaming to the
Procedures for Making Endorsements and Guarantees.

5.Passed the amended Operating Procedure for Fund Lending.

6.Passed the amended Internal Control System for Shareholder Service Unit.

7.Passed the removal of non-compete clause for directors (independent directors included).

8.Passed the board review of the candidate list for the additional 1 independent director to be elected
to the 11th-term board.

9.Passed the review of shareholder motions by the Board of Directors.

10.Passed the amended Articles of Incorporation.

11.Passed the amended Rules Governing the Conduct of Shareholders' Meeting.

12.Passed the amended Rules for the Election of Directors.

13.Passed the amended Board of Directors Meeting Rules.

14.Passed additional proposals to 2019 general shareholders' meeting.

15.Passed the Company's financial derivative transactions.

July 26, 2019

1.Passed the 2019 capital expenditure budget.

2.Passed the proposal not to distribute earnings for the first half of the 2019 fiscal year.

3.Passed the short-form merger with the wholly owned subsidiary Mobile Magic Design Corp.

4.Passed the appointment of Independent Director Da-Chuan Zuo to serve as a member of the 3rd-term
Remuneration Committee.

5.Passed the Company's financial derivative transactions.

6.Approved the syndicated loan/credit limit for financial derivatives transactions granted by banks.

7.Passed the appointment of Mr. Hsiang-Yun Fan as a managerial officer and vice president.

8.Passed the 2019 remuneration for Mr. Stepehn T. Tso as a newly elected independent director on the
11th-term board.

9.Passed the discharge of Mr. Pei-Ming Chen as the VP of DRAM Product Business Group and
managerial officer.

10.Passed the discharge of Mr. Yo-Song Cheng as a managerial officer.

11.Passed the amended Rules for Manager Retirement.

August 22, 2019

1.Passed the 2019 capital expenditure budget.
2.Passed the Company's financial derivative transactions.

September 10, 2019

1.Passed the Company's participation in cash capital increase by Nuvoton Technology Corporation

2.Passed the proposal to grant the chairman the authority in the negotiation regarding Nankang real
estate project in Taipei.

3.Passed the Company's financial derivative transactions.

4.Approved the syndicated loan/credit limit for financial derivatives transactions granted by banks.

October 25, 2019

1.Passed the increase in budget for capital expenditure.

2.Passed the 2020 audit plan.

3.Passed the Company's financial derivative transactions.

4.Approved the syndicated loan/credit limit for financial derivatives transactions granted by banks.
5.Passed the proposal to remove non-compete clause for Ms. Jessica Huang as a managerial officer.
6.Passed the 2019 directors compensation distribution plan.

7.Passed the 2019 employees compensation distribution plan.

8.Passed the promotion of Mr. Wen-Hua Lu to vice president.

December 23, 2019

1.Passed the increase in budget for capital expenditure.

2.Passed the proposal to change signing accountants in 2019 Q4.

3.Passed the Company's financial derivative transactions.

4.Approved the syndicated loan/credit limit for financial derivatives transactions granted by banks.

5.Passed the amended Rules for Remuneration and Performance Evaluation of Directors and renaming
to the Rules for Remuneration of Directors and Performance Evaluation of the Board of Directors.
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Meeting date Summary of resolutions

February 7, 2020 1.Passed the 2019 financial reports.

2.Passed the 2019 consolidated business report, consolidated financial statements and affiliation report
covering affiliated enterprises.

3.Passed the 2019 Statement on Internal Control System.

4.Passed the 2020 business plan and budget.

5.Passed the 2020 capital expenditure budget.

6.Passed the annual remuneration paid to accounting firm Deloitte & Touche.

7.Passed the purchase of liability insurance for directors, supervisors and other key persons.

8.Passed the Company's financial derivative transactions.

9.Passed the short-term lines of credit obtained from financial institutions.

10.Passed the appointment of Mr. Pei-Ming Chen as a managerial officer and president.

11.Passed the promotion of Mr. Tung-Yi Chan to deputy CEO.

12.Approved the retirement application made by deputy CEO Yuan-Mow Su and his discharge as a
managerial officer.

13.Passed the change of the Company's Chief Accounting Officer.

14.Passed the special bonus for VP Jessica Huang.

March 12, 2020 1.Passed the 2019 business report.

2.Passed the proposed preparation of the 2019 earnings distribution plan.

3.Passed the increase in budget for capital expenditure.

4.Passed the amended Procedures for Making Endorsements and Guarantees.

5.Passed the amended Organizational Rules for Audit Committee.

6.Passed the amended company regulations.

7.Passed the proposed election of directors (and independent directors).

8.Passed the candidate list for 12th-term board of directors (including independent directors)
nominated by the Board of Directors.

9.Passed the removal of non-compete clause for 12th-term board of directors (independent directors
included).

10.Passed the removal of non-compete clause for Vice Chairman Yuan-Mow Su.

11.Passed the removal of non-compete clause for managerial officer Mr. Pei-Ming Chen.

12.Passed the proposed calling of 2020 general shareholders' meeting.

13.Passed financial derivative transactions made on the Company's behalf.

14.Approved syndicated loans/credit limits for financial derivatives transactions obtained on behalf of
the Company.

12. Dissenting or qualified opinion of directors against an important resolution passed by the Board of Directors that
is on record or stated in a written statement in the past year and up to the date of report: None

13. Resignation and dismissal of managers related to the financial report (including chairman, president, chief accounting
officer, chief financial officer, chief R&D officer and chief internal auditor) in the past year and up to the date of
report:

March 31, 2020

Reason for resignation

Title Name Date of appointment Date of dismissal .
or dismissal

Chief Accounting

Officer Jessica Huang 2015.04.01 2020.03.01 Reassighment

14. Handling of material information:

The Company has a rigorous internal operating process in place for the handling of material information, which is
made public in accordance with the "Rules for Spokesperson and Acting Spokesperson Operation." The Company also
publicizes its Procedure for Prevention of Insider Trading among employees from time to time to prevent the violation
of relevant rules.
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(V) Information on fees to CPA:

1. Fees paid to certifying accountants and accounting firm in 2019 are as follows, where non-audit fee is less than
one fourth of audit fee.

Name of accounting firm CPA Name Duration of audit Notes
Deloitte & Touche Kuo-Tien Hung Hung-Bin Yu 2019.01.01 - 2019.09.30
Deloitte & Touche Wen Yea Shyu Hung-Bin Yu 2019.10.01 - 2019.12.31
Unit: NTD
Scale \ Fee category Audit Fee Non-Audit Fee Total
1 Below NT$2,000,000 Vv
2 NT$2,000,000 ~ NT$4,000,000
3 NT$4,000,000 ~ NT$6,000,000
4 NT$6,000,000 ~ NT$8,000,000 \
5 NT$8,000,000 ~ NT$10,000,000 )
6 NT$10,000,000 or above
Unit: NTD Thousand
Non-Audit Fee
Name of CPA Audit Duration of
o ) Notes
accounting firm Name Fee Sytem Business Human Audit
Others Sum
Design | Registration | Resource
Deloitte & Kuo-Tien Hung | 7,498 - 65 - 793 858 108.01.01  |Others of Non-Audit Fee:
Touche - | Transfer pricing
Hung-Bin Yu 108.09.30 Report, Tax Consultancy,
Deloitte & Wen-Yea Shyu 108.10.01 l\.lt.)n—man'ager salary
Touch - e filing audit report, and
ouche Hung-Bin Yu | Chattel Mortgage review
108.12.31 report.

2. If the company changes accounting firm and the amount of audit fee paid in the year of change is less than that
in the year before, the amount of decrease and reason: The Company did not change accounting firm in 2019.

3. If the audit fee is more than 15% less than that paid in the previous year, the amount and percentage of
decrease and reason: Not applicable.

(V1) Information on change of accountants:
Due to internal changes in the CPA firm, the Company's CPA Kuo-Tien Hung and Hung-Bin Yu have been changed
to CPA Wen-Yea Shyu and Hung-Bin Yu since 2019 Fourth quarter.

(1) Regarding previous CPA

Date of change

December 23, 2019

Reasons for change and remark

Internal adjustment of the certifying CPA firm

accept the appointment

Termination initiated by client or accountant declined to

Contracting parties

Scenario

CPA Client

Termination initiated by
client

CPA declined to accept
(continue) the appointment

N/A

past two years and reasons

Audit opinions other than unqualified opinions issued in the

None

Opinions different from those of issuer

None

Other disclosures

None

(2) Regarding succeeding CPA

Name of firm

Deloitte & Touche

CPA Name

Wen-Yea Shyu and Hung-Bin Yu

Date of appointment

December 23, 2019
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Consultation given on accounting treatment or accounting
principle adopted for any specific transactions and on possible

T ) . . ) None
opinion issued on financial report prior to appointment and
results
Succeeding CPAs' written opinions that are different from N
one

those of the previous CPAs

(3) The former CPA's reply to matters under Items 1 and 2-3, Subparagraph 6, Article 10 of the Regulations
Governing Information to be published in Annual Reports of Public Companies: None

(VII) The chairman, president and financial or accounting manager of the Company who had worked for
the certifying accounting firm or its affiliate in the past year: None

(VIN1) Share transfer by directors, managers and shareholders holding more than 10% of shares and

changes to share pledging by them in the past year and up to the date of report

Unit: Shares
2019 2020 up to March 31
Title Name Increase (decrease) | Increase (decrease) | Increase (decrease) | Increase (decrease)
in shares held in shares pledged in shares held in shares pledged
Chairman and CEO Arthur Yu-Cheng Chiao - - - -
Vice Chairman and Deputy CEO |Yuan-Mow Su (Note 3) (162,000) - - -
Director Yung Chin - - - -
Independent director Francis Tsai - - - -
Independent director Allen Hsu - - - -
Independent director Jerry Hsu - - - -
Independent director San-Cheng Chang (Note 4) - - - -
Independent director Stephen T. Tso (Note 5)
Director Wei-Hsin Ma - - - -
Director Chih-Chen Lin - - - -
Institutional and top Lo i
. Walsin Lihwa Corporation - - - -
Director |10 shareholder
Representative Sophi Pan - - - -
Deputy CEO Tung-Yi Chan (Note 3) - - - -
President Pei-Ming Chen (Note 6) - - - -
Vice President Cheng-Kung Lin - - - -
Vice President Chin-Fen Tsai - - - -
Vice President Pei-Lin Pai - - - -
Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer, and Corporate Jessica Huang (63,000) - - -
Governance Officer
Vice President Hsiang-Yun Fan (Note 7) 120,000
Vice President Wen-Hua Lu (Note 8) - - - -
Chief Business Officer Eungjoon Park - - - -
Assistant Vice President Shi-Yuan Wang - - - -
Assistant Vice President Eddy Hung (8,000) - (72,000) -
Assistant Vice President Mao-Hsiang Yen 12,552 - -
Assistant Vice President Hsiu-Han Liao 13,416 - - -
Assistant Vice President Yo-Song Cheng (Note 9) 11,476 - - -
Accounting Officer Chin-Feng Yang (Notel0) - - - -

Note 1: The information above is based on actual shares held.

Note 2: Share transfer to non-related parties, not pledged.
Note 3: Deputy CEO Yuan-Mow Su is to retire on March 1, 2020. President Tung-Yi Chan is to be promoted to deputy CEO on March 1, 2020.
Note 4: Mr. San-Cheng Chang served as an independent director of the Company up to November 15, 2019. The above table discloses his
information up to the date his term of office as Winbond's independent director ends.
Note 5: Mr. Stephen T. Tso is appointed an independent director starting June 14, 2019.
Note 6: Mr. Pei-Ming Chen is appointed President starting March 1, 2020.
Note 7: Mr. Hsiang-Yun Fan is appointed vice president starting August 1, 2019.
Note 8: Mr. Wen-Hua Lu is appointed vice president starting November 1, 2019.
Note 9: Mr. Yo-Song Cheng served as an assistant vice president of the Company up to October 14, 2019. The above table discloses his information
up to the date his service as a manager of the Company ends.
Note 10: Ms. Jin-Feng Yang is appointed chief accounting officer starting March 1, 2020.
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kinship within the second degree)

(IX) Information on relationship between any of the top ten shareholders (related party, spouse, or

March 31, 2020; Unit: Shares

Shares held by the

Shares held by spouse

Total amount of shares
held in the name of

Titles, names and relationships
between top 10 shareholders

Notes

person and minor children (related party, spouse, or kinship
others .
within the second degree) (Note 3)
Name @ %) @
=33 _%% ~%s
o 3 Z3 S 3 Titl
Shares 2e3 Shares 283 Shares E e Relationship
2 o T 22 = 9 (or name)
= 9 o ,& 2 =& o
—® 5 =% 5 %5
° 2 = ° 2
+ Chin Xin + The chairmen of two
Investment Institutional
Corp. shareholders have
second degree of
kinship
- Arthur - A relative within
Yu-Cheng second degree of
Chiao kinship with the
chairman of the
institutional
shareholder
- Pai-Yung - Arelative within
Walsin Lihwa Corporation | 883,848,423 | 22.21% - - - - | Hong first degree of
kinship with the
chairman of the
institutional
shareholder
- Yu-Lon - Chairman of the
Chiao institutional
shareholder
- Yu-Heng - Arelative within
Chiao second degree of
kinship with the
chairman of the
institutional
shareholder
- Arthur - The two have
Yu-Cheng second degree of
Chiao kinship
- Pai-Yung + The two persons
Walsin Lihwa Hong L\;\;?];l)rst degree of
Corporation - Chin Xin - The chairmen of
. 29,694,984 0.80% | 4,531,771 0.11% N | Investment two institutional
Re!aresentatwe. Yu-Lon Corp. shareholders have
Chiao second degree of
kinship
- Yu-Heng - The two have
Chiao second degree of
kinship
- Walsin - The chairmen of
Lihwa two institutional
Corporation shareholders have
second degree of
kinship
- Arthur - Chairman of the
Yu-Cheng institutional
Chiao shareholder
- Pai-Yung - A relative within
Hong first degree of
kinship with the
chairman of the
(Chin Xin Investment Corp. | 221,003,072| 5.55% - - - - ;'r‘]i‘g‘ﬁc',‘l’ggl
+ Yu-Lon - Arelative within
Chiao second degree of
kinship with the
chairman of the
institutional
shareholder
- Yu-Heng - Arelative within
Chiao second degree of
kinship with the
chairman of the
institutional
shareholder
- Walsin - A relative within
Lihwa second degree of
o Corporation kinship with the
Chin Xin Investment chairman of the
Corp. institutional
) 63,472,995 1.59% | 11,778,797 0.30% - - shareholder
Representative: Arthur N
~ ; - Pai-Yung + The two persons
Yu-Cheng Chiao Hong have first degree of
kinship
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Shares held by the

Shares held by spouse

Total amount of shares

Titles, names and relationships
between top 10 shareholders

person and minor children held |nottr;;::me of (related party, spouse, or kinship Notes
within the second degree) (Note 3)
Name = E % N % = E %
3 @ Z3a 3@ ;
Shares % g3 Shares 23 % Shares % $ 3 Title Relationship
5&§§ H£§ :5%9__' (or name)
5 R Tt a 2
- Yu-Lon - The two have
Chiao second degree of
kinship
- Yu-Heng - The two have
Chiao second degree of
kinship
Walsin Lihwd - A relative within
. second degree of
Corporation kinship with the
chairman of the
institutional
shareholder
- Pai-Yung | - Thetwo persons
Hong have first degree of
kinshi
IArthur Yu-Cheng Chiao 63,472,995 | 1.59% | 11,778,797 0.30% - - Yu-Lon . The t\,eo have
Chiao second degree of
kinship
+ Chin Xin - Chairman of the
Investment institutional
Corp. shareholder
- Yu-Heng - The two have
Chiao second degree of
kinship
Vanguard Total
International Stock
Index Fund, a series of
Vanguard Star Funds 48,916,909 1.23% - - - Note 2
under the custody of
JPMorgan Chase Bank
N.A. Taipei Branch
Vanguard Emerging
Markets Stock Index
Fund managed by
Vanguard Group under 46,148,602 1.16% - - - Note 2
the custody of
JPMorgan Chase Bank
N.A. Taipei Branch
Norges Bank
Investment Account 44,890,045 1.13% . . . Note 2
under the trust of
Citibank (Taiwan)
LGT Bank (Singapore)
Investment Fund under
the custody of 41,540,306 1.04% - - - Note 2
JPMorgan Chase Bank
N.A. Taipei Branch
s - Arelative within
Walsin L|hwa first degree of
Corporation kinship with the
chairman of the
institutional
shareholder
- Arthur - The two persons
Yu-Cheng have first degree of
Chiao kinship
- Yu-Lon - The two persons
Pai-Yung Hong 38,433,771 0.97% - - - Chiao have first degree of -
kinship
. Chin Xin - Arelative within
Investment first degree of
Corp. kinship with the
chairman of the
institutional
shareholder
- Yu-Heng - The two persons
Chiao have first degree of
kinship
Dimension Emerging
Market Evaluation Fund 35,350,572 0.89% . . . Note 2
under the trust of
Citibank (Taiwan)
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(X

~

Total amount of shares Titles, names and relationships
Shares held by the Shares held by spouse . between top 10 shareholders
X ; held in the name of S Notes
person and minor children others (related party, spouse, or kinship
within the second degree) (Note 3)
Name = E % 3 % = E %
o o Z3 o S i
Shares ERl Shares 23 % Shares R Title Relationship
L‘i&%f’-. H£§ :5%9__' (or name)
LS TR 53
s - Arelative within
Walsin L|hwa second degree of
Corporation kinship with the
chairman of the
institutional
shareholder
- Arthur + The two have
Yu-Cheng second degree of
Chiao kinship
- Pai-Yung | - The two persons
Yu-Heng Chiao 31,988,748 | 0.80% | 2,728,567 0.07% - - | Hong Lyaveh first degree of -
inship
+ Chin Xin - A relative within
Investment second degree of
Corp. kinship with the
chairman of the
institutional
shareholder
- Yu-Lon - The two have
Chiao second degree of
kinship

Note 1: "Shareholding percentage" was based on then issued and outstanding common shares of 3,980,000,193 shares as of March 31, 2020.

Note 2: The custodian banks are unable to provide the list of ultimate holders.
Note 3: Relationships are disclosed pursuant to the "Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers."

The shareholding of the Company, Director, manager and an enterprise that is directly or indirectly

controlled by the Company in the invested company

December 31, 2019; Unit: Shares

Investments by directors,
managers and directly or i .
Investment by the Company (A) | . . i Combined investment (A+B)
Invested entity indirectly controlled enterprises
(Note) (B)
Shares Percentage Shares Percentage Shares Percentage
(%) (%) (%)

Winbond International Corporation 95,410,000 100 - - 95,410,000 100
Pine Capital Investment Ltd. 780,000 100 - - 780,000 100
Landmark Group Holdings Ltd. 5,343,000 100 - - 5,343,000 100
Winbond Electronics (H.K.) Ltd. 71,150,000 100 - - 71,150,000 100
Winbond Technology Ltd 100,000 100 - - 100,000 100
Callisto Holding Limited 40,000,000 100 - - 40,000,000 100
Great Target Development Ltd. 4,460,000 100 - - 4,460,000 100
Winbond Electronics Germany GmbH 850,000 100 - - 850,000 100
Nuvoton Technology Corporation 177,000,000 62 477,979 - 177,477,979 62
Chin Xin Investment Corp. 182,840,999 38 194,696,278 40 377,537,277 78
Hwa Bao Botanic Conservation Corp. 75,000 15 75,000 15 150,000 30

Note: Long-term investment accounted for using equity method.

- 49




Capital Raising Overview

I. Capital and shareholding
(1) Sources of capital
March 31, 2020; Unit: shares; NTD
Authorized capital Paid-in capital Notes
Subscriptions
Year/ | lIssue o
K . paid with Approval date and
month | price Shares Amount Shares Amount Sources of capital
property other number
than cash
Exercise of employee .
Zh -Shang-Zi-1
2014.02| 10 | 6,700,000,000 | 67,000,000,000 | 3,694,023,193|  36,940,231,930|stock options: None ong-Shang-Zi-103000
3799 dated 2014/02/19
NTS$20,560,000
Exercise of employee .
2014.05| 10 | 6,700,000,000 | 67,000,000,000 | 3,694,466,193|  36,944,661,930|stock options: None  |/hong-Shang-Zi-103001
’ e e o o : 1345 dated 2014/05/14
NT$4,430,000 ate 105/
Exercise of employee .
. Zhong-Shang-Zi-103002
2014.09 10 6,700,000,000 67,000,000,000 3,694,640,193 36,946,401,930|stock options: None 1668 dated 2014/09/18
NT$1,740,000
Exercise of employee Zhong-Shang-i-103002
2014.11 10 6,700,000,000 67,000,000,000 3,694,982,193 36,949,821,930|stock options: None 6773 dated 2014/11/20
NTS3,420,000
Decrease in treasury Zhong-Shang-Zi-104002
2015.11 10 6,700,000,000 67,000,000,000 3,580,000,193 35,800,001,930(stock: None 8089 dated 2015/11/18
NTS$1,149,820,000
2017.12| 10 | 6700,000,000 | 67,000,000,000 | 3,980,000,193  39,800,001,30| 3" capital increase: None |Znong-Shang-zi-106100
) T T T T NTS$4,000,000,000 0748 dated 2017/12/26
March 31, 2019; Unit: shares
Authorized capital Notes Shares issued and
Type of stock - - - .
Shares issued and outstanding Un-issued shares Total outstanding
Common .
sh 3,980,000,193 2,719,999,807 6,700,000,000 Listed Stock
ares

Note 1: Of the total capital amount, up to NTS5 billion may be used for issues of employee stock options, preferred stocks or corporate bonds with

warrant for a total of 500 million shares with par value of NT$S10 per share. Those shares may be issued in installments. The respective amount for

the issue of employee stock options, preferred stocks or corporate bonds with warrant may be adjusted by resolution of the Board of Directors in

view of the capital market situation and business needs.

Note 2: Information on shelf registration: None

(1) Shareholder structure

March 31, 2020

Quantity/ Government Financial other Individual . -For-e|gn Chinese investors

shareholder . s ) K institutions and Total
agencies institutions corporations investors . (Note)

structure foreigners

Number of

people 3 68 283 237,758 549 4 238,665

Shares held 8,893,494 96,608,849 1,137,440,701 1,937,645,377 805,410,397 1,375 3,980,000,193

Percentage (%) 0.22% 2.28% 28.58% 48.68% 20.24% 0.00% 100%

Note: Chinese investors refer to China individuals, juristic persons, groups, other institutions or companies based in a third area as provided in Article

3 of the Regulations Governing Investment by People in Mainland China.

(1) Dispersion of equity ownership

1. Common shares:
March 31, 2020; Par value of NT$10 per share
Shares Number of shareholders Shares held Percentage (%)

1~999 62,131 17,140,593 0.43

1,000 ~ 5,000 115,852 270,872,716 6.81

5,001 ~ 10,000 29,139 232,481,118 5.84

10,001 ~ 15,000 9,956 125,364,398 3.15

15,001 ~ 20,000 6,842 127,479,252 3.20

20,001 ~ 30,000 5,606 142,783,119 3.59

30,001 ~ 50,000 4,271 171,536,609 4.31
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Shares Number of shareholders Shares held Percentage (%)
50,001 ~ 100,000 2,836 203,171,533 5.10
100,001 ~ 200,000 1,132 159,013,698 4.00
200,001 ~ 400,000 466 129,349,109 3.25
400,001 ~ 600,000 132 64,503,982 1.62
600,001 ~ 800,000 62 42,715,701 1.07
800,001 ~ 1,000,000 40 35,741,306 0.90
>1,000,001 200 2,257,847,059 56.73
Total 238,665 3,980,000,193 100.00

2. Preferred stocks: N/A

(IV) List of major shareholders

1. Names, shares and percentage of shareholding of shareholders with more than 5% of equity:

March 31, 2020

Name/ shareholding of major shareholder Shares held Percentage (%)
Walsin Lihwa Corporation 883,848,423 shares 22.21%
Chin Xin Investment Corp. 221,003,072 shares 5.55%

2. For names, shares and percentage of shareholding of top ten shareholders please see p. 47-49 .

(V) Stock price, net worth, earnings, dividends and related information for the previous two years
Unit: NTS
Item/ Year 2018 2019 2020 up to March 31
_|High 25.25 20.3 20.6
Stock price
Low 11.35 12.35 16.95
(Note 1)
Average 18.47 17.14 16.03
Net worth |Before distribution 15.69 15.33 -
per share o
After distribution 14.69 15.23 -
(Note 2)
. Weighted average shares (1,000
Earnings 3,980,000 3,980,000 -
shares)
per share -
Earnings per share 1.87 0.32 -
Cash dividend 1.00 0.10 -
Dividends |Stock From retained earnings - - -
per share |dividends [From capital surplus - - -
Accumulated unpaid dividend - - -
Ret Price-earnings ratio (Note 3) 9.88 53.56 -
eturn
analvsis Price-dividend ratio (Note 4) 18.47 171.40 -
v Cash dividend yield (Note 5) 5.41% 0.58 -

Note 1: The year's high and low market prices of common share are provided and the average price for the year is computed based on the year's
transaction amount and volume.

Note 2: Net worth per share is computed based on the number of shares issued and outstanding at the end of the year.

Note 3: Price-earnings ratio=Year's average per share closing price / earnings per share.

Note 4: Price-dividend ratio= Year's average per share closing price / cash dividend per share.

Note 5: Cash dividend yield= Cash dividend per share / year's average per share closing price.

Note 6: The 2019 earnings distribution plan was resolved in Board Meeting dated March 31, 2020.

(V1) Dividend policy and implementation status

1. Dividend policy

The Company's dividend policy declared in the Articles of Incorporation is as follows:
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(v

Any profit at the closing of each fiscal year shall be used to offset prior years' losses after paying all taxes. The
Company shall set aside 10% of the remainder, if any, as legal reserve until such reserve equals the paid-in capital.
Special reserve may be set aside or reversed according to laws or the competent authority. For the remainder, if
any, plus undistributed earnings in prior years, the Board of Directors may propose an earnings distribution plan
for dividends for stockholders and submit the plan to the shareholders' meeting for approval.

Where the earnings, statutory surplus reserve, and capital surplus above are to be made in cash, the board of
directors shall be granted the authority to decide by a resolution adopted by a majority vote at a meeting
attended by over two-thirds of the directors. A distribution report shall also be presented at the shareholders
meeting.

The Company's dividend policy is set up in accordance with the Company Act and the Articles of Incorporation of
Winbond Electronics Corp. in consideration of factors including capital, financial structure, operating status,
earnings, industry characteristics and cycle, etc. Hence the distribution of dividends will factor in the future plans
for operational scale and cash flow needs, which however shall not be less than 30% of earnings for the year after
offsetting accumulated deficits and deducting legal reserve and special reserve and may be distributed in the form
of stock or cash, in which cash dividend to be distributed shall not be less than 50% of total dividends to promote
the sustainable development of the Company.

The Company may distribute surplus earnings or offset losses after the end of each half fiscal year. The board of
directors should be charged with preparing the books and proposal under Article 21 and following the statutory
procedure to submit the documents to the board of directors for approval.

2. Dividend distribution to be proposed to the shareholders' meeting: Pursuant to Article 240 of the Company Act
and the Winbond Articles of Incorporation, the board of directors passed a resolution on March 12, 2020 to
distribute NT$398,000,019 in cash dividends, or NT$0.1 per common share, for 2019. The actual cash dividends
will be rounded down to the nearest dollar. The odd amounts under NT$1 will be combined and recognized as
other income for the Company. In the event of a future buyback causing changes in the number of outstanding
shares and consequently the amount per share to be distributed to shareholders, the chairman is authorized to
make adjustments based on the actual number of outstanding shares on the ex-dividend date.

Effect of the proposed stock dividends (to be adopted by the shareholders' meeting) on the
operating performance and earnings per share: N/A.

(VIl1) Remuneration to employees and directors

1. Percentage or scope of compensation for employees and directors provided in Company's Articles of
Incorporation:

The Company shall set aside not more than 1% of its earnings before tax for the year prior to deducting
compensation of employees and directors as remuneration to directors, and not less than 1% as employee
compensation. Employee compensation shall be decided by the Board of Directors, and may be distributed in the
form of stock or cash to employees. Employee bonus and director remuneration proposals shall be presented to
the shareholders meeting.

However when the Company still has accumulated loss, a certain amount of the earnings shall be retained for
making up the loss and the remainder may be set aside as employee compensation and remuneration to directors
according to the percentage specified in the preceding paragraph.

2. Basis for estimating the amount of compensation for employees and directors, basis for calculating the number
of shares to be distributed as stock compensation, and the accounting treatment of the discrepancy, if any,
between the actual distributed amount and the estimated amount, for the current period:

According to Article 22 of the Company's Articles of Incorporation, 1% of the Company's 2019 CPA-audited
earnings in the amount of NT$14,019,096 will be appropriated as remuneration to directors, and 2% in the
amount of NT$28,038,192 will be appropriated as employee compensation. The remuneration to directors and
the employee compensation will all be distributed in cash. The aforementioned appropriation ratios and amounts
have been passed by the Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors.

If the estimated amount differs from the actual amount after the date of the consolidated financial report, the
discrepancy will be treated according to changes in accounting estimates and adjusted and entered into account
the following year.
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3. Distribution of compensation passed by the Board of Directors:

(1) Employee compensation and remuneration to directors distributed in the form of cash or stock. In case of any
discrepancy between the amounts and the amortized estimates for the year, the differences, reasons, and

responses should be disclosed.

Year of compensation: 2019

Unit: shares; NTS

. Any difference between the amounts and
. Remuneration to . . X .
Employee compensation . the estimates stated in the financial
directors
statements for the year
Cash Stock Number of Total Cash Difference Reason Actions

shares taken

28,038,192 - - 28,038,192 14,019,096 - N/A N/A

Note: There is no difference between the aforementioned compensation of employees and directors and the amount recognized in

the 2019 consolidated financial statements.

(2) Amount of employee compensation distributed in the form of stock as a percentage of the after-tax income
provided in this year's stand-alone financial statements and total employee compensation combined: N/A.

4. Information on actual distribution of employee compensation and remuneration to directors in the previous

year:

Year of compensation: 2018

Unit: shares; NTS

) Any difference between the amounts and

. Remuneration to . . ) -

Employee compensation R the estimates stated in the financial
directors
statements for the year
Number of Acti
Cash Stock Umber o Total Cash Difference Reason ctions

shares taken
163,649,825 - - 163,649,825 81,824,913 - N/A N/A

Note: There is no difference between the aforementioned compensation of employees, and directorsand the amount recognized in

the 2018 consolidated financial statements.

(IX) Stock buyback: None

II. Issuance of corporate bonds

March 31, 2020; Unit: NTS

Type of corporate bond

2018 first secured corporate bonds

Date of issue

2018/7/17

Denomination

1,000,000

Issue price

Fully issued at par value

Total amount

10,000,000,000

Coupon Rate

1% per annum

Tenor 7-year maturity date: 2025/7/17

Guarantors Taiwan Cooperative Bank, CTBC Bank, Taishin International Bank, Mega
Bank, DBS Bank, Bank of Taiwan, Chang Hwa Bank, E.Sun Commercial
Bank, First Commercial Bank, Taiwan Business Bank

Trustee SinoPac Bank

Underwriter

Taiwan Cooperative Bank

Legal advisor

Hsin-Lan Hsu, Lee and Li, Attorneys-at-Law

bond rating

Auditor Hung-Bin Yu, Deloitte & Touche
Repayment Bullet loan

Unpaid principal 10,000,000,000

Redemption or early repayment clause None

Covenants None

Name of credit rating agency, date of rating, and None

Other | Amount of converted (exchanged or
rights subscribed) common shares, GDRs or
of other securities

Other rights of bondholders
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olders | features

bondh | Issuance and conversion (or exchange)

Possible dilution effect of issuance and conversion,
exchange or subscription features and terms of None
issue, and effects on existing stockholders' equity

Custodian

N/A

lll. Issuance of preferred stocks: None

IV. Issuance of global depository receipts (GDR)

March 31, 2020; Unit: USD

Date of issue

February 5, 1999

Place of issue and trading

Luxembourg

Total amount

US$333,502,000

Offering price per unit

February 5, 1999 - initial issue US$11.45 |November 18, 1999 - additional issue US$16.70

Total units issued (units)

30,336,980
February 5, 1999 - initial issue 14,600,000
November 18, 1999 - additional issue 9,960,000
July 7, 2000 - additional issue for the
2,108,252
distribution of stock dividends 108,25
June 1, 2001 - additional issue for the
! 72
distribution of stock dividends 3,668,728

Source of underlying security

Issuance of new shares for cash capital increase

Underlying security

10 common shares of Winbond

Rights and obligations of GDR
holder

Dividends, interest distribution and relevant taxes of the underlying shares represented
by the GDRs shall be governed by the laws of the Republic of China, the Depository
Agreement and the Custodial Agreement.

Trustee

None

Depository bank

Bank of New York Mellon Corp.

Custodial bank

Bank International Commercial Bank

Balance outstanding (units)

13,354

Allocation method for fees
incurred in issuance and the
outstanding period

Borne by Winbond Electronics Corp.

Covenants of depository
agreement and custodial

The deposit, redemption and delivery of the underlying shares represented by the GDRs
and the re-issuance of the GDRs shall be governed by the laws of the Republic of China,

agreement Depository Agreement and the Custodial Agreement.

High 6.56
2019
Uni Low 4.37
r.1|t Average |[5.36
price High 6.62
uss 202 -
(Uss) 020 up to Low 308
March 31

Average |5.29

V.  Exercise of employee stock option plan (ESOP): None

VI. Restricted stock awards: None

VIl Mrgers, acquisitions or issuance of new shares for acquisition of shares of other companies: None
VIII. Implementation of fund utilization plan:

I.  Financing project that is not yet fully implemented:
After being approved by the Board of Directors, the Company issued new shares on September 7, 2017 for cash
capital increase, which has been approved by the FSC Securities and Futures Bureau per letter No.
Jin-Guan-Zheng-Fa-Zi-1060038453 dated October 16, 2017. All funds are used to purchase machinery and

equipment.

(I)Issuance plan:
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1.Total funding needs under the plan: NT$10,935,000,000
2.Sources of funds:
(1) Issuance of 400,000,000 new shares at the price of NT$22 per share to raise capital in the amount of
NTS$8,800,000,000.
(2) The rest of the funds in the amount of NT$2,135,000,000 necessary to the plan will come from own
funds or bank loans.
3.Project and planned fund utilization schedule
(1) Total fund utilization plan
Unit: NT$1,000

Planned Planned fund utilization schedule
i X Total funds
Project completion 2017 2018
needed
date Q3 Q4 ok} Q2 Q3 Q4
Expansion of
12-inch wafer Q42018 10,935,000 800,658 1,101,911 5,705,838 2,847,693 405,882 73,018
capacity

Note 1: The cash capital increase this time is expected to be completed by the end of 2017. Before the funds are raised in full, the Company
will use own funds and bank loans to meet the funding needs for capacity expansion.
Note 2: If the actual fund raised are less than the originally planned, the Company will use own fund and bank loans to cover the shortfall. If

the actual fund raised is more than the originally planned, extra fund will also be used in the expansion of 12-inch wafer capacity.

(2) Plan for utilizing funds raised in the planned capital increase
Unit: NT$1,000

Planned fund utilization schedule
. Planned Total funds
Project . . 2018
completion date raised
Ql Q2 Q3
Expansion of 12-inch Q32018 8,800,000 5,705,838 2,847,693 246,469
wafer capacity

4.Expected benefits
The Company plans to purchase NT$10,935,000,000 of machinery and equipment this time. The expected

benefits are illustrated below:
Unit: 1,000 pcs; NT$1,000

Year Product Production sales Sales value Gross profit Operating profits
volume volume
2018 12-inch wafers 49 39 3,057,635 993,704 810,246
2019 12-inch wafers 72 72 4,902,542 1,414,427 1,120,275
2020 12-inch wafers 72 72 4,461,314 1,248,416 980,737
2021 12-inch wafers 72 72 4,059,795 1,095,835 852,247
2022 12-inch wafers 72 72 3,694,414 955,598 733,933
2023 12-inch wafers 72 72 3,361,917 826,705 624,991
(IImplementation status:
Unit: NT$1,000
&a:fkg mplementat Current quarter Grand total Reasons for ahead or
Deadline X behind schedule and
Observation on status Planned Actual Planned Actual .
Post System improvement plan
Spending 0 228,603 0 228,603 | The cash capital increase

was completed on
December 15, 2017.
Progress (%) 0.00% 2.59% 0.00% 2.59% | Therefore the plan was
executed ahead of
schedule in Q4 2017.

2017.12.31 | 2018.01.10

Spending 5,705,838 4,421,721 5,705,838 4,650,324 | Ongoing according to
2018.03.31 | 2018.04.10 plan
Progress (%) 64.83% 50.25% 64.83% 52.84%
Spending 2,847,693 2,652,710 8,553,531 7,303,034 | Ongoing according to
2018.06.30 | 2018.07.09 plan
Progress (%) 32.36% 30.15% 97.19% 82.99%
Spending 246,469 423,933 8,800,000 7,726,967 | Ongoing according to
2018.09.30 | 2018.10.09 plan
Progress (%) 2.81% 4.81% 100.00% 87.80%
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Spending 0 157,263 8,800,000 7,884,230 | Factory expansion
2018.12.31 | 2019.01.08 ongoing according to
Progress (%) 0.00% 1.79% 100.00% 89.59% |
plan
Spending 0 62,847 8,800,000 7,947,077 | Factory expansion
2019.03.31 | 2019.04.08 ongoing according to
Progress (%) 0.00% 0.71% 100.00% 90.30% |
plan
Spending 0 183,115 8,800,000 8,130,192 | Factory expansion
2019.06.30 | 2019.07.08 ongoing according to
Progress (%) 0.00% 2.08% 100.00% 92.38% |
plan
Spending 0 76,127 8,800,000 8,206,319 | Factory expansion
2019.09.30 | 2019.10.08 ongoing according to
Progress (%) 0.00% 0.87% 100.00% 93.25% |
plan
Spending 0 143,075 8,800,000 8,349,394 | The fund raised for the
12-inch wafer capacity
expansion project was
2019.12.31 | 2020.01.09 executed in full. The
Progress (%) 0.00% 6.75% 100.00% 94.87% .
remaining balance was
redirected to provide
working capital.
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Business Overview
1. Business activities
a. Business Scope
1. Major business activities and percentages of total revenue

Winbond's core products include DRAM and Code Storage Flash Memory. Logic ICs are the principal products of
Nuvoton Technology Corporation ("Nuvoton Technology"), a major subsidiary of Winbond.
2018 revenue breakdown by product (as percentages of consolidated revenue):

Unit: NT$1,000

Key products Operating revenue %
DRAM product income 18,790,988 39
Flash memory product income 19,723,011 40
Logic IC revenue 10,256,574 21
Other income 861 -
Sales revenue - Consolidated financial statements 48,771,434 100

2. Key products
2.1 Dynamic random access memory (DRAM)

e Specialty DRAM: They are chiefly used in computing, communication and consumer electronics, automotive
and industrial electronics, and medical electronics. Specifications include 16Mb-4Gb and KGD (Known Good
Die).

e Mobile DRAM: They are chiefly used in cell phones, tablets, low power mobile handheld devices, wearable
devices, automotive and industrial electronics, and the Internet of Things (loT). Specifications include
32Mb-256Mb pseudo SRAM and 128Mb-4Gb Low Power Mobile DRAM.

2.2 Code Storage Flash Memory

They are chiefly used in PCs and their peripherals, mobile handheld devices and their peripheral modules,
network communications products, 10T, consumer electronics, automotive and industrial electronics, medical
electronics, and household appliance modules, etc. Specifications include 512Kb-8Gb.

2.3 LogicIC

Nuvoton Technology's primary business consists of IC design and sales and IC foundry services. The main IC
products offer a wide range of applications. Products include microcontrollers (MCU), audio products and
cloud computing products. Nuvoton Technology also owns a 6-inch IC plant equipped with diversified
processing technologies to provide professional IC foundry services.

3. New products and services under development
3.1 Dynamic random access memory (DRAM)

e Specialty DRAM: The company continues to develop 25nm shrink version manufacturing process for low- and
medium-capacity products. They are chiefly used in computing, communication and consumer electronics,
automotive and industrial electronics, and medical electronics. We will also continue to develop the more
advancing process.

e Mobile DRAM: We will continue to develop medium-to-low density as well as low power consumption,
high bandwidth and better data transmission rate mobile DRAM for applications principally in cell phones,
tablets, low power consumption mobile devices, wearable devices, 10T, automotive and industrial
electronics.

3.2 Code Storage Flash Memory

We will continue to follow the 4xnm process to produce safe, high performance, low power consumption code
storage flash memory products with high added value for applications in PCs and peripherals, mobile handheld
devices and peripheral modules, network communications products, IoT, consumer electronics, automotive
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and industrial electronics, medical electronics, household appliance modules, and information security, etc.
We will also continue to develop more advancing process technology.

3.3 LogicIC

The development of new logic IC will focus on low power consumption MCU using high-end processing
technologies to satisfy the demands for low-power high-performance applications in loT, industrial control, etc.
Current development of audio products focuses on Class D smart amplifier and audio MCU for applications in
smart speaker, cell phone, consumer electronics and portable notebook markets. In terms of cloud computing
products, the Company actively introduces functions that satisfy future energy conservation legislation. In
addition, we increase the computing speed of the embedded processor and the hardware encryption module
to fulfill customer demand for product innovation and security functions.

b. Industry overview

1. Industry current trends and future outlook
1.1 DRAM

The global economic growth slowed down in 2019 amid U.S.-China trade war and rising geopolitical risk. The
memory industry suffered as a result of slow inventory digestion and weaker than expected market demands.
However, changes in the industrial environment marked by more orderly competition in the DRAM market and
diverse applications that drive a new wave of demands for memory have aided the stable growth of the
semiconductor industry. For example, emerging technologies, such as Al and 5G are expected to greatly
expand the application of IoT, and terminal devices enabled with edge computing will create demands for
product upgrade while driving increased use of memory for the add-ons.

1.2 Code Storage Flash Memory

Winbond's code storage flash memory features a serial interface. Winbond is one of the world's three leading
serial flash memory suppliers and holds more than one third of the global market. Code storage flash memory
is a relatively stable market in terms of size and growth. The code storage flash process is a mature technology
that requires relatively less investment and new capacities added in recent years are not disruptive to market
equilibrium. Moreover, code storage flash is a key component in numerous electronic applications. The
growing number of electronic products and higher capacities will keep the market stable as a whole for a long
time.

1.3 Logic IC

The demand for MCU continues to climb. The 32-bit ARM® Cortex®-M MCU is the backbone of the market
and new applications are wide ranging as the product offers low power consumption and high performance.
With respect to audio products, a wave of revolution and innovations involving applications that enable hands
free natural language interaction between voice-user interfaces (VUI) and the internet is setting the industry
standards. The demand for cloud services and applications continues to grow while technologies from smart
networks to Al computing start changing the everyday life. Servers, data centers, and custom computing
devices all serve to satisfy consumers' needs for changes in a constantly changing world.

2. Relationships with suppliers in the industry's supply chain
2.1 Memory industry

In terms of the supply chain, upstream equipment suppliers provide the manufacturing equipment, while raw
material suppliers are responsible for producing silicon wafers, masks, chemicals, metal targets, gases, and
other raw materials for the production of memory.

Midstream memory suppliers, after purchasing equipment and raw materials, use the manufacturing
equipment to develop a series of complex processes, such as lithography, rapid hi-temperature processing,
chemical vapor deposition, ion implantation, etching, chemical machinery polishing and grinding, and process
control and monitoring. Moreover, midstream memory manufacturers will design and develop related
memory products based on market demand and future trends. Manufacturers will use process technology to
etch the finished product onto the wafers and deliver the wafers to downstream packaging and testing
suppliers for backend packaging and testing.

Downstream packaging and testing suppliers are responsible for cutting, grinding, packaging, and completing
the final tests of wafers produced in the preceding stage before delivering the finished product to the memory
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manufacturers. Memory manufacturers sell the finished product to end-product system manufacturers,
module manufacturers, or distributors who will then apply the memory to related products or sell the memory
to end customers.

2.2 Logic IC industry

The supply chain of the Logic IC industry can be roughly divided into upstream IC design companies, midstream
IC manufacturers and downstream IC packaging and testing plants. In terms of the supply chain, MCUs are the
control and computing core of end products. In cloud computing IC, downstream customers consist mainly of
servers, desktop workstations, personal computers, smart handheld devices, network communications and
industrial computer industries.

3. Product trends and competition

3.1 Dynamic random access memory (DRAM)

With respect to product technology, specialty DRAM product technology has advanced from SDR, DDR, DDR2,
DDR3, and DDR4 to DDR5. Mobile DRAM will also move from LP DDR, LP DDR2, LP DDR3 and LP DDR4 to LP
DDR5. DDR4 and LP DDR4 are the current mainstream of the DRAM industry, which continues to be
dominated by an oligopoly of three large international DRAM manufacturers.

With respect to process technology, international DRAM manufacturers continue to increase the percentage
of advanced production such as 1xnm in 2019. Other manufacturers in Taiwan implement 2xnm through
technology licensing, and develop their own 1xnm processes at the same time. Trial production is expected to
start in late 2020. Winbond is Taiwan's only successful manufacturer with in-house 25nm process technology,
which has entered mass production in the fourth quarter of 2018. It will also continue to invest to develop the
25nm shrink version process.

3.2 Code Storage Flash Memory

With respect to product capacity, the demand for high-capacity code storage flash memory continues to
increase. The capacity of NOR flash memory ranges from 512Kb to 512Mb, and the capacity of NAND flash
memory has been expanded to 8Gb, which is the prevailing industry trend. Furthermore, the market will be
moving toward an approach that begins with end user applications and proceeds to develop code storage flash
memory that offers added value, security, high speed and low voltage. The code storage flash memory market
is currently dominated by international manufacturers and some Taiwanese and Chinese manufacturers.

3.3 LogicIC

MCU products must feature low power consumption as well as high performance and cost effectiveness.
Different fields of application demand specific designs and one product cannot satisfy all requirements.
Therefore, the MCU platform products with high security design and software/hardware reference solutions
developed for different applications are the market mainstreams. The development of audio products will
continue to focus on audio microcontrollers, ultra-low power (ULP) audio CODEC, smart class-D audio amplifier
and the DSP algorithm to provide integrated solutions for all kinds of voice interface applications. The demand
for cloud services appears when users try to upload a massive amount of data. Innovative applications and
service leadership depend not only on well-established data centers, but also on solutions for a growing need
for security in end user information gathering infrastructure.

c. Overview of Technology and R&D

1. Winbond's R&D expenses (including those of the subsidiary and Nuvoton Technology) in the previous year and in

the current year up to the annual report publication date:

Unit: NT$1,000

Item

2019

2020 up to March 31

R&D Expenses

8,132,031

1,911,335

2. Successfully developed technologies and products

2.1 Dynamic random access memory (DRAM)

Winbond is Taiwan's only supplier with in-house process technology. It has completed the development of
25nm DRAM, and continued to improve the yield for the in-house 25nm process technology. Winbond is
proceeding to develop the 25nm shrink version process in order to meet customers' requirements of high
quality, high reliability, and special process specifications.
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2.2 Code Storage Flash Memory

Winbond continues to use the 4Xnm process to develop code storage flash memory that offers added value,
security, high speed, low power consumption, low voltage or encryption. The company also takes a step
further to develop more advancing process in order to secure its leading position in serial NOR flash memory.
In addition, Winbond continues to promote the serial interface and the more economical 1Gb/2Gb/4Gb/8Gb
products to meet the demand of different end user applications.

2.3 LogicIC

e The Company launched the high-performance Cortex®-MO0 MO0564 and high-performance NUC126 USB
controllers, which are adapted to industrial control and smart meters, and high-level low-pin 1T 8051
MCU--N76E003.

e NuMicro® M2351 series MCU built in with TrustZone® that focuses on loT security.

e The Company launched the third-generation BMC (Baseboard Management Controller) products, which
support Intel's Purley and AMD Rome server platforms. The product line uses top-performing Cortex® A9
dual-core processor and supports the safe activation of BMC to prevent attacks on the firmware.

d. Business plan - long-term and short-term
1. Short-term business development plans

1.1 Dynamic random access memory (DRAM)
e The company works to improve yield for 25nm process and invests in the development of 2xnm process to
reduce product costs and improve quality.
e The company is devoted to developing new products, new customers, and new applications in order to
increase chip sales volume and revenue and improve profitability.
e Applications, customers, and product combinations are constantly enhanced to increase the value and
profitability of each chip.

1.2 Code Storage Flash Memory

e The company continues to develop the advancing manufacturing process to reduce product costs and
improve quality.

e The company continues to try to increase its market share in computers and their peripherals, mobile
handheld devices and their peripheral modules, IoT, automotive and industrial electronics, and medical
electronics.

e Applications, customers, and product combinations are optimized to increase the value and profitability of
each chip.

e The company cultivates world-class brand customers in pursuit of profit stability and growth.

1.3 Logic IC

e In MCU, we enhance the advantages in cost-performance ratio and localized support and actively build an
ecosphere where we provide a complete development platform to provide customers with the best
development experience.

e With respect to audio products, we will provide customers with comprehensive and high-performance audio
and voice solutions.

e Regarding cloud computing products, the Company will expand the development of competitive hardware
and software solutions that are suitable for the world's leading brands through leading secure technologies
and integrated local advantages.

2. Long-term business development plans
2.1 Dynamic random access memory (DRAM)

e The company continues the development of advanced processes to increase core competitiveness.

e The company develops mobile DRAM with new specifications and explores different areas of applications.

e The company increases market share for niche markets such as KGD, automotive, industrial, and medical,
MCP, and SiP.

2.2 Code Storage Flash Memory

e The company continues the development of the high-margin end product application market, including
automotive and industrial electronics, medical electronics, loT, and wearable devices. We have received
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certification from leading international manufacturers.
e The goal is to offer value in high speed, low voltage, low power, and heightened security levels.

2.3 LogicIC

e MCU operations will continue to focus on product development and strengthen technologies in terms of low
power consumption, analog and security; and through product innovation and process technology evolution,
enrich the 32-bit and 8-bit MCU product platform.

e Audio operations will be built around high-performance, low power consumption audio processing controller
and expand the deployment of amplifier and ULP audio CODEC products in the hope to skip the low-end,
low-price market and put more resources into developing the smart toy market that offers higher profit
margin.

2. Market, production and sales
a. Market analysis

1. Winbond's consolidated sales revenue (including that of the subsidiary Nuvoton Technology) by region of product
sales for the year 2019:

Unit: NT$1,000

Region Sales %
Asia 44,709,682 92%
Americas 2,492,029 5%
Europe 1,528,999 3%
Other 40,724 -
Total 48,771,434 100%

2. Market share and growth potential
2.1 DRAM

In 2019, Winbond held nearly 1% of the entire DRAM market. For 2020, market research firm predicts that
under global economic uncertainties due to COVID-19 pandemic and the U.S.-China trade war, 2020 first half
demands for PC, smart phones and consumer electronic end devices will slow down except for NB, Servers,
and Data center which are in contrary benefited from stay-at-home economy. The bit growth for DRAM is
expected to be mild this year. But in the long run, Al and 5G are expected to greatly expand the application of
loT and the growing use of artificial intelligence in consumer electronics, loV (Internet of Vehicle) and Industry
4.0 will push up the demand for embedded memory chips and bit capacity. All these developments will
contribute to the steady growth of the DRAM sector.

2.2 Code Storage Flash Memory

After many years of hard work in establishing its presence in the market, Winbond is now a leading supplier of
code storage flash memory in the world. Winbond continues to hold more than one third of the global serial
flash market in 2018. Moreover, the demand for code storage flash memory is shifting toward high capacity.
Higher density and the advantages of fewer pins and lower overall costs afforded by code storage flash
memory using a serial interface ensure continuing growth in the market for code storage flash memory using a
serial interface.

2.3 LogicIC

Our 32-bit Cortex®-M0/M4 MCU, ARM® 7/9, and 8-bit MCUs are cost effective and well received by the
market that help drive up our market share every year. Meanwhile, the development of MCUs is moving
toward energy-efficient, smart, small, light and multi-functions. The popularity of smart phones also drives the
strong demand for wireless chargers. The demands for energy efficient 10T devices, security management,
health management and Al products are expected to grow and propel the growth of MCU market.

The applications of our audio products in toys, loV, IoT and consumer home appliances have acquired a
significant market share. The output of audio CODEC IC and amplifiers in consumer electronics continues to
rise. With regard to computer/cloud applications, market share of our motherboard Super 1/0, notebook EC
and TPM still rank in the top three worldwide in 2018. Our major clients include well-known computer brands
and OEM service providers.
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3. Competitive edge, favorable and adverse factors for long-term growth and strategy

3.1 Dynamic random access memory (DRAM)

Competitive niches: Process development, product development, testing techniques, FAE capabilities, and
marketing and sales strengths are Winbond's core competencies. Currently, other DRAM suppliers in Taiwan
receive process technology from large foreign DRAM manufacturers by technology licensing. Winbond is the
only Taiwanese DRAM supplier with advanced processes development capabilities.

Favorable conditions for future development: Higher density in smart phones, tablets, TVs, set-top boxes,
networking and storage devices will increase DRAM demand. In terms of supply, Moore's law in advanced
DRAM process technology is entering a bottleneck, causing the supply to slow down, which will encourage
industry development.

Unfavorable factors and countermeasures: Slowing demand for smartphones may prompt other suppliers to
reallocate production capacity to DRAM production, leading to an increased supply and disrupting the
demand-supply balance. Winbond continues to optimize the applications lineup and try to explore new
opportunities in automotive and industrial electronics, medical electronics, and loT applications. The
company will also invest in new processes and implement advanced processes to improve product
profitability. Winbond is constantly exploring new applications and building strong customer relationships as
a means to mitigate the risks arising from economic uncertainties.

3.2 Code Storage Flash Memory

Competitive niches: Winbond has been working in the flash memory market for many years. It offers a
complete Code Storage Flash product series (512Kb-8Gb). Winbond held more than one third of the global
serial flash market in 2019.

Favorable conditions for future development: The company shipped more than 3.1 billion units and held
more than one third of the global market in 2019. Winbond is highly regarded by its customers for quality
and cost. The fact is demonstrated by the company holding more than 40% of the PCs and peripherals
market.

Unfavorable factors and countermeasures: New manufacturers in China will start supplying new production
capacities, which will affect the supply and demand in the low to medium density memory market and have
an impact on end product demand. Winbond continues to optimize the applications lineup and try to explore
new opportunities in automotive and industrial electronics, medical electronics, and loT applications. The
company will also invest in new processes and implement advanced processes to improve product
profitability. Winbond is constantly exploring new applications and new customers as a means to reduce the
risks arising from market uncertainties.

3.3 LogicIC

Competitive niches: The company provides professional R&D and technical support teams and establishes
strategic partnerships with customers. It provides total solutions to lower cost for customers and enhance
their competitive edge. The company's experience in the voice and audio processing market involves loT
market application for the integration of MCU audio CODEC and third-party voice recognition in hopes of
providing diversified product options and ideal economic solutions. With regard to cloud computing products,
Winbond and customers collaborated on developing customized chips for usage in non-computer product
lines to lower cost for customers and enhance their competitive edge.

Favorable conditions for future development: MCUs retain advantages in the ease of development by users
and environmental protection certifications. This core competitive edge raises the barrier to competition for
rivals. The audio enhancement DSP chips and the audio amplifier integrated chip can provide audio
optimization for customers' devices. Cloud computing products retain a leading position in the market. We
are also the world's only TPM IC supplier that is FIPS (Federal Information Processing Standards), Common
Criteria EAL4+ and TCG (Trust Computing Group) certified.

Unfavorable factors and countermeasures: Fierce competition in the consumer electronics market in recent
years, short product life cycles, and rapid replacement of traditional products by new products have all
contributed to increased costs. The only way to maintain a leading position in the market is to develop
products with high integration capabilities and lower cost while enhancing R&D capabilities. The company
will continue to strengthen optimization of its products and invest in global technical support teams in order
to provide localized customer support services. We will also provide reference designs to reduce R&D costs
and time required for customers to adopt our products, which will be the direction for gaining the
first-mover advantage.
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b. Major product manufacturing processes
1. Major applications of core products

1.1 Dynamic random access memory (DRAM)

e SDR/DDR/DDR2/DDR3 specialty DRAM: used in computer peripherals, automobile electronics, and consumer
electronic products

e Pseudo SRAM, Mobile DRAM (Low Power DRAM): used in mobile devices, computers and consumer
electronic products

1.2 Code Storage Flash Memory

They are used in PCs and their peripherals, mobile handheld devices and their peripheral modules, network
communications products, loT, consumer electronics, automotive and industrial
electronics, and household appliance modules, etc.

1.3 Logic IC

electronics, medical

Provide customers with industrial controls, consumer electronics, smart home appliances, computer
equipment, vehicle-mounted equipment, and communication products.

2. Chief product manufacturing processes

The integrated circuit manufacturing process consists of five processes: IC design, mask making, wafer fabrication,
packaging, and testing. (see flowchart below):

| Define Standards |

Wafer Packaging

l | l > Fabrication >

) . A 4
IC design & System design & l - -
Layout design software design Final Testing

Wafer C.P.
| | Testing
A 4
Mask Making

c. State of supply of chief raw materials

Winbond's major raw materials and parts include silicon chips, chemicals used in processes, special gases, and targets,
etc. The suppliers of these materials are located in the US, Japan, Korea, and Taiwan. A certain level of quality and a
steady supply can be expected of these suppliers. Outsourced items include testing and packaging. We have at least
two different qualified suppliers for each item, ensuring source and stability of supply.

d. Names of suppliers who accounted for more than 10% of the purchase by the Company in the
last two years, and the amount of purchase to total purchase

Unit: NT$1,000
2019 2018
Item Name Amount % of the |Relationship Name Amount | % of the |Relationship
year'snet | with the year'snet | with the
purchase issuer purchase issuer
1 [Supplier 2022 1,084,268 11.0% None Supplier 2022 | 796,034 8.1% None
Supplier Z016| 1,033,965 10.5% None Supplier Z016 | 957,324 9.7% None
Supplier 2018 940,620 9.5% None Supplier 2018 | 1,176,102 11.9% None
Other 6,804,070 69.0% Other 6,934,094 70.3%
Net purchase 9,862,923 100.0% Net purchase | 9,863,554 100.0%
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e. Names of customers who accounted for more than 10% of the sales in the last two years, and
sales as a percentage of total sales

Unit: NT$1,000

2019 2018
Item Name Amount (% of the year's| Relationship Name Amount % of the Relationship
net purchase |with the issuer year's net with the
purchase issuer
1 Customer Y 5,153,522 10.6% None Customer Y 5,184,432 10.1% None
Other 43,617,912 89.4% Other 46,005,891 89.9%
Net Sale 48,771,434 100.0% Net Sale 51,190,323 100.0%
f. Output volume and value during the most recent two years
Total combined output of the company and its subsidiaries, including Nuvoton Technology:
Unit: NT$1,000
Year 2019 2018
Core products ducti ) Output volume ducti Output volume
/Production capacity (F:lzt:it)lon capacity (Note 2) Value cParoa:iitl?Sote 1) (Note 2) Value
/Output Wafer Die pacity Wafer Die
DRAM 12-inch wafers 0.8| 1,303,387 | 14,556,355 | 12-inch wafers 15| 1,142,445 | 14,904,657
Flash 644 0.2 3,169,534 | 12,727,104 615 0.5 2,746,719 | 10,525,031
. . 6-inch wafers
Logic IC 6-inch wafers 500 412 918,358 5,987,514 500 395 920,999 5,904,023
Total 413 5,391,279 33,270,973 397 4,810,163 31,333,711
Note 1: Wafer production capacity is measured in 1,000 pieces.
Note 2: Wafer production is measured in 1,000 pieces; die production is measured in 1,000 pieces.
g. Sales volume and value during most recent two years
Total combined sales of the company and its subsidiaries, including Nuvoton Technology:
Unit: NT$1,000
Year 2019 2018
Product/ Domestic sales Exports Domestic sales Exports
Sales volume [Sales volume (note) Sales Sales volume (note) Sales Sales volume (note) Sales Sales volume (note) Sales
and value Wafer Die Wafer Die Wafer Die Wafer Die
DRAM -| 243,844 | 3,336,009 1| 1,001,049 | 15,454,979 -| 301,605 | 5,065,937 1| 843,918 (16,517,023
Flash -| 829,288 | 4,356,660 -| 2,288,390 |15,366,351 -| 616,933 | 3,621,715 -| 2,087,491 | 16,026,128
Logic ICs 197 220,319 | 3,792,168 208 699,463 | 6,464,406 228 255,164 | 3,767,729 161 649,765 | 6,190,639
Other - - 16 - - 845 - - 467 - - 685
Total 197 | 1,293,451 | 11,484,853 209 | 3,988,902 |37,286,581 228 | 1,173,702 | 12,455,848 162 | 3,581,174 | 38,734,475

Note: Wafer sales are measured in 1,000 pieces; die sales are measured in 1,000 pieces.

3. Employees

Information related to the employees of the Company and subsidiary Nuvoton Technology:

Year 2018 2019 2020 up to March 31
Technical personnel 3,011 3,120 3,100
(engineers)

Number of Administration and sales staff 956 1,010 994

employees Assistant to technicians 769 769 769
Total 4,736 4,899 4,863
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Year 2018 2019 2020 up to March 31

Average age 39.52 39.28 40.01
Average years of service 9.78 8.92 9.79
Ph.D 1.88 1.99 1.86
Master's 41.81 44.54 43.83
Education
University/College 45.08 44.95 43.72
background (%)
Senior High School 10.96 8.42 10.26
Senior High School and below 0.27 0.09 0.33

4. Spending on environmental protections

a. Losses (including damages and violations of the environmental regulations named in
environmental audits, which should list the date, document number, and article number and content
of the regulations violated, and penalty description) incurred for polluting the environment in last
two years and up to the publication date of this annual report, and estimated potential loss at
present and in the future and countermeasures: None

b. Preventive measures taken to ensure a safe working environment and maintain employees'
personal safety

The Company upholds the spirit of the ISO 14001 environmental management system, and pledges to provide and
maintain a working environment better than that required by law and industry practice. We also strive to comply
with international environmental protection standards, and seek to eliminate possible environmental risks
through continuous improvement.

As a member of the global village, in line with the principle of environmentally-friendly design, we strive to
develop green products and energy-consuming, low-pollution products that will fulfill our vision of sustainable
corporate development.

Throughout production operations, we rely on process optimization to reduce consumption of water and power,
use of raw materials and parts, and pollution emissions for each output unit. With respect to organizational
management, the company established a Quality & ESH Center responsible for environmental, health, and safety
management. We have also appointed suitable environmental management specialists dedicated to air pollution
control, water pollution control, and waste disposal and toxic chemicals management. In accordance with law, we
have obtained all required environmental protection permits and licenses. Adequate recycling systems for process
waste water exhaust gases, and solid wastes were incorporated during an early stage of the plant design process,
enabling us to reduce resource losses and pollutant discharges.

Furthermore, we have also undertaken the health, safety, and risk management tasks prescribed in OHSAS 18001
and CNS15506, and integrated an environmental, health and safety management system in order to enhance our
overall environmental management performance. The company undertakes an internal environmental, health,
and safety audit every half a year and an external audit yearly to ensure proper implementation.

Thanks to our dedication to environmental protection, we have received honors such as the Green Business
Award, National Outstanding Industrial Waste Reduction Factory and Contributing Group Award, and Industry
Outstanding Voluntary Greenhouse Gas Emission Reduction Factory Award from agencies including the EPA and
MOEA. We have received many honors over the years, including the Council of Labor Affairs' Friendly Workplace
Award and the Central Taiwan Science Park Administration's Superior Labor Health, Safety Enterprise Award and
Health Promotion Administration's Outstanding Healthy Workplace Award.

Looking to the future, we will continue to strengthen our spirit of corporate sustainability, while responding to
increasing environmental consciousness by engaging in appropriate environmental protection expenditure when
needed, employing innovative technologies to improve the efficiency of pollution control equipment, and striving
to minimize the environmental impact of production activities.

5. Employees-employer relations
a. Employee welfare, education and training, retirement system and implementation

1. Employee welfare
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(1) The company has established an "Employee Welfare Committee," "retirement reserve fund supervisory
committee," and "environmental, health, safety, and risk management committee," and employees can rely
on channels such as employer-employee conferences, opinion boxes, complaint hotlines, and the sexual
harassment complaints committee to communicate with management.

(2) The company provides a comprehensive quality benefit package for its employees and their families. In
addition to statutory benefits, such as Labor Insurance, National Health Insurance, and a pension reserve, the
company provides a higher child allowance than the industry average.

A. Child allowance: In support of the government's policy to encourage people to have children, the company
provides a higher child allowance for children born to Winbond employees.
Employees who have been with the company for one year or longer will receive an allowance of NT$5,000
per month for each newborn baby until he/she reaches the age of four.
The allowance makes the company become one of the best companies to work for.

B. Marriage and childbirth allowances: In addition to the child allowance, employees are entitled to a
marriage or childbirth allowance when they get married or have a child.

2. Employee training and education

The Company has established a complete, diversified learning environment in accordance with the Education and
Training Management Procedures, and has trained several dozen in-house lecturers in line with the ideal of
"respect for the individual and cultivation of professionalism." A total of 884 classroom training classes and 993
online training classes were held in 2019, and were attended for a total of 104,921 person-hours. Employees took
part in training a total of 71,335 person-times, training expenditures totaled NT$1,158 million, and the average
training cost per employee was NTS$3,703. The company's main learning channels included the following:

(1) Classroom classes: In accordance with demand, we formulate professional, QC, work safety, management, and
general education and training classes on an annual basis, and hold classes in accordance
with plans; employees may sign up to participate in these classes. The following is a
summary of the various types of classes:

A.We offer management development training activities in accordance with our
management functions blueprint; these activities include high-level, mid-level, and
basic-level new manager training and other elective classes.

B. We offer common, QC, and work safety training in accordance with the Company's
quality policy, government laws, and overall demand. Examples of these training classes
include working methods, statistical analysis methods, and emergency response safety
training classes.

C. Professional training is offered when our units have need of specific professional
functions. Examples include R&D design classes, process testing classes, and
international seminar sharing sessions.

D.New employee training classes are geared to getting newcomers quickly up to speed, and
include the employment system, corporate culture, and work adaptation classes.

E. We conduct basic training assessments for direct personnel, including new employees,
as well as continuing advanced professional skills assessments.

(2) Learning platform: The company's training website provides information on various online classes to encourage
learning. To ensure that learning is not limited to certain times or places, employees can
select suitable courses and access lecture notes online at any time. We offer the following
types of online classes: Classes on the company environment and management system, etc.;
classes on laws, regulations, and rules of conduct; basic process training; language classes
and other elective classes.

(3) Lifelong learning: To encourage employers' continuing development and personal growth, in accordance with
the In-service Continuing Education Regulations, we recommend that employees study for
Master's or Ph.D. degrees at Ministry of Education-accredited domestic universities or
approved foreign universities, and the company will subsidize relevant costs. We also provide
employees subsidies for enhancement and work-related skills training provided by an
external or foreign organization.

3. Retirement system

The company has drafted retirement regulations in line with the requirements of the Labor Standards Law and
Labor Pension Act. It makes contributions to the pension reserve for its employees under the old or new pension
plan.
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(1) Employees under the old pension plan pursuant to the Labor Standards Act: The contribution rate, in addition
to monthly contributions at 2% of the monthly salary, is reviewed every year. The Supervisory Committees of
Workers' Retirement Reserve Funds is in place to audit pension contributions regularly and to review pension
applications.

(2) Employees under the new pension plan pursuant to the Labor Pension Act: Monthly contributions are made at
6% of the corresponding pay grade into the employees' personal pension accounts. Employees may make
voluntary monthly contributions up to 6% of the corresponding pay grade into their personal pension accounts.

b. Licenses held by personnel involved in meaning the transparency of financial information:

Certification Number of People
International certified internal auditor (CIA) 6
International certification in control self-assessor (CCSA) 1
International certified information systems auditor (CISA) 3
CPA of ROC (CPA) 2

c. Labor-management harmony and employee rights maintenance measures

1. The Company has drafted "employer-employee conference implementation regulations," and regularly holds
employer-employee conferences to discuss and negotiate issues of importance. Items in conference resolutions
must be dealt with fully by relevant units within a limited time.

2. The Company has drafted "internal appeal regulations" intended to maintain employees' lawful rights and
interests and help eliminate illegal and unreasonable treatment of employees, ensuring that employees enjoy a
legally-compliant, reasonable, and fair working environment.

d. Losses (including violations of the Labor Standards Act named in labor inspections, which should
list the date, document number, article number, content of the regulations violated, and

penalty description) incurred for labor disputes in last two years and up to the publication date
of this annual report:

The Notice of Labor Inspection Results Zhu-Huan-Zi-1090007755 dated March 16, 2020 fined Nuvoton Technology,
a Winbond subsidiary, NT$50,000 each for "the total number of overtime exceeding forty-six hours a month", a
violation of Article 32, Paragraph 2 of the Labor Standards Act, and for "failing to allow workers two regular days
off every seven days, where one day would be a regular leave and the other one a rest day", a violation of Article
36, Paragraph 1 of the same act. The total fine imposed was NT$100,000.

e. Estimated losses due to current and possible future labor-management disputes and
response measures

The Company holds regular employer-employee conferences to promote the exchange of views between
employer-employee. Both sides have consistently maintained a state of consensus since the founding of the

Company, and no disputes have occurred. Furthermore, Winbond reiterated the importance of compliance, and
strengthened overtime management.

f. Employee rules of conduct

This company has drafted comprehensive rules of conduct to provide employees with standards for work ethics
and conduct, protection of intellectual property rights/business secrets, and work orders. These rules, which are
described below, can be viewed by employees via the document management system, announcements in relevant
internal websites, or bulletin board messages:

1. Work ethics and conduct

(1) Work rules: The Company's regulations contain dedicated service rules and general principles for prevention
of sexual harassment.

(2) Workplace sexual harassment prevention regulations: In accordance with relevant government laws and
regulations, The Company has explicitly drafted workplace sexual harassment prevention regulations and
established a dedicated awareness website, and has adopted appropriate prevention, correction, and
punishment measures.

(3) Employment contracts: Specifies the requirement that employees faithfully perform their duties.

(4) Human resource management conduct guidelines: In accordance with relevant government laws and
regulations and company regulations, we have drafted "human resource management conduct guidelines"
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classes on such subjects as eliminating discrimination, fair treatment, and prohibition of involuntary labor. To
ensure that everyone can work under fair and lawful conditions, all company employees receive extensive
awareness of these guidelines.

2. Rules for protection of intellectual property rights and maintenance of business secrets
(1) Work rules: The Company's regulations contain general principles for maintenance of the confidentiality of
business secrets.
(2) Employment contracts: Employment contracts specify requirements concerning confidentiality duties,
document ownership, secret information, ownership of intellectual or industrial property, and non-compete
terms.

3. Work orders

(1) Division of responsibilities: The "guidelines for responsibility stratification" specify the division of
responsibilities, and serve to guide the performance of on-the-job duties.

(2) Duties of individual units: The mission of each unit is clearly defined.

(3) Restrictions on the hiring of relatives: The "restrictions on the hiring of relatives" specify that relatives should
not be hired to fill certain positions. This is intended to ensure that the effectiveness and efficiency of the
company's internal management is not compromised unnecessarily by family relationships between
employees.

(4) Attendance management
(a) "Request for leave regulations": These regulations explicitly state The Company's leave request principles

and regulations.

(b) "Domestic travel regulations" and "foreign travel regulations": To facilitate personnel management and
activate substitute mechanisms, the company has established operating procedures for travel
applications; To ensure that personnel taking business trips accomplish their missions, such personnel
shall be given appropriate travel subsidies.

(c) "Overtime regulations": These regulations explicitly specify The Company's overtime principles and
standards.

(d) "Regulations concerning work stoppages due to natural disasters and major accidents": These regulations
explicitly state standards for work stoppages in the event of natural disasters and major accidents.

(5) Performance management
(a) "Performance management and evaluation regulations": These regulations seek to provide an

understanding of employees' strengths and weaknesses, and help them to develop their personal
abilities, by assessing the degree to which employees have achieved their personal goals; Employees'
contributions to the organization are determined on the basis of mutual comparisons between peers.

(b) "Performance guidance operating regulations": Performance guidance work seeks to enhance the
productivity of the company as a whole.

(6) Reward and penalty regulations
The "Reward and penalty handling regulations" prescribe appropriate rewards or punishments for those
employees who display superior performance or violate regulations, and have the intent of encouraging and
maintaining on-the-job morale and order.

(7) Manpower development

(a) "In-service continuing education regulations": These regulations establish channels for continuing
education, and have a goal of accumulating the human resources needed for the company's long-term
operations.

(b) "Regulations concerning application to participate in academic groups and organizations": Participation in
academic groups and organizations participate can promote the diffusion of knowledge and experience,
and help employees to find out about the newest information in their professional fields.

(c) "Conference participation and management regulations": Participation in international conferences
enables employees to acquire the newest information in their professional fields.

(8) Communication channels

(a) "Labor-management conference implementation regulations": These regulations enshrine the consensus
and shared welfare of labor and management, promote teamwork for the sake of corporate development
and employee welfare, establish an effective two-way communication system between labor and
management, put an end to labor-management disputes, ensure harmonious labor-management
relations, and encourage maximal productivity.

(b) "Corporate internal appeal regulations": These regulations provide employees with channels expressing
their views and making appeals directly to the company, maintain employees' rights and interests, and
encourage communication of views.
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(c) "Employee suggestion regulations": Employee's ideas and creative thinking can help the company to

continue to improve. These regulations provide for rewards for employees who submit proposals

concerning the company's operations, and are intended to encourage employees to contribute their

intelligence and experience.

6. Important contracts

construction in Zhubei Building

Nature of Year and month of Restriction
Contracting parties Content
contract contract start and end clauses
Technical . 2007.06 - 2014.12 Licensing of 75nm and 58nm DRAM technology and
. Qimonda AG of Germany X . . None
cooperation (Note 2) reserving specific capacity (Note 1)
Technical X 2008.04 - 2015.12 Licensing of 65nm DRAM technology and reserving
i Qimonda AG of Germany . i None
cooperation (Note 2) specific capacity (Note 1)
Licensing of graphics DRAM process technology and
Technical . 2009.08-permanent equipment purchase, expanded licensing for 90-65nm
. Qimonda AG of Germany i None
cooperation (Note 2) process technology, and settlement of insolvency
procedure
Technical i 2010.04-permanent Licensing of 45 nm and 46 nm Buried Wordline DRAM
i Qimonda AG of Germany X None
cooperation (Note 2) processes and equipment purchase
Bank loans Bank of Taiwan 2014.12 - 2021.12 NT$617.6 million medium-term secured loan None
Construction TASA Construction Material procurement for new civil construction at FAB-C
) 2015.05 - 2021.11 ) ) None
contracts Corporation at Central Taiwan Science Park (CTSP)
Construction TASA Construction 2015.05-2021.11 Construction contract for new civil construction at FAB-C N
one
contracts Corporation at Central Taiwan Science Park
Construction TASA Construction Corporation|2016.05 - 2024.12 Material procurement for basement, above ground
contracts structure, and exterior glass curtain walls under new None
construction in Zhubei Building
Construction TASA Construction Corporation [ 2016.05 - 2024.12 Construction contract for basement, above ground
contracts structure, and exterior glass curtain walls under new None

Syndicated loan

17 banks, including Bank of

2016.08 - 2021.12

NT$12 billion syndicated loan

Financial ratios

contracts

Ltd.

Building

Taiwan and others
Construction Wholetech System Hitech Contract services for CTSP B2-2 Project - hook-up turkey
o 2017.03 - 2019.12 ) None
contracts Limited project
Construction Wholetech System Hitech Material procurement for CTSP B2-2 Project - hook-up
2017.03 - 2019.12 None
contracts Limited turkey project
X . X X Material procurement for machines and power and air
Construction Continental Engineering Co., . L X
2017.07 - 2021.12 conditioning systems under new construction in Zhubei None
contracts Ltd. .
Building
X X X i Contract services for machines and power and air
Construction Continental Engineering Co., o o .
2017.07 - 2021.12 conditioning systems under new construction in Zhubei None

Joint guarantee

10 banks, including Taiwan

2018.06 - 2025.07

Joint guarantee for NT$10.15 billion

Financial ratios

contracts

Kaohsiung Fab

Cooperative Bank and others
Construction TASA Construction Corporation [ 2018.11 - 2024.06 Contract services for Kaohsiung FAB_A and CUB lower part None
contracts structures
Construction TASA Construction Corporation|2018.11 - 2024.06 Material procurement for Kaohsiung FAB_A and CUB lower None
contracts part structures
Construction TASA Construction Corporation [ 2018.11 - 2021.02 Contract services for phase 3 falsework of Kaohsiung Fab None
contracts
Construction TASA Construction Corporation|2018.11 - 2021.02 Material procurement for phase 3 falsework of Kaohsiung None
contracts Fab
Construction
contracts TASA Construction Corporation [ 2018.12 - 2025.09 Contract services for main structure work of Kaohsiung Fab None
Construction X i Material procurement for main structure work of

TASA Construction Corporation [ 2018.12 - 2025.09 None

Syndicated loan

19 banks, including Bank of
Taiwan

2019.01~2026.09

NT$42 billion syndicated loan

Financial ratios
and others

Construction

contracts

Nomura Micro Science Co.,
Ltd.

2019.03~2022.09

Contract services for pure water system work at
Kaohsiung Fab

None
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Nature of Year and month of Restriction
Contracting parties Content
contract contract start and end clauses
Construction Nomura Micro Science Co., Material procurement for pure water system work at
2019.03~2022.09 i None
contracts Ltd. Kaohsiung Fab
Construction TASA Construction Contract services for steel structure work of Kaohsiung
X 2019.03~2024.12 None
contracts Corporation Fab A
Construction TASA Construction Material procurement for steel structure work of
X 2019.03~2024.12 i None
contracts Corporation Kaohsiung Fab A
Construction TASA Construction Contract services for building renovation at Kaohsiung
X 2019.05~2024.05 None
contracts Corporation Fab A
Construction TASA Construction Material procurement for building renovation at
K 2019.05~2024.05 i None
contracts Corporation Kaohsiung Fab A
Construction TASA Construction . i .
X 2019.07~2025.11 Contract services for exterior wall work of Kaohsiung Fab None
contracts Corporation
Construction TASA Construction Material procurement for exterior wall work of
X 2019.07~2025.11 None
contracts Corporation Kaohsiung Fab
Construction Contract services for wastewater collection and
contracts Mega Union Technology Inc.  [2019.09~2023.06 processing system work at Kaohsiung Fab-A of Winbond None
Electronics
Construction Material procurement for wastewater collection and
contracts Mega Union Technology Inc. 2019.09~2023.06 processing system work at Kaohsiung Fab-A of Winbond None
Electronics
Construction i X Contract services for Phase 1 of mechanical, electrical,
L&K Engineering Co., Ltd. 2019.11~2024.04 . i None
contracts and plumbing (MEP) system work at Kaohsiung Fab
Construction Material procurement for Phase 1 of mechanical,
contracts L&K Engineering Co., Ltd. 2019.11~2024.04 electrical, and plumbing (MEP) system work at Kaohsiung None
Fab
Construction . Contract services for clean room work at Kaohsiung Fab
Exyte Taiwan Co., Ltd. 2019.12~2024.04 i i None
contracts of Winbond Electronics
Construction . Material procurement for clean room work at Kaohsiung
Exyte Taiwan Co., Ltd. 2019.12~2024.04 X . None
contracts Fab of Winbond Electronics
Merger Mobile Magic Design Merger with wholly owned subsidiary Mobile Magic
) 2019.07~2019.10 . . None
agreement Corporation Design Corp with October 1, 2019 as the record date
Sale and . .
Nanrong Development Acquisition of Floors 13 and 14 of Building H and 13
purchase i 2019.09~2024.06 i i . None
Construction Co., Ltd. parking spaces in the Nankang World Pearl project
agreement
Providing
product
Sales warranties. The
Company M 2017.08~2022.07 Product sales
agreement company has a
duty of
confidentiality.
Paying th
Acquisition X . . aying i €
Panasonic Corporation 2019.11~2020.12 Acquisition contract price as
agreement
agreed
The company
hall not t
Licensing Microchip Technology i . shallno 5”“"
2020.03~2034.10 Technology licensing the same license
agreement Incorporated .
to any third
party.

Note 1: Winbond and Qimonda AG of Germany entered an agreement in August 2009 to terminate the prior agreement on
reserving specific capacity.
Note 2: The licensing of 90-45nm process technologies from Qimonda AG of Germany becomes permanent after Winbond
pays off royalties as agreed.

7. Financial difficulties and corporate events encountered by the Company and affiliates in the past

year and up to the date of report that have material impact on the financial status of the Company:

None




Financial Overview

of the last five years

(1)

1. Condensed consolidated balance sheet

Condensed consolidated balance sheet and statements of income

Condensed balance sheets, statements of income, names of CPAs, and audit opinions

Unit: NT$1,000

Financial information of the last five years

Item\Year 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Current assets 24,712,757 27,259,743 37,240,205 37,528,246 37,557,286
Property, plant and equipment 31,915,030 34,372,537 43,828,707 52,484,183 56,977,114
Intangible assets 270,926 285,304 288,013 229,195 407,722
Other assets 5,699,054 6,071,911 6,759,198 5,800,840 9,862,778
Total Assets 62,597,767 67,989,495 88,116,123 96,042,464 | 104,804,900
Current Before distribution 12,333,195 14,605,735 16,240,188 16,469,744 17,515,468
liabilities After distribution 12,691,195 16,753,735 20,220,188 20,449,744 (Note 2)
Non-current liabilities 10,166,033 8,162,961 10,248,944 15,681,623 23,432,245
Total Before distribution 22,499,228 22,768,696 26,489,132 32,151,367 40,947,713
liabilities After distribution 22,857,228 24,916,696 30,469,132 36,131,367 (Note 2)
Equity attributable to owners of parent 38,901,971 43,920,961 60,212,164 62,444,371 61,020,622
Capital 35,800,002 35,800,002 39,800,002 39,800,002 39,800,002
Capital surplus 2,470,292 2,471,044 7,540,440 7,540,440 7,536,396
Accumulated | Before distribution 2,086,060 4,556,570 7,885,707 11,621,286 8,793,542
profit (loss) | After distribution 1,728,060 2,408,570 3,905,707 7,641,286 (Note 2)
Other interests (1,347,996) 1,199,732 4,986,015 3,482,643 4,890,682
Treasury stock (106,387) (106,387) - - -
Non-controlling interests 1,196,568 1,299,838 1,414,827 1,446,726 2,836,565
Total equity Before distribution 40,098,539 45,220,799 61,626,991 63,891,097 63,857,187
After distribution 39,740,539 43,072,799 57,646,991 59,911,097 (Note 2)

Note 1: The aforesaid financial information was audited and certified by the CPAs. The 2019 financial report has been approved by the Board of
Directors, but has not yet been submitted to the shareholders' meeting.
Note 2: Pending final approval from Shareholders' Meeting.

2. Condensed consolidated statements of income

Unit: NT$1,000

Financial information of the last five years

Iltem\Year

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Operating revenue 38,350,315 42,091,709 47,591,792 51,190,323 48,771,434
Gross profit 11,821,653 12,017,772 16,323,687 19,151,103 12,913,852
Operating profits 4,108,926 3,712,956 6,655,768 7,926,697 1,255,209
Non-operating income and expenses 139,258 41,664 441,761 468,203 497,308
Net income (loss) before tax 4,248,184 3,754,620 7,097,529 8,394,900 1,752,517
Less: Income tax expense 775,311 614,546 1,274,579 667,242 275,230
Current period net profit 3,472,873 3,140,074 5,822,950 7,727,658 1,477,287
Other comprehensive income for the (1,754,383) 2,485,116 3,749,701 (1,738,472) 1,294,756
current period
Total comprehensive income for the 1,718,490 5,625,190 9,572,651 5,989,186 2,772,043
current period
g::e’;:"f't attributable to owners of 3,291,251 2,897,791 5,550,562 7,446,496 1,256,387
Net profit attributable to 181,622 242,283 272,388 281,162 220,900
non-controlling interests
Total comprehensive income 1,541,648 5,376,238 9,263,420 5,810,825 2,560,295
attributable to owners of parent
Total comprehensive income
attributable to non-controlling 176,842 248,952 309,231 178,361 211,748
interests
Earnings per share (NTS) 0.90 0.81 1.54 1.87 0.32

Note: The aforesaid financial information was audited and certified by the CPAs. The 2019 financial report has been approved by the Board of

Directors, but has not yet been submitted to the shareholders' meeting.
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(1) Individual condensed balance sheet and statements of income

1. Individual condensed balance sheet
Unit: NT$1,000
Financial information of the last five years
Item\Year
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Current assets 19,345,192 21,269,634 31,046,641 31,188,039 27,470,545
Property, plant and equipment 31,195,173 33,607,842 42,969,011 51,577,630 55,691,405
Intangible assets 76,371 69,438 115,325 104,925 123,949
Other assets 8,879,536 9,452,136 10,279,023 9,303,235 14,963,032
Total Assets 59,496,272 64,399,050 84,410,000 92,173,829 98,248,931
Current Before distribution 10,878,474 12,760,416 14,638,436 14,638,436 15,267,599
liabilities After distribution 11,236,474 14,908,416 18,618,436 18,618,436 (Note 2)
Non-current liabilities 7,717,673 9,837,779 15,091,022 21,960,710
Total liabilities Before distribution 20,594,301 20,478,089 29,729,458 29,729,458 37,228,309

After distribution 20,952,301 22,626,089 33,709,458 33,709,458 (Note 2)
Capital 35,800,002 35,800,002 39,800,002 39,800,002 39,800,002
Capital surplus 2,470,292 2,471,044 7,540,440 7,540,440 7,536,396
Accumulated | Before distribution 2,086,060 4,556,570 11,621,286 11,621,286 8,793,542
profit (loss) After distribution 1,728,060 2,408,570 7,641,286 7,641,286 (Note 2)
Other interests (1,347,996) 1,199,732 4,986,015 3,482,643 4,890,682
Treasury stock (106,387) (106,387) - - -
Total equity Before distribution 38,901,971 43,920,961 60,212,164 62,444,371 61,020,622

After distribution 38,543,971 41,772,961 56,232,164 58,464,371 (Note 2)

Note 1: The aforesaid financial information was audited and certified by the CPAs. The 2019 financial report has
been approved by the Board of Directors, but has not yet been submitted to the shareholders' meeting.

Note 2: Pending final approval from Shareholders' Meeting.

2. Individual condensed statements of income

Unit: NT$1,000

Financial information of the last five years

Item\Year

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Operating revenue 30,843,606 33,534,343 38,102,813 40,733,527 37,884,848
Gross profit 8,462,362 8,259,823 12,158,001 14,781,238 8,239,412
Operating profits 3,506,698 2,969,794 5,710,689 6,943,927 379,841
Non-operating income
and expenses 403,553 401,436 941,679 993,089 980,011
git income (loss) before 3,910,251 3,371,230 6,652,368 7,937,016 1,359,852
Less: Income tax expense 619,000 473,439 1,101,806 490,520 103,465
Current period net profit 3,291,251 2,897,791 5,550,562 7,446,496 1,256,387
Other comprehensive
income for the current (1,749,603) 2,478,447 3,712,858 (1,635,671) 1,303,908
period
Total comprehensive
income for the current 1,541,648 5,376,238 9,263,420 5,810,825 2,560,295
period
Earnings per share (NTS) 0.90 0.81 1.54 1.87 0.32

Note: The aforesaid financial information was audited and certified by the CPAs. The 2019 financial report has
been approved by the Board of Directors, but has not yet been submitted to the shareholders' meeting.

(111) Names of CPAs and audit opinions of the last five years

Year CPA Name Audit opinion

2015 K. T. Hong and K. C. Wu Unqualified opinion
2016 K. C. Wu and Hung-Bin Yu Ungqualified opinion
2017 Hung-Bin Yu and K. C. Wu Unqualified opinion
2018 K. T. Hong and Hung-Bin Yu Unqualified opinion
2019 Wen Yea Shyu and Hung-Bin Yu Unqualified opinion
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[l.  Financial analysis of the last five years

1.  Financial ratios analysis of consolidated financial statements

ltem\Year Financial analysis of the last five years
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Financial Debt-to-asset ratio (%) 35.94 33.48 30.06 33.47 39.07
structure | -ong-term fund to property, plant and 15749 | 15530 | 16399 | 15161 |  153.20
equipment (fixed assets) ratio (%)
Current ratio (%) 200.37 186.63 229.30 227.86 214.42
Solvency Quick ratio (%) 122.21 126.78 173.14 156.31 150.85
Times interest earned 17.10 21.07 91.27 47.05 9.00
Receivables turnover ratio (times) 7.11 7.60 7.58 7.72 7.71
Average days of collection 51 48 48 47 47
Inventory turnover rate (times) 3.57 3.74 3.98 3.36 3.37
Operating Payables turnover ratio (times) 5.88 6.51 6.51 6.49 6.73
ability Average days of sales 102 98 92 109 108
Prqper'ty, plant and equipment turnover 1.16 1.26 121 1.06 0.89
ratio (times)
Total assets turnover ratio (times) 0.60 0.64 0.60 0.55 0.48
Return on assets (%) 5.79 5.04 7.54 8.55 1.64
Return on equity (%) 8.74 7.36 10.89 12.31 2.31
Profitability Income before tax to paid-in capital ratio (%) 11.86 10.48 17.83 21.09 4.40
Net profit margin (%) 9.05 7.46 12.23 15.09 3.02
Earnings per share (NTS) 0.90 0.81 1.54 1.87 0.32
Cash flow ratio (%) 62.09 68.40 74.77 82.17 60.38
Cash flow Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) 120.88 129.69 101.45 78.21 75.01
Cash reinvestment ratio (%) 5.58 6.62 5.91 5.19 3.30
Operating leverage 3.91 4.27 3.05 3.07 16.22
Leverage - -
Financial leverage 1.06 1.05 1.01 1.02 1.21
Reasons for changes in financial ratios exceeding 20%:
1. Decreases in return on assets, return on equity, income before tax to paid-in capital ratio, net profit margin and earnings per share:
Mainly due to decrease in operating income in 2019.
2. Decreases in cash flow ratio and cash reinvestment ratio: Mainly due to the decrease in net cash flows from operating activities.
3. Increases in operating leverage and financial leverage: Mainly due to decrease in operating income in 2019.

Note: Financial ratios were computed based on audited financial information. The computation formulas used in

financial analysis:
1. Financial structure
(1) Debt-to-asset ratio = total liabilities / total assets.
(2) Long-term fund to property, plant and equipment ratio = (total equity + non-current liabilities)/ net property, plant and equipment.

2. Solvency
(1) Current ratio = current assets / current liabilities.
(2) Quick ratio = (current assets — inventory — prepaid expense) / current liabilities.
(3) Times interest earned = net income before income tax and interest expense / current interest expense.
3. Operating ability
(1) Receivable (including accounts receivable and business-related notes receivable) turnover ratio = net operating revenue / average balance of
receivable of the period (including accounts receivable and business-related notes receivable).
(2) Average days of collection = 365 / receivables turnover ratio.
(3) Inventory turnover rate = cost of goods sold / average amount of inventory.
(4) Payable (including accounts payable and business-related notes payable) turnover ratio = cost of goods sold / average balance of payable of
the period (including accounts payable and business-related notes payable).
(5) Average days of sales = 365 / inventory turnover rate.
(6) Property, plant and equipment turnover ratio = net sales / net average property, plant and equipment.
(7) Total assets turnover ratio = net sales / total average assets.

4. Profitability
(1) Returnon assets = [netincome + interest expense (1- tax rate)] / average total assets.
(2) Return on equity = after-tax profit /total average equity.
(3) Net profit margin = net income / net sales.
(4) Earnings per share = (income attributable to owners of parent — dividend to preferred stock) / weighted average of shares issued.

5. Cash flows
(1) Cash flow ratio = new cash flows from operating activities / current liabilities.
(2) Cash flow adequacy ratio = net cash flows from operating activities in the past five years / (capital expenditure + increase in inventory + cash
dividend) in the past five years.
(3) Cash reinvestment ratio = (net cash flows from operating activities —cash dividend) / (gross margin of property, plant and equipment +
long-term investment + other non-current assets + working capital).

6. Leverage:
(1) Operating leverage = (net operating revenue — variable operating cost and expenses) / operating income.
(2) Financial leverage = operating income / (operating income — interest expense).
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2. Financial ratios analysis of financial statements

Financial analysis of the last five years
Item\Year
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Financial Debt-to-asset ratio (%) : 34.61 31.79 28.66 32.25 37.89
structure L.ong-term funq to property, plant and equipment 155.85 15365 | 163.02 150.32 | 149.00
(fixed assets) ratio (%)
Current ratio (%) 177.83 166.68 | 216.20 | 213.05 | 179.92
Solvency | Quick ratio (%) 99.46 109.12 | 165.80 | 144.61 | 118.37
Times interest earned 15.90 19.02 85.60 44.53 7.66
Receivables turnover ratio (times) 7.13 7.73 7.51 7.60 7.93
Average days of collection 51 47 49 48 46
Inventory turnover rate (times) 3.43 3.64 4.03 3.27 3.27
Operating | Payables turnover ratio (times) 5.71 6.56 6.65 6.42 6.85
ability Average days of sales 106 100 91 112 112
Property, plant and equipment turnover ratio 0.99 0.86 0.70
. 0.95 1.03
(times)
Total assets turnover ratio (times) 0.50 0.54 0.51 0.46 0.39
Return on assets (%) 5.77 4.92 7.54 8.59 1.49
Return on equity (%) 8.53 6.99 10.66 12.14 2.03
Profitability | Income before tax to paid-in capital ratio (%) 10.92 9.41 16.71 19.94 3.41
Net profit margin (%) 10.67 8.64 14.56 18.28 3.31
Earnings per share (NTS) 0.90 0.81 1.54 1.87 0.32
Cash flow ratio (%) 68.19 73.17 82.71 87.70 66.35
Cash flows [ Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) 118.15 125.75 99.70 76.54 73.83
Cash reinvestment ratio (%) 6.15 6.98 6.39 5.31 3.41
Operating leverage 3.71 4.18 2.89 2.92 42.17
Leverage - -
Financial leverage 1.08 1.06 1.01 1.02 2.16

Reasons for changes in financial ratios exceeding 20%:

(1) Decrease in times interest earned: Mainly due to decrease in pre-tax income in 2019.

(2) Decreases in return on assets, return on equity, income before tax to paid-in capital ratio, net profit margin and earnings per
share: Mainly due to decrease in operating income in 2019.

(3) Decreases in cash flow ratio and cash reinvestment ratio: Mainly due to the decrease of net cash flows from operating activities.

(4) Increases in operating leverage and financial leverage: Mainly due to decrease in operating income in 2019.

Note:

Financial ratios were computed based on audited financial information. The computation formulas used in financial analysis:
1. Financial structure
(1) Debt-to-asset ratio = total liabilities / total assets.
(2) Long-term fund to property, plant and equipment ratio = (total equity + non-current liabilities) / net property, plant and equipment.

2. Solvency
(1) Current ratio = current assets / current liabilities.
(2) Quick ratio = (current assets — inventory — prepaid expense) / current liabilities.
(3) Times interest earned = net income before income tax and interest expense / current interest expense.
3. Operating ability
(1) Receivable (including accounts receivable and business-related notes receivable) turnover ratio = net operating revenue / average balance of
receivable of the period (including accounts receivable and business-related notes receivable).
(2) Average days of collection = 365 / receivables turnover ratio.
(3) Inventory turnover rate = cost of goods sold / average amount of inventory.
(4) Payable (including accounts payable and business-related notes payable) turnover ratio = cost of goods sold / average balance of payable of
the period (including accounts payable and business-related notes payable).
(5) Average days of sales = 365 / inventory turnover rate.
(6) Property, plant and equipment turnover ratio = net sales / net average property, plant and equipment.
(7) Total assets turnover ratio = net sales / total average assets.

4. Profitability
(1) Returnon assets = [net income + interest expense (1- tax rate)] / average total assets.
(2) Return on equity = after-tax profit /total average (stockholders' equity) equity.
(3) Net profit margin = net income / net sales.
(4) Earnings per share = (income attributable to owners of parent — dividend to preferred stock) / weighted average of shares issued.
5. Cash flows
(1) Cash flow ratio = new cash flows from operating activities / current liabilities.
(2) Cash flow adequacy ratio = net cash flows from operating activities in the past five years / (capital expenditure + increase in inventory + cash
dividend) in the past five years.
(3) Cash reinvestment ratio = (net cash flows from operating activities —cash dividend) / (gross margin of property, plant and equipment +
long-term investment + other non-current assets + working capital).

6. Leverage:
(1) Operating leverage = (net operating revenue — variable operating cost and expenses) / operating income.
(2) Financial leverage = operating income / (operating income — interest expense).
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Report of the Audit Committee on 2019 Financial Report

Report of the Audit Committee

We have examined the 2019 financial statements (including consolidated financial
statements), together with business report and earnings distribution proposal prepared
by the Board of Directors and audited and certified by CPAs Wen-Yea Shyu and
Hung-Bin Yu of Deloitte & Touche with the issue of an unqualified opinion, who did not
find any discrepancy. The aforesaid financial statements, business report, and earnings
distribution proposal have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and all content was
found appropriate. We therefore submit it for your review in accordance with Article
14-4 of the Securities Exchange Act and Article 219 of the Company Act.

To:

Winbond Electronics Corp. 2020 General Shareholders' Meeting

Winbond Electronics Corporation

Convenor of Audit Committee: Allen Hsu

March 16, 2020
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Deloitte & Touche

20F, Taipei Nan Shan Plaza

No. 100, Songren Rd.,

Xinyi Dist., Taipei 11073, Taiwan

Tel :+886 (2) 2725-9988
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT Fax:+886 (2) 4051-6888

www.deloitte.com.tw

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Winbond Electronics Corporation

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Winbond Electronics
Corporation (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Group’), which
comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements™).

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities
Issuers and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), International Accounting
Standards (IAS), IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC Interpretations (SIC) endorsed and issued
into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation
of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and auditing standards generally accepted
in the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with The Norm of Professional Ethics for
Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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Occurrence of Sales Revenues

There is a significant risk on revenue recognition, and customers’ line of credit and delivery of
products are highly correlated to recognition of sales revenue. We therefore considered that the
occurrence of sales revenue from the twenty largest customers with changes in credit limits and
temporary increase in credit limits in 2019 as a key audit matter for the year ended December 31,
2019. Refer to Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements for the Group’s revenue recognition
policies.

Our audit procedures in response to the validity of sales revenue included understanding the design
and the implementation of internal control of sales revenue and selecting samples of revenue items
to verify that revenue transactions have indeed occurred.

Other Matter

We have also audited the parent company only financial statements of the Company as of and for
the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 on which we have issued an unmodified opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers, and IFRS, IAS, IFRIC, and SIC endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial
Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, including audit committees, are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the auditing standards
generally accepted in the Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
China, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision, and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2019 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.
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The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Wen-Yea
Shyu and Hung-Bin Yu.

1 L
Won- yen /Kﬂzfv\ /7‘147;*/5"% e
Deloitte & Touche
Taipei, Taiwan

Republic of China

February 7, 2020

Notice to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated
Jfinancial position, financial performance and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles
and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions.
The standards, procedures and practices to audit such consolidated financial statements are those
generally applied in the Republic of China.

For the convenience of readers, the independent auditors’ report and the accompanying
consolidated financial statements have been translated into English from the original Chinese
version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between the English
version and the original Chinese version or any difference in the interpretation of the two versions,
the Chinese-language independent auditors’ report and consolidated financial statements shall
prevail.

-80-



WINBOND ELECTRONICS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 4 and 6)
Current financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Notes 4 and 7)
Current financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (Notes 4 and 8)
Accounts receivable, net (Notes 4 and 9)
Accounts receivable due from related parties, net (Note 27)
Other receivables (Note 6)
Inventories (Notes 4 and 10)
Other current assets

Total current assets

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Non-current financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (Notes 4 and 8)
Investments accounted for using equity method (Notes 4 and 11)
Property, plant and equipment (Notes 4 and 12)
Right-of-use assets (Notes 4 and 13)
Investment properties (Notes 4 and 14)
Intangible assets (Notes 4 and 15)
Deferred income tax assets
Other non-current assets (Note 6)

Total non-current assets

TOTAL

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short-term borrowings (Note 16)
Notes and accounts payable
Accounts payable to related parties (Note 27)
Payables on machinery and equipment
Other payables
Current tax liabilities (Note 21)
Lease liabilities - current (Notes 4 and 13)
Long-term borrowings - current portion (Note 16)
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bonds payable (Notes 4 and 17)
Long-term borrowings (Note 16)
Lease liabilities - non-current (Notes 4 and 13)
Net defined benefit liabilities, non-current (Notes 4 and 18)
Other non-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT (Note 19)
Share capital
Capital surplus
Retained earnings
Legal reserve
Unappropriated earnings
Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statements
Unrealized gains on financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Total equity attributable to owners of the parent
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Total equity

TOTAL

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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2019 2018
Amount % Amount %
$ 11,467,907 11 $ 12,559,631 13
75,462 - 8,290 -
7,225,588 7 6,249,212 7
6,085,003 6 6,469,413 7

45,903 - 44,297 -

750,720 1 406,879 -

10,332,143 10 10,908,106 11
1,574,560 1 882.418 1

37,557,286 36 37,528,246 39
1,501,756 2 861,853 1
4,548,939 4 3,585,328 4

56,977,114 54 52,484,183 55
2,298,393 2 -

44207 - 50,527 -
407,722 - 229,195 -
923,902 953,726
545,581 349,406 -

67,247,614 64 58.514.218 61
$ 104,804,900 100 $ 96,042,464 100
$ 1,000,000 1 $ - -
4,786,251 5 4,317,866 4
911,529 1 629,681 1
3,013,266 3 2,860,869 3
3,125,368 3 3,776,574 4
198,242 - 178,690 -
186,556 - - -
4,123,520 4,563,520
170736 - 142544 -
17,515,468 17 16,469,744 17
9,931,746 10 9,919,779 10
9,730,473 9 4,179,273 4
2,096,115 2 - -
1,251,869 1 1,167,325 1
422,042 - 415,246 1
23,432,245 22 15,681,623 16
40,947,713 39 32,151,367 33
39,800,002 38 39,800,002 41
7,536,396 7 7,540,440 8
1,798,091 2 1,053,441 1
6,995,451 6 10,567,845 11
(119,246) - (50,780) -
5,009,928 5 3,533,423 4
61,020,622 58 62,444,371 65
2,836,565 3 1.446.726 2
63,857,187 61 63,891,097 67
$ 104,804,900 100 $ 96,042,464 100



WINBOND ELECTRONICS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share)

2019 2018
Amount % Amount %
OPERATING REVENUE $ 48,771,434 100 $ 51,190,323 100
OPERATING COSTS (Note 10) 35,857,582 73 32,039,220 63
GROSS PROFIT 12,913,852 27 19,151,103 37
OPERATING EXPENSES
Selling expenses 1,408,662 3 1,486,523 3
General and administrative expenses 2,123,292 4 2,045,248 4
Research and development expenses 8,132,031 17 7,697,343 15
Expected credit (gain) loss (Note 9) (5,342) - (4,708) -
Total operating expenses 11,658.643 24 11,224,406 22
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 1,255,209 3 7,926,697 15
NON-OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES
Interest income 95,203 - 93,833 -
Dividend income 531,803 1 416,339 1
Other income 49,788 - 45,572 -
Gains (losses) on disposal of property, plant and
equipment (1,039) - 764 -
Foreign exchange gains (losses) (137,534) - 280,264 1
Gains (losses) on financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss 64,016 - (328,890) (1)
Share of profit of associates accounted for using
equity method 241,034 - 228,981 -
Interest expense (218,980) - (182,299) -
Other expenses (126,983) - (73,471) -
Other impairment loss - - (12.890) -
Total non-operating income and expenses 497,308 1 468.203 1
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 1,752,517 4 8,394,900 16
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Notes 4 and 22) 275,230 1 667,242 1
NET PROFIT 1,477,287 3 7,727,658 15

(Continued)
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WINBOND ELECTRONICS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Components of other comprehensive income (loss)
that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Gains (losses) on remeasurement of defined
benefit plans
Unrealized gains (losses) from investments in
equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Share of other comprehensive income (loss) of
associates accounted for using the equity
method
Components of other comprehensive income (loss)
that will be reclassified to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
financial statements

Other comprehensive income (loss)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

NET PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE (Note 23)
Basic
Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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2019 2018
Amount % Amount %
$  (135,829) $  (142,113) -
724,814 (505,248) (H
777,428 2 (1,157,275) (2)
(71,657) 66.164 -
1,294,756 (1,738.472) 3)
$ 2,772,043 $ 5,989,186 12
$ 1,256,387 $ 7,446,496 14
220,900 281,162 1
$ 1,477,287 $ 7,727,658 15
$ 2,560,295 $ 5,810,825 12
211,748 178,361 -
$ 2,772,043 $ 5.989,186 12
$ 032 $ 1.87
§ 032 $§ 187
(Concluded)
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WINBOND ELECTRONICS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation expense
Amortization expense
Expected credit (gain) loss recognized on accounts receivable
(Reversal of) provision for declines in market value, obsolescence
and scraps of inventories
Net (gains) losses on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Interest expense
Interest income
Dividend income
Share of (profit) loss of associates accounted for using equity
method
(Gains) losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Impairment loss on non-financial assets
Compensation costs of employee share options
Other adjustments to reconcile (profit) loss
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase) decrease in notes and accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable due from related parties
(Increase) decrease in other receivables
(Increase) decrease in inventories
(Increase) decrease in other current assets
(Increase) decrease in other non-current assets
Increase (decrease) in notes and accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable to related parties
Increase (decrease) in other payables
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities
Increase (decrease) in other non-current liabilities
Cash flows from (used in) operations
Interest received
Dividends received
Interest paid
Income taxes paid

Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities
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2019 2018
1,752,517 8,394,900
8,600,391 7,480,661
111,440 102,201
(5,342) (4,708)
1,146,371 113,910
(67,172) 24,455
218,980 182,299
(95,203) (93,833)
(531,803) (416,339)
(241,034) (228,981)
1,039 (764)
- 12,890
49,920 -
(679) -
391,215 187,018
(1,606) (10,751)
(345,490) 257,184
(570,408) (2,882,034)
68,173 101,095
(118,045) (59,222)
471,003 (103,079)
281,848 132,894
(695,784) 449,962
28,192 (51,483)
(44.489) (69.160)
10,470,034 13,519,115
94,164 89,052
586,655 416,339
(348,667) (206,744)
(226.290) (284.520)
10,575,896 13,533,242
(Continued)



WINBOND ELECTRONICS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Proceeds from disposal of financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Proceeds from capital reduction of financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Acquisition of investments accounted for using the equity method

Net cash flow from acquisition of subsidiaries

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Acquisition of intangible assets

Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings
Proceeds from issuing bonds
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Repayments of long-term borrowings
Cash dividends paid
Change in non-controlling interests
Repayments of lease liabilities
Other financing activities

Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE
YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR

2019 2018
§  (992,439) §  (280,233)
106,799 147,925
4,000 24,072
- (750)
(127,514) -
(13,431,076) (16,930,434)
1,967 2,549
(197.990) (25.260)
(14.636.253) (17,062.131)
1,000,000 (553,539)
- 10,000,000
10,350,000 -
(5,123,520) (3,323,520)
(3,980,000) (3,980,000)
1,124,126 (202,336)
(202,489) -
(135.,000) (86,171)
3.033,117 1,854,434
(64.484) 61,645
(1,091,724) (1,612,810)
12,559,631 14,172,441
$ 11,467,907 $ 12,559,631
(Concluded)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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WINBOND ELECTRONICS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Stated Otherwise)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Winbond Electronics Corporation (the “Company”) was incorporated in the Republic of China (ROC) on
September 29, 1987 and is engaged in the design, development, manufacture and marketing of Very Large
Scale Integration (VLSI) integrated circuits (ICs) used in a variety of microelectronic applications.

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation since October 18,
1995. Walsin Lihwa Corporation is a major shareholder of the Company and held approximately 22%
ownership interest in the Company as of December 31, 2019 and 2018.

2. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the board of directors on February 7, 2020.

3. APPLICATION OF NEW, AMENDED AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

a.

Initial application of the amendments to the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports
by Securities Issuers and the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), International
Accounting Standards (IAS), Interpretations of IFRS (IFRIC), and Interpretations of IAS (SIC)
(collectively, the “IFRSs”) endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission
(FSC)

Except for the following, whenever applied, the initial application of the amendments to the
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and the IFRSs
endorsed and issued into effect by the FSC would not have any material impact on the Group’s
accounting policies:

1) IFRS 16 “Leases”

IFRS 16 provides a comprehensive model for the identification of lease arrangements and their
treatment in the financial statements of both the lessee and the lessor. It supersedes IAS 17
“Leases”, IFRIC 4 “Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”, and a number of
related interpretations. Refer to Note 4 for information relating to the relevant accounting policies.

Definition of a lease

The Group elects to apply the guidance of IFRS 16 in determining whether contracts are, or contain,
a lease only to contracts entered into (or changed) on or after January 1, 2019. Contracts identified
as containing a lease under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 are not reassessed and are accounted for in
accordance with the transitional provisions under IFRS 16.
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The Group as lessee

The Group recognizes lease liabilities for all leases on the consolidated balance sheets except for
those whose payments under low-value asset and short-term leases are recognized as expenses on a
straight-line basis. On the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, the Group presents the
depreciation expense charged on right-of-use assets separately from the interest expense accrued on
lease liabilities; interest is computed using the effective interest method. On the consolidated
statements of cash flows, cash payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities are classified
within financing activities; cash payments for the interest portion are classified within financing
activities. Prior to the application of IFRS 16, payments under operating lease contracts were
recognized as expenses on a straight-line basis. Cash flows for operating leases were classified
within operating activities on the consolidated statements of cash flows.

The lessee’s weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities
recognized on January 1, 2019 is 1.34%-3.69%. The difference between the lease liabilities
recognized and operating lease commitments disclosed on December 31, 2018 is explained as
follows:

The future minimum lease payments of non-cancellable operating lease

commitments on December 31, 2018 $ 3,020,797
Less: Recognition exemption for short-term leases (16,790)
Less: Recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets (5.853)
Undiscounted amounts on January 1, 2019 $ 2,998,154
Lease liabilities recognized on January 1, 2019 $ 2,387,252

The Group as lessor

Except for sublease transactions, the Group does not make any adjustments for leases in which it is
a lessor, and it accounts for those leases with the application of IFRS 16 starting from January 1,
2019.

The Group subleased its leasehold to a third party. Such sublease was classified as an operating
lease under IAS 17. The Group classified the sublease as a finance lease on the basis of the
remaining contractual terms and conditions of the head lease and sublease on January 1, 2019.

The impact on assets, liabilities and equity as of January 1, 2019 from the initial application of IFRS
16 is set out as follows:

Carrying Adjustments Adjusted
Amount as of Arising from Carrying
December 31, Initial Amount as of
2018 Application January 1, 2019
Prepayments for leases - current $ 3,463 $  (3,463) $ -
Prepayments for leases - non-current 35,129 (35,129) -
Right-of-use assets - 2.425.844 2,425,844
Total effect on assets $ 38,592 $ 2,387,252 $ 2,425,844
Lease liabilities - current $ - $ 177,083 $ 177,083
Lease liabilities - non-current - 2,210,169 2,210,169
Total effect on liabilities S - $ 2,387,252 $ 2,387,252
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2) IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments”

IFRIC 23 clarifies that when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments, the Group should
assume that the taxation authority has full knowledge of all related information when making
related examinations. If the Group concludes that it is probable that the taxation authority will
accept an uncertain tax treatment, the Group should determine the taxable profit, tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits or tax rates consistently with the tax treatments used or planned to be
used in its income tax filings. If it is not probable that the taxation authority will accept an uncertain
tax treatment, the Group should make estimates using either the most likely amount or the expected
value of the tax treatment, depending on which method the Group expects to better predict the
resolution of the uncertainty. The Group has to reassess its judgments and estimates if facts and
circumstances change.

b. The IFRSs endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission (FSC) for application starting from 2020

Effective Date
New IFRSs Announced by IASB
Amendments to IFRS 3 “Definition of a Business” January 1, 2020 (Note 1)
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 “Interest Rate Benchmark January 1, 2020 (Note 2)
Reform”
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 “Definition of Material” January 1, 2020 (Note 3)

Note 1: The Group shall apply these amendments to business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after
January 1, 2020 and to asset acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning of that period.

Note 2: The Group shall apply these amendments retrospectively for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2020.

Note 3: The Group shall apply these amendments prospectively for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2020.

As of the date the consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue, the Group is
continuously assessing the possible impact that the application of above standards and interpretations
will have on the Group’s financial position and financial performance and will disclose the relevant
impact when the assessment is completed.

c. New IFRSs in issue but not yet endorsed and issued into effect by the FSC

Effective Date
New IFRSs Announced by IASB (Note)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and TAS 28 “Sale or Contribution of Assets To be determined by IASB
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture”
IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” January 1, 2021

Note: Unless stated otherwise, the above New IFRSs are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after their respective effective dates.

As of the date the consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue, the Group is
continuously assessing the possible impact that the application of above standards and interpretations
will have on the Group’s financial position and financial performance and will disclose the relevant
impact when the assessment is completed.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Regulations Governing
the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and IFRSs as endorsed and issued into effect by
the FSC.

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial
instruments and defined benefit liabilities which are measured at the present value of the defined benefit
obligation less the fair value of plan assets that are measured at fair value. Historical cost is generally based
on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

Basis of Consolidation

a.

Principles for preparing consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and the
entities controlled by the Company. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by the Company. All
intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full upon consolidation.

Attribution of total comprehensive income to non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognized directly in equity and attributed to
the owners of the Company.

Subsidiaries included in consolidated financial statements

% of Ownership

December 31

Investor Investee Main Business 2019 2018
The Company ~ Winbond Int’l Corporation (WIC) Investment holding 100.00 100.00
WIC Winbond Electronics Corporation America Design, sales and after-sales service of 100.00 100.00

(WECA) semiconductor
The Company  Landmark Group Holdings Ltd. (Landmark) Investment holding 100.00 100.00
Landmark Winbond Electronics Corporation Japan Research, development, sales and 100.00 100.00
(WEC)) after-sales service of semiconductor
Landmark Peaceful River Corp. (PRC) Investment holding 100.00 100.00
The Company ~ Winbond Electronics (HK) Limited (WEHK) Sales of semiconductor and investment 100.00 100.00
holding
WEHK Winbond Electronics (Suzhou) Limited Design, development and marketing of 100.00 100.00
(WECN) VLSI integrated ICs
(Continued)
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% of Ownership

December 31
Investor Investee Main Business 2019 2018
The Company  Pine Capital Investment Limited (PCI) Investment holding 100.00 100.00
The Company  Mobile Magic Design Corporation (MMDC) Design, development and marketing of - 100.00
(Note 1) Pseudo SRAM
The Company ~ Winbond Technology Ltd. (WTL) Design and service of semiconductor 100.00 100.00
The Company  Techdesign Corporation (“TDC”) (Note 2) Electronic commerce and product - 100.00
marketing
The Company  Callisto Holdings Limited (“Callisto”) Electronic commerce and investment 1